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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors of Credit China Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or “Credit China” and the “Directors”, respectively)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purposes
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchants Bank Hong Kong Branch
21/F, Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road

Central, Hong Kong

China Construction Bank Corporation
(Shanghai Nanjing West Road Sub-branch)
No. 577-587, Nanjing West Road
Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
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43/F, Lee Garden One
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN PRC

Room E-F, 28F, Mirae Asset Tower
No. 166 Lujiazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
Postal Code 200120

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.creditchina.hk

STOCK CODE

08207

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

ir@creditchina.hk
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Financial Highlights

2015 2014 Changes
—ZE-AfF — g F 1 B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETF T
OPERATING RESULTS REEE
Turnover BERE 429,590 374,068 14.8%
Net profit B A) 80,041 66,258 20.8%
Profit for the year attributable to: E(REE BT
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A 85,606 58,194 47.1%
Non-controlling interest FEIE e (5,565) 8,064 -169.0%
Basic earnings per share BlRERZF RMB2.55 cents RMB1.85 cents 37.8%
AR#25590  AR1.85%
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR IR
Total assets BERTE 4,871,701 2,671,727 82.3%
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRNIES 615,015 265,515 131.6%
Total liabilities BEER 2,239,115 1,252,299 78.8%
Net assets BEFH 2,632,586 1,419,428 85.5%
Fi 2015« FEIEEERERA A
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

In 2015, the global economy experienced a sustained slowdown in
the first half of the year before showing signs of slight improvement in
the second half. Central banks in various countries have undertaken
differing monetary policies, with the US raising interest rates for the
first time in nearly a decade and ending the zero-interest rate era;
while the Eurozone and Japan seek to reinvigorate economic growth
through the expansion of quantitative easing programs. In China,
the equity markets experienced significant turmoil, economic growth
has slowed down and 2015 recorded GDP growth of 6.9%. In the
overall context of China’s desire to look for new economic growth
drivers, the Internet economy is contributing an increasing proportion
to China’s GDP growth, and plays an important role of “driving
information consumption and facilitating consumption growth”.

The Internet finance industry has gained increasing attention.
In November 2015, internet finance was included in the National
Five-year Plan for the first time, which clearly stated the need for
regulation of the development of internet finance. The 2015 China
Internet Finance Investment and Financing Analysis Report ( { ==
—HEFHPREHBHABTHRMEDITIRE) ) revealed that the internet
finance sector is developing rapidly, and the number of participants
in internet finance as well as its size in Mainland China also
continued to increase significantly. The scale of internet investment
and financing in 2015 increased over 600% as compared to the
previous year, of which the online peer-to-peer loan transactions
accounted for nearly 40% and was the most important segment
in internet finance. According to the data published by iResearch
(www.iresearch.com) and Wangdaizhijia (http://www.wdzj.com),
online third-party payment transaction volume is expected to reach
RMB11.9 trillion in 2015, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 47%. P2P loan transaction volume reached
RMB982.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 289%.
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In 2015, following the tide of reforms in the internet finance sector,
Credit China as an industry frontrunner has successfully transformed
its traditional finance business to internet finance business in just
three years, adhering to the stated strategic transformation strategy
along the way. Despite facing fluctuations and challenges of the
internet finance industry, the Group has once again delivered
solid results and performance, offering innovative and broadening
products and services for our online third-party payment and
P2P platforms, building a sustainable internet finance business
ecosystem for our users, and achieving a revenue contribution ratio
of approximately 60% from the internet finance business. Meanwhile,
we accelerated the pace of strategic business development and
seized the “Internet+” market opportunities, enabling us to become
one of the leading internet finance companies in China. In addition,
the Group has successfully raised approximately HK$1.6 billion in
capital, which further consolidated the Group’s capital strength and
laid a solid capital foundation for future strategic development. The
above encouraging results had fully demonstrated that our business
transformation strategy have made significant achievements. We
believe that after the three years of innovation and growth since
2013, China’s internet finance industry would enjoy a fruitful year in
2016.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all our clients, investors, business partners and social
communities for their continuous support for Credit China, and to all
of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication to achieve our
strategic goals and mission!

Li Mingshan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

"*EEJE*T B2 AT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

2015 was a milestone year for Credit China and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) in which we fully upgraded our overall
strategies and attained rapid business growth. Confronted with
the challenging external environment and competitive industry
landscape, the Group overcame numerous difficulties and
challenges, adhered to our core business transformation strategy,
successfully completed the establishment of our internet finance
ecosystem upon the foundation of our traditional finance business
and maintained a positive and stable development momentum.

Currently, the traditional finance system in China is unable to satisfy
the investment and financing demands of medium, small and micro-
size enterprises and individual consumers, and internet peer-to-
peer (“P2P”) lending has emerged as an efficient complementary to
traditional bank financing. The transaction volume of internet P2P
lending in China reached the trilion-mark in 2015, representing
an over three-fold year-on-year increase, but it still only accounts
for approximately 3% of current non-bank financial assets in
China. In 2015, the number of internet P2P loan investors reached
approximately 6 million, representing a four-fold increase as
compared to 2014, but represents less than 1% of the total internet
users in China, implying sustainable and significant growth potential
in the internet P2P lending market. Following the introduction of
detailed regulations for the internet finance, Credit China as a leading
player will seize this opportunity when the industry is entering a
consolidation phase.

Operational Highlights

In the context of rapid growth in China’s online third party payment
and internet P2P lending markets, Credit China’s portfolio of internet
finance platforms achieved outstanding operational performance and
industry-leading scale:

° The total transaction value of our online third party payment
service exceeded Renminbi (“RMB”) 100 billion for 2015,
representing an approximate year-on-year six-fold increase as
compared to 2014;

° The number of accumulated registered users, exceeded 6
million while the number of accumulated active users was
nearly 2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 268%
as compared to 2014;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

(Continued)

Operational Highlights (Continued)

° The total transaction volume on our online P2P platforms
recorded a substantial increase in 2015, of which the total
transaction value of First House Loan and Financial Workshop
was RMB14.1 billion and RMB8.7 billion respectively,
representing a seven-fold and seventeen-fold year-on-year
increase respectively.

° The total transaction value of First P2P amounted to RMB70
billion,
which leaped into top three position of the P2P industry by
transaction volume within two years after its inception.

representing a nine-fold year-on-year increase,

Overall Financial Highlights

As of 31 December 2015, the proportion of the Group’s internet
finance business income increased to 56%, of which online third
party payment service income increased by 111.2% to RMB128.1
million and P2P loan service income increased by 353.4% to
RMB112.5 million. In our traditional finance business, interest income
decreased by 16.6% to RMB146.4 million and financial consultancy
service income decreased by 43.5% to RMB37.6 million. Total
turnover of the Group increased by 14.8% to RMB429.6 million.

In 2015, the Group achieved a net profit attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB85.6 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 47.1%. Basic earnings per share was RMB2.55 cents, an increase
of RMBO0.7 cent or 37.8% when compared to last year.

Strategic Highlights

Credit China has commenced its strategic transition since 2013
and entered into the online third party payment business by the end
of 2013. Subsequently in 2014, the Group actively expanded into
the P2P loan service platform business built on the integration and
development of the third party payment business, acquired a 100%
interest of “Financial Workshop”, including a website (www.9888.cn)
and a mobile application and invested in “First P2P”, a leading P2P
investment platform in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

"*EEJE*T B2 5 AT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

(Continued)

Strategic Highlights (Continued)

In the first half of 2015, the Group established strategic cooperation
partnerships with leading enterprises in sizable supply chains such
as Fivestar Holdings Group Co., Ltd. and Aisidi Co., Ltd., and set
up joint ventures successively to source high quality borrowers by
leveraging on the big data analysis of downstream and upstream
enterprises within the supply chain system.

In November 2015, the Group reached an agreement to acquire a
35% equity interest in Genesis Business Holdings Limited, expanding
its mobile payment service for small and micro business merchants.
In December 2015, the Group announced the establishment of
a fully-owned investment vehicle to identify and make strategic
investments in best-of-breed internet companies for diversifying the
sources of revenue, and seized the “internet financing+” market
opportunities.

In January 2016, the Group announced the acquisition of an indirect
51% equity interest in RIIEIRAK TEHE B R A F (Shenzhen
Qiyuan Tianxia Technology Company Limited*) (“Qiyuan Tianxia”) for
expanding its business into the mobile gaming sector. Such moves
could bring synergistic benefits for the online third party payment
platform of the Group and strengthen the profitability of the Group.

In terms of balance sheet management, the Group successfully
raised approximately Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") 1.6 billion from the
capital markets, which further strengthened the capital strength
of the Group and provided a solid capital foundation for its future
strategic development.

During the year, the Group has completed the following significant
transactions:

(a) Acquisition of a 10% equity interest in First

P2P

On 12 January 2015, Ever Step Holdings Limited (“Ever Step”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
acquisition agreement to acquire a 10% equity interest in First
P2P at a consideration of RMB50.0 million, later diluted to
9.1% in August 2015. The transaction was completed on 27
January 2015.

*for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B A

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (¥BOBEERRE =&
(Continued)
Strategic Highlights (Continued) BB 1 E ()

(a) Acquisition of a 10% equity interest in First (a) HEE—PPZ10%/ZH (&)

P2P (Continued)

First P2P is a leading P2P investment platform in China. The
principal business of First P2P is operating a P2P platform
for internet financing with collaterised assets. The business
offerings are conducted via multiple channels, including a
website (FirstP2P.com/4815 ¥ 8f) and a mobile application
under the “First P2P” (‘481 22 81”) brand.

(b) Acquisition of a 100% equity interest in jt 5 5

Elfls HEER# B R a (Beijing Phoenix Credit
Management Corporation) (“Beijing Phoenix”)

On 11 August 2014, Wanjun Hangzhou Venture Capital

—P2PRH EEEPPIREF A
—PPrEBEKAUCKBEELER
AR EPPE R ZEBRBEIIAE—
PoP ] (T2 ]) RmiE BB ERL
(FirstP2P.com, B2 8 ) kR F#EAREN
ERZZERE#TT-

(b) WEIFEEREREEERHERL

A ([IFEE])Z100%5K #

R-E—

MENAR+—B ARE2EM

Management Company Limited (“Wanjun”), a wholly-owned BRARIER (MM BIEREEEGR NG
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition (B DI —HhUBERZE UREBEARE
agreement to acquire a 100% equity interest in Beijing Phoenix 50,000,0007C3% @A B 1 & L L R B R

through structured contracts at a consideration of RMB50.0
million. The transaction was completed on 28 January 2015.

The principal business of Beijing Phoenix is operating an online

Z100% R E-ZRXHER_FT—HF— A

—+N\HEK-

EtRBERzTEXBKAEEN LPPRE

P2P lending business. Moving forward, this P2P portal will EiGoRH WPPFIF R EEH TR
primarily focus on offering internet financing with collaterised REWERSHBEENIHHERE - ZEB

financial assets. The business offerings are conducted via

REDUITERIS | mE BEREHMK

multiple channels, including a website (www.9888.cn: & &t T (www.9888.cn : £ gl T35 ) R F#EARER
%) and a mobile application under the “Financial Workshop” EANZZERBHETT-

(“4 8t T35 brand.

(c) Acquisition of a 49% equity interest in ;& &

Y E /BB E R4 A (Hainan Pioneer
Internet Microfinance Limited) (“Hainan
Pioneer”)

On 11 August 2014, Wanjun entered into an acquisition
agreement to acquire a 49% equity interest in Hainan Pioneer
at a consideration of RMB49.0 million. The transaction was
completed on 20 March 2015.

(c)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

(Continued)

Strategic Highlights (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of a 49% equity interest in ;&

(d)

(e)

TEEEH S/ BEE 3 F IR 4\ A (Hainan Pioneer
Internet Microfinance Limited) (“Hainan
Pioneer”) (Continued)

The principal businesses of Hainan Pioneer include not only
providing financing services to small and medium-sized
enterprises and individuals within the Hainan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), but has the licence to
offer small loans to enterprises and individuals nation-wide via
internet, which differs from the traditional micro finance lending
licence which is limited in geographically.

Acquisition of a 51% equity interest in #f ;I 5%
H B EEEE R, d (Zhejiang Rongniu Capital
Management Company Limited (“Zhejiang
Rongniu”)

On 27 May 2015, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest
in the registered capital of Zhejiang Rongniu, a company
established in the PRC, at a consideration of RMB18.0 million,
which was satisfied in cash. The principal business of Zhejiang
Rongniu is providing online financing services to individual
investors in the PRC.

Disposal of a 66.25% equity interest in _L ;& ££
ZITRELAIE SR B RL A (Shanghai Feng
Zhi Xing Automotive Financial Information
Services Ltd.) (“Shanghai Feng Zhi Xing”)

On 9 June 2015, the Group disposed of its 66.25% equity
interest in Shanghai Feng Zhi Xing at a consideration of
RMB44.0 million. The Group’s equity interest in Shanghai Feng
Zhi Xing was consequently reduced from 80.0% to 13.75%
and further diluted to 11.0% and was reclassified from being a
subsidiary to an available-for-sale investment.

*for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

(Continued)

Strategic Highlights (Continued)

() Disposal of the remaining 15% equity interest

in Measure Up International Limited (“Measure
Up’)
On 5 March 2015, Ever Step, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of the remaining 15% equity interest in Measure
Up at a consideration of RMB1.06 million. The transaction
was completed on 20 March 2015. Upon the completion, the
Group ceased operating a lease financing business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group reported revenue
of approximately RMB429.6 million, an increase of 14.8% as
compared to approximately RMB374.1 million in 2014. The growth
in revenue was mainly attributable to strong growth in our online third
party payment service income and P2P loan service income.

Entrusted loan and other loan income

Entrusted loan and other loan income includes interest income,
financial consultancy service income and a gain on the transfer of
rights on interests on loan receivables, which were derived from the
Group’s loan financing services, including entrusted loans, pawn
loans and other loans secured with pledged assets or guarantees.
It generated 43.8% of the Group’s total revenue and recorded an
increase of 6.9% to approximately RMB188.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 as compared to approximately RMB176.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Micro-loan income

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s interest income
and financial consultancy service income derived from micro-loan
services decreased significantly to approximately RMBO0.7 million as
compared to approximately RMB105.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2014. The significant decline was mainly due to the
disposal of a traditional micro-loan finance business in Chongging,
the PRC in December 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Online third party payment service income

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s online third
party payment business, which included the provision of payment
transactions, payment system consultancy and other services,
generated 29.8% of the Group’s total revenue, and increased 93.2%
to approximately RMB128.1 million as compared to approximately
RMB66.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

P2P loan consultancy service income

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s P2P
loan consultancy service income business recorded revenue of
approximately RMB112.5 million, representing 26.2% of the Group’s
total revenue. The P2P loan consultancy service income business
mainly includes the provision of services in relation to internet
housing loan services, automobile loan services and the operation of
a P2P financing website and a mobile application with collateralized
financial assets (www.9888.cn: & &2 T #5) which started to contribute
to the Group’s revenue in April 2014, May 2014 and February 2015,
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the income
contributed by the P2P loan consultancy services in relation to
internet housing loan services, the P2P financing website and mobile
application with collateralized financial assets were approximately
RMB70.1 million and RMB33.2 million, respectively (In 2014:
approximately RMB17.3 million and nil, respectively).

Interest expenses

The Group’s interest expenses mainly comprised interest due on
bank loans, Hong Kong dollar-denominated corporate bonds, Hong
Kong dollar-denominated convertible bonds and other borrowings.
The Group’s interest expenses increased 9.9% to approximately
RMB101.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 from
approximately RMB92.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. As at 31 December 2015, the Group increased its bank
borrowings and other borrowings by 166.9% to approximately
RMB1,313.7 million as compared to approximately RMB492.2 million
as at 31 December 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly comprised convertible bond
interest income, bank interest income and government grants. The
Group’s other income increased 29.8% to approximately RMB24.4
million for the year end 31 December 2015 from approximately
RMB18.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. This was
because the Group’s bank interest income increased as a result of
increase in average bank balance — trust account for online third
party payment services for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses primarily
comprised salaries and staff welfare, rental expenses, legal and
professional fees, sales and marketing related expenses and
impairment on loan receivables. The Group’s administrative and
other operating expenses remained at the same level, being
approximately RMB200.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 compared to approximately RMB189.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Share-based payment expenses

Share-based payment expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB43.9 million (2014:
approximately RMB4.8 million). On 8 June 2015 and 11 December
2015, the Company granted share options under its share option
scheme to certain eligible grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
36,550,000 and 92,920,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Shares”).

Profit for the year

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB85.6 million,
representing an increase of 47.1% as compared to approximately
RMB58.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
increase was mainly due to a significant increase in turnover of
approximately RMB55.5 million and a gain on the disposal of a
subsidiary of RMB42.1 million, despite an increase in share-based
payment expenses of RMB39.2 million.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES FOR 2016

Looking forward to 2016, the macroeconomic environment continues
to be intricate and complex with challenges and opportunities, and
the global economy will continue to go through a period of deep-
rooted structural adjustments. However, as the internet economy
is playing an increasingly important role in the structural reform of
China’s economy, the Group is full of confidence and hope regarding
the industry prospects and the Group’s performance in 2016.

In 2016, the Group will continue to place equal emphasis on
promoting business innovation and risk management improvement
when pursuing the development of internet finance business as
our core strategy. We shall keep up with the pace of regulatory
development, adapt proactively to the regulations of the policy
framework, and vigorously improve the functions and compliance of
the internet finance business ecosystem (such as our P2P platforms:
First House Loan, Financial Workshop and First P2P), and focus on
developing innovative online-to-offline product and service offerings
to further expand more development opportunities in the P2P
market.

As for the third party payment business, the Group will continue
the research and development of new business models as well as
the strategy for user acquisition, promoting the extraction, analysis
and application of big data on our platforms by exploring business
opportunities in the internet segment and various commercial
scenarios, whereby these will provide our users with a one-stop
intelligent financial lifestyle service platform and establish a unique
competitive edge to achieve the diversification of profit models, with
the ultimate goal of driving sustainable profit growth and providing
our shareholders with stable returns in the long run.

After its inception and formative years in 2013 and 2014, the
internet finance industry in China has entered the era of competition
for development capital in 2015. With the gradual implementation
of regulatory policies on internet finance, under the backdrop of
“Internet +” movement and “Do Business Creatively and Drive
Innovation”, the scale and volume of the internet finance sector will
continue its sustainable growth track. In view of this, the Group will
adhere to the vision of “developing through competition, improving
through innovation”, capture market opportunities, actively facilitate
internal coordination, attracting outstanding human capital, and
provide our users with around-the-clock, highly efficient intelligent
financial lifestyle services, making their financial lifestyle more simple
and convenient. We believe that with the unwavering cooperation
and dedication of our staff, Credit China will achieve a brighter and
more prosperous future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s source
of funds was mainly from cash generated from operations, new
borrowings, issue of corporate bonds and convertible bonds and
share issuance. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank
balances and cash of approximately RMB615.0 million (31 December
2014 approximately RMB265.5 million), of which approximately
78.6%, 2.2% and 19.2% were denominated in RMB, US dollars and
HKD respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interest-bearing
borrowings, which mainly comprised corporate bonds, convertible
bonds, bank borrowings and other borrowings, amounting
to approximately RMB1,313.7 million (31 December 2014:
approximately RMB492.2 million). The gearing ratio, representing the
ratio of total borrowings to total assets of the Group, was 0.27 as at
31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: 0.18).

BORROWINGS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

The Group had approximately RMB843.6 million in borrowings or
bank overdrafts as at 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately
RMB288.4 million).

INDEBTEDNESS AND CHARGE ON
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had long term borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB150.0 million (2014: Nil) and short
term borrowings amounting to approximately RMB693.6 million
(2014: approximately RMB288.4 million), of which approximately
RMB232.5 million was interest-bearing at floating rates, and secured
by the investment property of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB574.0 million (2014: approximately RMB575.0
million). The remaining borrowings amounting to approximately
RMB594.5 million were unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates.
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INDEBTEDNESS AND CHARGE ON
ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had long term unsecured
corporate bonds in an aggregate principal amount of approximately
RMB60.0 million (2014: approximately RMB203.8 million) short term
unsecured corporate bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
approximately RMB173.7 million (2014: Nil), and had a three-year
convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300
million, which are due on 15 June 2018 and carry interest at a fixed
rate of 6% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

On 12 February 2015 and 6 July 2015, the Company completed the
issue of HK$10 million and HK$10 million 5.5% per annum bonds
due 2022 pursuant to a placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Orient Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (as placing
agent) on 11 September 2014. On 15 June 2015, the Company
issued three-year convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$300 million, which bear interest at a rate of 6% per annum
payable semi-annually (the “2015 Convertible Bonds”). The 2015
Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of the bondholders
into Shares from 29 June 2015 to the close of business on the
date falling 10 days prior to the maturity date, at a price of HK$2.6
per Share, subject to adjustments. Assuming full conversion of the
2015 Convertible Bonds at the initial conversion price of HK$2.60
per Share, the 2015 Convertible Bonds will be convertible into
115,384,615 Conversion Shares. There was no conversion or
redemption of the 2015 Convertible Bonds during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (continued) EEFE (@
Issue of convertible bonds 4T ?& H?L E&H
On 15 June 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds in the AATR-ZE—RENATHBIKRABRKRES

principal amount of HK$300,000,000 at 100% of the principal
amount of the convertible bonds. Assuming that there is full
conversion of the convertible bonds at the initial conversion price
of HK$2.60 per share, the convertible bonds will be convertible
into 115,384,615 shares (subject to adjustments as set out in the
conditions for issue of the convertible bonds). The net proceeds
from the issue of the convertible bonds, after deduction of related
expenses, was approximately HK$299 million. The net proceeds
have been fully utilised by the Group for general working capital
purposes.

For illustrative purposes, set out below is the shareholding structure
of the Company () as at the date of the announcement of the issue
of the convertible bonds (the “Announcement”) dated 11 May 2015
and (i) immediately after full conversion of the convertible bonds
at the initial conversion price (assuming that there is no change in
the issued share capital of the Company other than the issue of the
conversion shares since the date of the Announcement up to the
date of the full conversion of the convertible bonds nor any change in
the shareholdings as described below):

& %52100% %17 78 & %8 £A300,000,0007% 7T
ZABMBRES - BRUBRRESFRV L ERE

FRR260B T BB ER R RRESFHER R
115,384,615 AR 7 (Pl HREE (TR E S 2 &1+
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As at the date of Immediately after full conversion of
the Announcement the convertible bonds
RAEBH RRERBEATERESE
No. of Approx. No. of Approx.
Name of Shareholders REEE e Shares held % Shares held %
F#HEZ F#EZ
idhE 4E BaEM BHEE BaEstt
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin RARET KA 717,536,000 2218 717,536,000 21.41
Ms. So Naoko® So NaokoZ& £@ 211,790,000 6.55 211,790,000 6.32
Shanghai Xinhua Publishing LBHERTEE
Group Limited BRAA
("Xinhua Publishing”)® ([FERT]) 336,222,400 10.39 336,222,400 10.03
Mr. Ting Pang Wan, Raymond® T H§Z L4 341,500,000 10.55 341,500,000 10.19
Mr. Yam Tak Cheung® EEE L LS 223,825,600 6.92 223,825,600 6.68
Others: Hith:
Subscriber REEH - - 115,384,615 3.44
Public ’“i%'i/\i' 1,404,772,000 43.41 1,404,772,000 41,92
Total FE 3,235,646,000 100 3,351,030,615 100
g 2015 pEgarrasray 20
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Issue of convertible bonds (Continued)

Notes:

M

21

Of these Shares, 21,736,000 Shares were held by Mr. Zhang Zhenxin
beneficially, 677,800,000 Shares by First Pay Limited (the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Mr. Zhang) and 18,000,000
Shares by Ms. Zhang Xiaomin, who is the wife of Mr. Zhang. Therefore,
Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in these Shares under the
SFO.

These Shares were held by Silver Paragon Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Ms. So Naoko. Therefore, Ms. So
was deemed to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

These Shares were held by Jiefang Media (UK) Co. Limited. Jiefang
Media (UK) Co. Limited was wholly-owned by Xinhua Publishing which
was in turn owned by Shanghai United Media Group and its associates
as to approximately 50.8% and Shanghai Greenland Group Company
Limited as to approximately 39%. Therefore, under the SFO, Xinhua
Publishing was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Jiefang Media (UK) Co. Limited, and each of Shanghai United Media
Group and Shanghai Greenland Group Company Limited were deemed
to be interested in all the Shares which Xinhua Publishing was deemed
to be interested in.

Of these Shares, 20,490,000 Shares were held by Mr. Ting Pang
Wan, Raymond beneficially and 321,010,000 Shares by Kaiser Capital
Holdings Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was owned
by Mr. Ting. Therefore, Mr. Ting was deemed to be interested in these
Shares under the SFO.

These Shares were held by Integrated Asset Management (Asia)
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was owned by Mr. Yam
Tak Cheung. Therefore, Mr. Yam was deemed to be interested in these
Shares under the SFO.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (continued)

To raise additional funds for the Group’s general working capital
purposes and/or for the purpose of financing future business
development, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
Sheng Yuan Securities Limited (“Sheng Yuan”) (as placing agent) on
29 June 2015. The placing was completed on 9 July 2015 by issuing
94,112,000 placing shares at HK$1.70 each and the Company
raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$160 million. The
Company has fully utilized the net proceeds for the Group’s general
working capital purposes. On 22 October 2015, another placing was
completed by issuing 265,128,000 placing shares at HK$1.95 each
and the Company raised gross proceed of approximately HK$517
million. The Company has fully utilized the net proceeds and applied
them for general working capital purposes and for the purpose of
acquisition of a 10% equity interest in Genesis Business Holdings
Limited. The third placing was completed on 2 December 2015
by issuing 280,324,000 placing shares at HK$2.10 each and the
Company raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$589 million.
The Company has fully utilized the net proceeds and applied them
for general working capital purposes.

During the year under review, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

During the year, the Group has completed the following important
transactions:

On 28 January 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
in Beijing Phoenix through structured contracts at a consideration
of RMB50.8 million, which was satisfied in cash. Beijing Phoenix is
operating an online P2P lending business and focuses on offering
internet financing with collaterised financial assets.

On 20 March 2015, the Group acquired a 49% equity interest in
Hainan Pioneer at a consideration of RMB49.0 million, which was
satisfied in cash. Hainan Pioneer is providing financing services to
small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals in the PRC.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES (continued)

On 27 May 2015, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest in
Zhejiang Rongniu at a cash consideration of RMB18.0 million.
Zhejiang Rongniu is providing online financing services to individual
investors in the PRC.

On 9 June 2015, the Group disposed of a 66.25% equity interest in
Shanghai Feng Zhi Xing at a consideration of RMB44.0 million. The
Group’s equity interest in Shanghai Feng Zhi Xing was consequently
reduced from 80% to 13.75% and further diluted to 11.0% and
was reclassified from being a subsidiary to an available-for-sale
investment.

Other than disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group has
entered into the following important transactions:

(a) Agreement to acquire a 51% equity
interest in Spring Reliance Limited (the
“Target”)

On 29 January 2016, the Group entered into an agreement
with the Target and its existing shareholder in relation to
the acquisition of a 51% interest in the Target which owns,
amongst other subsidiaries, Qiyuan Tianxia. Pursuant to
the agreement, (i) the Group conditionally agreed to acquire
43.5% and subscribe for 7.5% of the enlarged equity interests
in the Target upon completion of the above acquisition of
the Target and all its subsidiaries (including Qiyuan Tianxia)
at considerations of RMB174,000,000 for the acquisition of
shares and RMB30,000,000 for the subscription of shares; and
(i) the consideration amounting to RMB174,000,000 shall be
settled by the payment of RMB55,000,000 in cash and by the
issue of 51,150,640 consideration Shares.

The transaction has not yet been completed to date.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 February 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES (continued)

(b) Supplemental agreement to the sale
and purchase agreement in relation to
acquisition of a 35% equity interest in
Genesis Business

On 24 February 2016, a supplemental agreement was entered
into between the Group and the relevant parties to amend and
supplement certain terms on the sale and purchase agreement
for the Genesis Business Acquisition (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) as disclosed in note 49 to the financial information
of this report, mainly for the following:

a)

The Genesis Business Acquisition is no longer for a total
of 35% equity interests in Genesis Business. Instead,
the Group has conditionally agreed to purchase 100%
equity interests in Genesis Business which has an indirect
interest of 35% in /BRI EEERITREER A A
(Shanghai Jifu Xinxi Jishu Fuwu Co., Ltd.*) (“OPCQO”)
through structured contracts, without voting control
and consolidation of OPCO and its subsidiaries. The
Group’s indirect interest in OPCO upon completion of the
acquisition under such structured contracts will still be
35%. Previously, the Group will have voting control over
OPCO and its subsidiaries and to account for them as its
subsidiaries and to consolidate them into accounts upon
completion of the Genesis Business Acquisition.

The Supplemental Agreement also cancels the put option
granted to the Group for the vendors, being beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Genesis
Business and independent third parties, to sell all or part
of their shareholding in Genesis Business, exercisable for
the period from 1 January 2017 to 30 June 2017.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 November 2015, 26 November 2015
and 24 February 2016.

*for identification purpose only
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS AND
EXPECTED SOURCES OF FUNDING

Save as disclosed under “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this report, there was no specific plan for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2015.

EXAREJEFAEERAFNEER
iR Z KRR 5 E

R-F-RET-A=+—0 BRARE [EE
BIHENN] FRBEN BEEAREREAR
AEZABIE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HAEE
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant contingent W-ZE—AF+_-_A=+—H AEBELTEEK
liabilities (2014: Nil). FRBBE(ZZE—HF &|) -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS B AR
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had the following capital MW-ZT—HAFE+_-_A=+—H KEBFEUTE
commitments: AAEHE
2015 2014
“E-4afF —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBF T
Capital expenditure contracted but not BHLATIHE ZERTA
provided for in respect of: BRBEZERRAY:
Acquisition of plant and equipment s & & B 4,011 5,771
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE 4 BE 21 Bex

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
For the operations in Hong Kong, most of the transactions are
denominated in HKD and U.S. dollars. The exchange rate of U.S.
dollars against HKD is relatively stable and the related currency
exchange risk is considered minimal. For the operations in Mainland
China, most of the transactions are denominated in RMB. Given the
level of depreciation of RMB against HKD during the year ended
31 December 2015, no financial instrument was used for hedging
purposes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of HKD against
RMB as certain of its bank balances are denominated in HKD
which is not the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
The Group has not made other arrangement to hedge against the
exchange rate risk. However, the Directors and management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
utilizing applicable derivatives to hedge out the exchange risk when
necessary.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluations of the financial conditions of
its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Directors closely monitor
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding
requirements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 267 staff and
6 contractors (2014: 255 staff and 5 contractors). Total staff costs
(including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB80.5
million and total share options benefit to contractors were
RMB26.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB81.2 milion and RMB1.4 million, respectively). Remuneration
is determined by reference to the market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees.
Year-end bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other
benefits include contributions to a statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme and social insurance together with housing provident
funds for its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC, respectively.

The Group operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible directors, employees
and contractors of the Group, who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

i%&m REEB2BEFS

. 3 / o\

‘fh‘@h aln
Mr. Li Mingshan Mr. Phang Yéw Kiat Mr. Chng Swee Ho Mr. Sheng Jia
FHRALEE BB E HEELEE BiEXE
Chairman and Vice-chairman, Executive Director Executive Director
Non-executive Director Chief Executive Officer and ~ #i{TE %= HWITER
FERIERITES Executive Director

BlEE BERNTER

BITES

Mr. Li Gang Mr. Wong Sai Hung Mr. Zhang Zhenxin Ms. Zhou Youmeng
Z k& HittiERE 5t % T ot & BAXxBx+t
Non-executive Director Non-executive Director Non-executive Director Non-executive Director
FEMITES FEMITES FEMITES FEMITES

Mr. Ge Ming Dr. Ou Minggang Mr. Wang Wei Dr. Yin Zhongli
ERLEE X BA M 1+ FHEE FrhiuEt
Independent Non-executive  Independent Non-executive  Independent Non-executive  Independent Non-executive
Director Director Director Director

BUEMITES BUEMITES BUEMITES BUEMITES
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Mr. Li Mingsh
FHLXE

an

EERESNEEBZERFE

DIRECTORS £%

Chairman and Non-executive Director TE RIEHITE S

Mr. Li Mingshan (£ 4%) , aged 63, was appointed as the Chairman and Non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 July 2014. Mr. Li has been a Director of Sinovel
Wind Group Co.,Ltd." (8B E R (£E) Ikt BR A F]) (SSE Code: 601558) since
February 2015. Mr. Li is a senior economist and has around 21 years of management
experience in the securities industry. Mr. Li graduated from East China Normal University
as a post-graduate with a major in global economics in May 1998 and obtained a
Master’'s degree in Business Administration from Asia International Open University
(Macau) in September 2000. Mr. Li was previously the Vice General Manager of Shanghai
Shenyin Securities Company ( E/8 B RE 5 A7), the predecessor of Shenyin &
Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. ( BRIk BB E# KM AR A F) from January 1993 to June
1996 and the Vice General Manager of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. from June
1996 to March 1998. Mr. Li was also the Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange from March 1998 to May 2001. During the period from May 2001 to March
2014, Mr. Li was the General Manager and an Executive Director of Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd.*# (Stock Code: 6837/SSE Code: 600837) being in charge of the overall
management of its operations. Mr. Li was a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of
Haitong International Securities Group Limited (previously known as Taifook Securities
Group Limited) from January 2010 to April 2011 and was also the Chairman of Haitong
International Holdings Limited from August 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Li was a director of
Fullgoal Fund Management Co., Ltd. from 2005 until August 2014.

ZPILEE B3 R _E-—NELA+BEZTARRR 2T ERIEHNTES-
FREBZT—AF_AESERTEHRENF (KRB RNERAA ( LEEHFN
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T F-AEASBERIERERARZER FTAEB ST AFRE-_T N
FNAEAEHRESEBERARIZES

a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
e a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
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Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
BB E

DIRECTORS (Continued) = 55 ()

Vice-chairman, Chief Executive Officer and

Executive Director 8| £ EEHITERHITES

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat (¢t %) , aged 47, was appointed as the Deputy Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company on 23 December 2013 and a Co-Chairman
of the Company on 17 March 2014. Mr. Phang has been the Vice-chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 7 July 2014 and has been appointed as
an Authorized Representative of the Company since 18 September 2014. Mr. Phang has
been a Co-Chairman of Deer Creek Advisors Private Office for the Asia-Pacific Region
since July 2012 and has obtained over 21 years of experience in the banking and finance
industry and served in senior management positions at various financial institutions.

Mr. Phang was the Principal Director of the Standard Chartered Private Bank during
January 2011 to June 2012. In June 2009, Mr. Phang was appointed as the General
Manager for SME businesses for Standard Chartered Bank Singapore and Malaysia.
In 2005, Mr. Phang was a founding member (as the senior representative of Standard
Chartered Bank) of China Bohai Bank in the PRC and acted as an Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of China Bohai Bank from 2006 to 2009, with full
responsibilities for the consumer banking business (including both personal and SME
businesses). Mr. Phang obtained a Master’'s degree in Business and Administration
in International Business from the University of Bristol in June 1995, and a Bachelor’s
degree of Engineering in Microelectronic Systems Engineering from the faculty of
Technology of the University of Manchester in July 1993. Over the past 10 years, Mr.
Phang has also attended executive education training at world leading business schools
— Harvard Business School, Stanford Business School, Columbia Business School and
INSEAD.
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Mr. Chng Swee Ho
HIEREE

EERESNEEBZERFE

DIRECTORS (continued) Eg (4)

Executive Director (Continued) #{TE = (&)

Mr. Chng Swee Ho (I ZE £ 4£) , aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 17 March 2014. He was also appointed as the Compliance Officer
of the Company on 18 September 2014. Mr. Chng has been an Independent Director of
Beiqi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.* (SSE Code: 600166) since December 2014. Mr. Chng has
also been the Greater China managing partner of A.T. Kearney since 2012. Mr. Chng
has obtained 24 years’ experience in consulting, investment and banking and provided
advisory services to clients from a wide range of financial sectors in North America,
Europe and more than 10 countries in Asia. Mr. Chng was a partner of Bain & Company,
Inc. during 2007 to 2011 and was a partner of The Boston Consulting Group, Greater
China during 2003 to 2006. Mr. Chng obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from
Nanyang Technological University of Singapore in May 1992.

HREEE 475 RS- NEZ AT LABEZIALRRIZHITESR -HITR=-F
—OFNATNBEZEAARRIZAREF - HEEB S —OF+ZAUKRAL
AREAERMARAR (LEFEHFRTE600166) 2BUESE - H LA T —ZF
ARINAAT. KearneyZ KR EREBEILZE B A o HALERER RERRITEBHFEER
245488 WAKNIEE BUNEEMETHE R 2RTE 22T P REREF R
HAEAER T+ FE -T——FHH ABain & Company, Inc.ZABARRKR-_ZEZ
—FE - TTXNFHRB B AThe Boston Consulting Group KR ER 2 A B A - H AR
—AN—FRAEFNEmFBEIABEESHELBM-

s a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS (continued) EE (#&)

Executive Director (Continued) #{TE = (&)

Mr. Sheng Jia (B¢ {5 %) , aged 35, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 23 December 2013. Mr. Sheng has been the Chief Executive Officer of
China Net Credit Finance Group Limited since July 2013. Mr. Sheng is also an advisor
of Shanghai Liketry.com of Shanghai Liketry Internet Information Technology Holdings
Co., Limited”, a company co-founded by him. Mr. Sheng has extensive experience in
design, research and development of web search and related products, and has over 7

S years’ experience in leading global search infrastructure teams in renowned multinational
y - software companies. Mr. Sheng was appointed as the product manager of Google Inc.
‘ in 2010 and was responsible for the global product search and product infrastructure

Mr. Sheng Jia business. Mr. Sheng was one of the founders of Yunrang (Beijing) Information Technology
BEiEXSE Limited”, which was established in 2010.

Mr. Sheng obtained a Master’s degree in Computer Science from University of Toronto
in 2005, and a Bachelor’'s degree of Computer Science and Technology from Tsinghua
University in 2002.

BEEE B N =F+ A+ =BEBEERARRRIZHITES BELEH
TR L ARARTREACEREEERARZERATE - BEENA—HEBKE
Fel# s Afl EESMEABBEERMROHERARETSHMB 2B - B EERE
BERREEER 2R IMETEREEELR URRBEAZR G AR Z2IRE
S REREBER T EREATFLR BRAEEN T - FEZE AGoogle Inc.
ERKEE BEEHRERERNEREREBER BRAERR_ZE—ZSFKIZE
i%a(:H:ELME.WHTTIEIZEAﬂZEJ#ﬂ#/\Z—C’

BAEENR_ZEENFEZRERBERTEMMBRBETEBURN T _FREE
ARERERTERB BRI R B LB -
A the English translations of Chinese names or words are for information purpose only and

should not regard as the official English translation of such Chinese names or words.
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DIRECTORS (continued) EE (@)

Non-executive Director (Continued) IE H{TE = (&)

Mr. Li Gang (ZRBI%E %), aged 58, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 17 November 2014. Mr. Li has been a Chairman of Jilin Yongda Group Co.,
Ltd. (FMox KREBRD AR A F) * (SZSE Code: 002622.57 ) since 24 June 2015.

Mr. Li was a Non-executive Director and a member of the remuneration committee of the
board of directors of PCCW Limited* (Stock Code: 0008) from November 2011 to August
2014. Mr. Li was a Vice President of F BBt & @45 B =5 E AR A7) (China United
Network Communications Group Company Limited) from February 2009 to June 2014.
He is also a Director and Senior Vice President of China United Network Communications
Corporation Limited.

Mr. Li was a Vice President of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited* (“Unicom HK”) (Stock
Code: 762) from April 2006 to February 2009 and was a Senior Vice President of Unicom
HK from February 2009 to June 2014. From April 2006 to October 2008, he was an
Executive Director of Unicom HK. From August 1999 to December 2005, he was the
Vice-chairman, General Manager and Chairman of Guangdong Mobile Communication
Co., Limited and the Chairman and General Manager of Beijing Mobile Communication
Co., Limited. From May 2000 to December 2005, he was an Executive Director of China
Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Li joined A B & 48 4% i {5 S B A PR A & (China United
Network Communications Group Company Limited) in December 2005 and served as its
vice president.

Mr. Li holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Jinan University, PRC. He
has worked in the telecommunications industry for a long period of time and has deep
management experience.

ZRI%E S8 R NFE+— A+ tHEZTARRR ZIFNTESE - THER
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FHRERZEERNFNARE-_SETSNF ARG ETHEBERAEBE (BA)R
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* a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

. a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
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Mr. Wong Sal Hung
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Non-executive Director (Continued) IE H{TE = (&)

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (Ett# 5% 4), aged 60, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wong was an Executive Director of LW
Asset Management Advisors Limited, which is an investment management company
registered under the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong, from April 2013 to
April 2014. Mr. Wong has been a Director of One Asset Management Limited, a company
incorporated in Thailand, since 1992. Mr. Wong has also been the Chairman and a Non-
executive Director of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (formerly known
as China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited)* (Stock Code: 8158) since July 2009
and June 2008 respectively, and was re-designated from a Non-executive Director to an
Executive Director in January 2016. Mr. Wong has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd* (Stock Code: 2318)
since June 2013 and an Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited* (Stock Code: 0388) since 2003. Mr. Wong has also been an
Independent Non-executive Director of JPMorgan Chinese Investment Trust plc, which
is listed on the London Stock Exchange since 1 August 2014. Mr. Wong was a Non-
executive Director of ARN Investment SICAV, a company listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange, from June 2010 to January 2014. Mr. Wong was the Chief Executive Officer
of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited from 2008 to 2011. Mr. Wong
was also the Chief Executive Officer of BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a
joint venture between Bank of China International and Prudential of the United Kingdom,
during 2001 to 2005, and was the Regional Managing Director of Prudential Portfolio
Managers Asia during 1999 and 2000 when the joint venture started. In addition, he held
senior positions at LGT Asset Management from 1977 to 1998. Mr. Wong graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher Diploma in Business Studies in
October 1977.

L 60 R -T—NF A+ tBEZTAARRRZIFNTEST - TEAER
BT —=FNARE-_Z—NFNANEATNEN S ERBRHBRAT (RIEEH
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* a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Mr. Zhang Zhienxin
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Ms. Zhou Youmeng
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DIRECTORS (continued) §$ (#8)

Non-executive Director (Continued) I3 #1{T= = ()

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (5R#R# £ &) , aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 12 July 2015. He is currently one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of China UCF Group Co. Limited (FFBILi¥ & MEB AR A
7)) and is a Director of Shenzhen Keybridge Communications Co., Ltd. (&5 @5
MR AR A A]) + (SZSE Code: 002316). He was the General Manager of the business
and securities department of the Dalian Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.. He was
also the Chairman of Lianhe Chuangye Guarantee Group Co., Ltd." (Bt & B ¥ EREE
ABR/AF]) Mr. Zhang graduated from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in
the People’s Republic of China with a Master’s degree in economics.

BRI EE M5 R-Z—hAG AT _BRZAARRRZIERTES - FHEAX
RAEZEBERRZ—-

REAHERPHEEBECHEBARAFPZESR  MAFIIRBEARMBOAR A
A OREFERIE:002316) 2B F - R EHERREEBHFROAR D BIAE 2 & K4
KR BN EHEBAAXEREBARAAZESTR - RAEEFENHERILMERXR

8 YRESEESBE LTS

Ms. Zhou Youmeng (A& 8B &+), aged 52, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 11 December 2015. She obtained a master’s degree of
Business Administration (International) from The University of Hong Kong in 2004 and
a doctorate of Business Administration from Grenoble Ecole de Management in France
in 2013. Ms. Zhou was a General Manager of the Guangdong network branch of China
United Network Communications Group Co., Ltd. (BBt &84 BEEE AR AF)
(SSE Code: 600050) from July 2011 to May 2012 and was a General Manager of China
United Network Communications Group Co., Ltd in the Marketing Department from
May 2012 to December 20183. She has been a director, Vice-chairman and President of
Shenzhen Aisidi Co., LTD. CRIIT E hef@M i AR F) + (SZSE Code: 002416) since
January 2014.

Ms. Zhou is a recipient of the National May 1 Labour Medal in 1991 and was awarded
a subsidy by the State Council in 1993. She was certified as a Senior Communications
Engineer in 2006.

BAEBE%t 25 R-ZE—AF+ AT AEZERARAZIFNTES RN
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. a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange

A the English translations of Chinese names or words are for
information purpose only and should not regard as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words

& a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
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Mr. Ge Ming
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DIRECTORS (continued) EE (@)

Independent Non-executive Director B E#HITESE

Mr. Ge Ming (B 5t 4) , aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, the Chairman of the audit committee of the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board” and the “Audit Committee”, respectively) and a member of
each of the remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) on 18 September
2014. Mr. Ge is a Certified Public Accountant and a senior fellow of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ge is also a senior accountant as certified by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and an overseas member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants & Auditors. Mr. Ge graduated with a Master’s degree in Accountancy from
the Research Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance of the PRC, after his study
during the period from 1979 to 1982.

Mr. Ge has over 30 years of experience in the field of auditing and advisory services and
has assisted in the listing of various PRC companies on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ge has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China Ltd* (Stock code: 2318) since June 2015. Mr. Ge was a partner of Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP and retired from his position in August 2014. Mr. Ge also served as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Shunfeng Photovoltaic International Limited*
(Stock Code: 1165), from January 2011 to February 2013.

BREE B4 R_Z—NFENATN\AEZERARBZBIUIFATES AR
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a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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DIRECTORS (continued) §$ (#8)

Independent Non-executive Director B3I E#HITESE

Dr. Ou Minggang (EXFARBIf#E + ), aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 8 October 2015; and was
also appointed as the Chairman of Nomination Committee on 11 October 2015. He
is currently a director of International Finance Department and International Finance
Research Institute of China Foreign Affairs University and has been teaching in China
Foreign Affairs University since 2002. He was awarded a bachelor’s degree in Economics
from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics in 1989 and a Master’s degree
in Economics from Hunan Institute of Finance and Economics (now known as Hunan
University) in 1999. He obtained his Doctorate in Economics from the Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences in 2002. He was a visiting scholar of Brunel University London in 2011.

BXRABIE L - 4858 R —RAFTAN\BBZERRRRBZBEIINTESE UAKE
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Mr. Wang Wei
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DIRECTORS (continued) EE (@)

Independent Non-executive Director (Continued)
BIAFEHITESE (@)

Mr. Wang Wei ( E£5E %) , aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 7 July 2014. Mr. Wang is the Chairman of the China
Mergers & Acquisitions Association (CMAA), the Chinese Museum of Finance and the China M&A
Group. Mr. Wang has been an Independent Director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd.” (SSE Code:
600649) since May 2011, Hua Yuan Property Co., Ltd* (SSE Code: 600743) since November 2014
and Lifan Industry (Group) Co., Ltd* (SSE Code: 601777) since December 2010. Mr. Wang is also
an independent director of Neusoft Group Co., Ltd* (SSE Code: 600718).

Mr. Wang has organized and supervised IPO underwritings for over 40 Chinese companies in both
domestic and overseas markets. He is a financial consultant on restructuring, financing, M&A and
IPO for many leading companies in China. Mr. Wang had worked in many leading organizations and
corporations such as the World Bank. Mr. Wang also serves as the economic advisor for several
ministerial and provincial governments in the PRC.

Mr. Wang obtained a Master’s degree in Economics in the PRC and a Doctor of Philosophy in
Economics from Fordham University in the United States. An author of many books, journals,
articles and a well-known lecturer, he has given seminars and lectures in many universities.

Mr. Wang’s excellence has been recognized by the public and he has received a number of awards,
including the 2012 M&A Lifetime Achievement Award from M&A Advisor LLC in New York.
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s a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
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Dr. Yin Zhongli
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DIRECTORS (continued) EE (@)

Independent Non-executive Director (Continued)
BIAERITESE (310

Dr. Yin Zhongli (FH i +), aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 11 October 2015. He is a
deputy director of the Institute of Finance and Banking of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. He obtained a Doctorate degree in Agriculture and Forestry Economics and
Management, and a Ph.D. degree in Agricultural Economics and Management from the
Graduate House of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2002 and 2003 respectively.

Dr. Yin has been an Independent Director of Guangbo Group Stock Co., Ltd." ([EfE &
B n AR AF])  (SZSE Code: 002103.82) since November 2011 and Beijing Jingxi
Culture and Tourism Co., Ltd." (3t R RFALHA AR (D B R A 7)) +(SZSE Code: 000802.
SZ) since March 2015.

Aot 485 R_Z—HAFTA+T—REZERARBZBUINTES UK
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& a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange

A the English translations of Chinese names or words are for information purpose only and
should not regard as the official English translation of such Chinese names or words.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT S & 1HE

Ms. Lau Sim (2| & 1), aged 39, was appointed as the Group Financial Controller and Head of Compliance of
the Company on 1 June 2014. Ms. Lau is responsible for the overall accounting, finance, compliance and corporate
governance functions of the Group. She has worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers, one of the big four international
accounting firms for a number of years and has gained over 13 years of experience in initial public offering, financial
management, corporate finance, investment management and investor relations in large companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Lau was the Chief Financial Officer of Fortune Sun
(China) Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She obtained a Bachelor's degree
in Accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1999 and a Master’s degree in Financial Analysis from the
Business School of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. In the past year, Ms. Lau has attended
an executive education program at Harvard University. Ms. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in England and a senior
international finance manager certified by the International Finance Management Association.

BELL 39 R T FAA-BREZERARRZEEMBAERARTEIE B XL RELEE CBRE
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Mr. Tam Kwok Ho, Ronald (FEE & £ 4 ) , aged 34, joined the Company in April 2015 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance and is responsible for the Group’s overall capital markets, M&A and investor relations activities. Mr. Tam has over
13 years of experience in advising companies on capital raising, mergers and acquisitions, private equity investments and
corporate finance. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tam was an Executive Director at Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong
Limited, where he was Head of General Industrials Investment Banking for Greater China, and was previously a Director at
Crosby Capital Partners, with a focus on private equity and special situations investments in the metals and mining sector.
Mr. Tam commenced his investment banking career at Goldman Sachs in Hong Kong where he spent six years in its Equity
Capital Markets and Corporate Finance groups, and advised corporate clients and financial sponsors on equity, equity-
linked, and M&A transactions across industries in Asia. Mr. Tam graduated magna cum laude with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics and Computer Science from Yale University in 2002.

EEELE M RZE—AFHEAMARRGEACERE SR T EAEB BB EAMES - HEREES
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Ms. Xie Sha (&% % +), aged 32, joined the Company in May 2014 as Vice President of Corporate Development
Department. Ms. Xie previously worked in the investment banking division at BNP Paribas and later worked as an
investment manager at a private equity fund. Ms. Xie obtained her Master’s degree in Finance from the University of Hong
Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Cui Haichen (B8R % %), aged 40, graduated from Beijing University of Post and Telecommunications with
a Master’s Degree in Software Engineering. Mr. Cui is currently Chief Executive Officer of Financial Workshop. Mr. Cui
joined China UCF Group in March 2013 and held positions as Chief Technology Officer of Financial Workshop and also
Deputy Development Director of Net Credit Finance Group. During 2012-2013, Mr. Cui was Internet Technical Director of
CreditEase Company, responsible for the system design, development, and operation and maintenance of its internet-
based online trading platform (such as Yirendai (E A& ), Yinongdai (E/2% ) and Yichedai (EE & ) ). During 2007-
2012, Mr. Cui was Research and Development Director of AMBOW Education Group (NYSE: AMBO), responsible for the
design, development, and operation and maintenance of its system and products (including online E-learning system,
school management system and course learning system) based on internet, mobile internet and local area network. Mr. Cui

has rich experience in information technology, team management and project management.

EBREL 405 EENURBEARYEMA IRBAL - EXERREISMISERNITE - EXEN2013F3IA MA
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Mr. Liu Gang (ZBI% %) , aged 41, joined UCF Pay Limited ( %c$4 X B FR A ®)) , a subsidiary of the Company, as the
Chief Executive Officer in December 2013. Mr. Liu has over 16 years extensive working and management experience in the
areas of payment, consultancy and telecommunications. He was the Senior Vice President of Shanghai Hanyin Information
Technology Co., Ltd. ( /& # R {= B 11 A R A7) from 2009 to 2012, being fully responsible for the payment business
department of the company. He was also the head of Tenpay Mobile Payment Centre of Tencent (#7871 i@ % &) 3 1+
Aty ) , responsible for the research and development, operation and business development of mobile payment and 020
payment products, and also responsible for key projects such as WeChat payment, WeChat red pocket, QQ Wallet and
Tenpay App. Mr. Liu studied at the Beijing Information Technology Institute from August 1993 to July 1997 and obtained a
Bachelor’s degree with a major in information management and information systems.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. Shen Jian (it ®lZ 1), aged 40, was appointed as the Senior Vice President of the Company on 2 July 2014. Ms.
Shen is also the chairman of Shenzhen Yifangyidai Information Technology Service Company Limited (RIIZEE =&
BRITIRIEBR A R)) (“First House Loan”), a subsidiary of the Company. She is responsible for the internet housing loan
financing business. Ms. Shen possesses abundant experience in successfully implementing internet business platforms,
media development and customer resources management. Prior to joining First House Loan, she was the General Manager
of the marketing division of CCTV Music Channel. Before that, she was the Deputy General Manager of sales for China of
sina.com (FRAEMIHAEAR A7) . She worked for sina.com for eight years, where she led the team to achieve brilliant
sales performance exceeding that of other sales districts and generated a significant revenue contribution to the company’s
results. Ms. Shen obtained an EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business and a Master’s degree in
Economics from the China Center for Economic Research at Peking University.
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Ms. Wei Wei (#8#%% L), aged 40, graduated from Renmin University of China. Ms. Wei is the Chairlady of Beijing
Fenghuang Credit Management Co., Ltd. (It RBEE A EIE B R A F)) since January 2015. Ms. Wei worked as Chief
Executive Officer of Beijing Dazhong Lianhe Investment Management Co., Ltd. (It R AR AR EEIR AR A ) from
January 2012 to December 2014, and was the General Manager of the operation management center of United Venture
Group Limited (B4 Al ¥ £ B AR A 7)) from March 2010 to December 2011. Ms. Wei worked as the Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Lianhe Kaiyuan Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd. (1t REA F TR EERER A R]) from January
2009 to February 2010, and joined China UCF Group in 2006. She was Finance Director of United Venture Guarantee
Group, Beijing Branch from March 2006 to December 2008. With over 10 years of experience in administrative positions of
traditional finance industry, Ms. Wei has rich and practical experience in P2P industry and possesses comprehensive and
unique industry insight and vision. She is a leader in microfinance business and an active practitioner of inclusive financial
system.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) hereby presents
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December
2015 (the “Year”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the business of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), and ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations.
The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as
set out in the Appendix 15, “Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report” (the “CG Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code save as disclosed in this
report. Key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarized below.

A. THE BOARD
A.1 RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in creating value and overseeing the Company’s
financial performance on behalf of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”). All directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking
decisions objectively and acting in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

TRERRE

ARBEEE ([EFE)EUENEE_F—F
FHT_A=T—BUFE([XFE]) 2ADEE

AR

EXERER

ARAARAEETQHRNRARA REKE R A
(IAKE]) 2B REBRBERIES] - AR
RARAREZERERRMELMZERL -BF
EHTEERR LHETERRNASEERER
REERZERERER-

ARRICEABABARXSIMBRAA (TR
P 1) BIEARE S AR (TRIFR EMARRA) 2
e+ R IEERTAREEEAHRE] (1
EBRSTAI) PrEl 2 R AR S7 AR -

BEEgRE ARREREBEE-ZE—AF+=A
=+ HLEFEETOEEATMBZABT
RIS - RANIRE TR TEE SN AR R JFE R EIEE
FEANEBTAZER TR ZFABRE AR F
FELEERRAURERBMAOT

AL EET

A1 EERBMESRR
ARAREBHNEBEERETHESFER
R -EXCREMEBR R NMTE KK
ARBIRR ([IRR])REXRARIEEE
VERARRZHMBRR -ARA2RES
(B2 HRRETRE  BTEMREN R
RO EREBRE LARKAEFTAEAR
B MBRZFISmITE-

42

FiR 2015« FEIEEZERER AT



Corporate Governance Report
/\ Sz /rlv \A

1=

A.

AA

43

#&m

THE BOARD (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION
(Continued)

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those involving conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
senior management, with a view to ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations
are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses, upon making a reasonable request to
the Board.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of
the Company. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board and directing and co-ordinating day-to-
day operation and management of the Company.

The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by
the foregoing officers and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report

A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprised the following Directors during the Year
and up to the date of this report:—

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat (Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chng Swee Ho

Mr. Sheng Jia

(Ms. Shen Li resigned on 30 June 2015)

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)

Mr. Li Mingshan (Chairman)

Mr. Li Gang

Mr. Wong Sai Hung

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (Appointed on 12 July 2015)

Ms. Zhou Youmeng (Appointed on 11 December 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Mr. Ge Ming
Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed on 8 October 2015)

Mr. Wang Wei
Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015)

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015)
(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on 12 February
2015 and resigned on 3 August 2015)
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THE BOARD (continued)
BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

The list of all Directors (by category) is set out under the
section headed “Corporate Information” in this annual report
and is also disclosed in all corporate communications issued
by the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules from time
to time. The INEDs are expressly identified in all corporate
communications of the Company. There is no relationship
between the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
the Chief Executive Officer. There was no financial, business,
family or other material relationship among the Directors. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Each of Ms. Shen Li, Mr. Peter Z Kuk and Dr. Wong, Kennedy
Ying Ho resigned as a Director during the Year. Each of them
has confirmed that she/he had no disagreement with the Board
and there was no matter relating to her/his resignation that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

According to Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company must appoint INEDs representing at least one-third
of the Board. Upon the appointment of Mr. Zhang Zhenxin as
a NED on 12 July 2015, the Board comprised ten Directors,
among whom only three of them are INEDs, which fell below
the one-third INEDs requirement under Rule 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules. Furthermore, upon the resignation of Dr. Wong,
Kennedy Ying Ho on 3 August 2015, the Board comprised only
two INEDs, which falls below the requirements of (i) at least
three INEDs under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules; (i)
a minimum of three members in the Audit Committee under
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules; and (i) the composition
of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee pursuant to their respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report

A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

However, following the appointment of Dr. Ou Minggang as
an INED on 8 October 2015, the Company complied with
Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee. Furthermore,
upon the appointment of Dr. Ou Minggang as the chairman
of Nomination Committee on 11 October 2015 and the
appointment of Dr. Yin Zhongli as an INED on 11 October
2015, the Company re-complied with Rule 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules and the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. Each ED supervises areas of the Group’s business
in accordance with his/her expertise. The INEDs bring different
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board and they are invited to serve on the
Board committees of the Company. Through participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on the Board
committees, the INEDs have made contributions to the
effective operation of the Company and provided adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of both the
Group and the Shareholders.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from
each INED of his independence pursuant to the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all INEDs
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are carried out by different individuals.

The Chairman is Mr. Li Mingshan, who provides leadership for
the Board and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at the Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, who is
in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and focuses on implementing the objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the EDs is engaged on a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also
issued a letter of appointment for a term of three years to each
of the NEDs.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) at least once every
three years. All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. The Board
may from time to time and at any time appoint any person to
be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy of the Board, or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Shareholders after his/her appointment,
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.4 APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the Articles of
Association, six Directors, being Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, Mr. Wong
Sai Hung, Mr. Zhang Zhenxin, Ms. Zhou Youmeng, Mr. Ge Ming
and Mr. Wang Wei, shall retire at the forthcoming 2016 AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.
A circular which contains detailed information of the retiring
Directors pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will be sent to the
Shareholders.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles of
Association. The Company has established a Nomination
Committee which is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of the Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of the
Directors and assessing the independence of the INEDs. The
criteria for selection of the Directors are mainly based on the
professional qualification, experience and time commitment
to the Company of the candidates. Details of the Nomination
Committee and its work performed are set out in the “Board
Committees” section below.

A.5 INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

All Directors received induction on the first occasion of his/
her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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THE BOARD (continued)
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR (#8)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

According to the records maintained by the Company, BRERARNRMREZLE EERAFER
the Directors have participated in continuous professional BHEWF S REEIHEER MR
development by attending seminars/induction training/reading SEHEHERE-

material during the Year.

Attending

Seminars (“S”)/

Reading Induction

Materials Training (“1”)
HEAAE ([S])/

=g NBEAN (T1])

EDs

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
Mr. Chng Swee Ho
Mr. Sheng Jia

(Ms. Shen Li resigned on 30 June 2015)

NEDs
Mr. Li Mingshan
Mr. Li Gang
Mr. Wong Sai Hung
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin
(Appointed on 12 July 2015)

Ms. Zhou Youmeng
(Appointed on 11 December 2015)

INEDs
Mr. Ge Ming
Dr. Ou Minggang
(Appointed on 8 October 2015)

Mr. Wang Wei
Dr. Yin Zhongli
(Appointed on 11 October 2015)

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015)

(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on
16 February 2015 and resigned on 3 August

2015)
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A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.6 BOARD MEETINGS

A.6.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Schedules for regular Board Meetings are normally agreed with
the Directors in advance in order to ensure their attendance. In
addition to the above, notice of at least 14 days is given for a
regular Board meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Draft agenda of each of the Board meetings is usually sent
to all Directors together with the notice in order to give them
an opportunity to include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion at the meeting.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting to provide them with materials
relating to the transactions to be discussed in the meeting in
order to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and other relevant
senior management normally attend the regular Board
meetings and, where necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Group.

The Compliance Department of the Company is responsible to
keep the minutes of all Board and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) have a material interest.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.

During the Year the Board held four Board meetings which
were the regular ones held at approximately quarterly intervals
on 24 March 2015, 11 May 2015, 10 August 2015 and 10
November 2015, respectively. The attendance of each Director

AL EEE @)

A6 EEEEH (&)

A2 EEZ H Fl £
EEeTHRTeS RN RIERTER
QKT BEERIAANAT Y EEESR
BT EEEAESHREEEEESHH
RER EEeSEIRTRE-

REFERN EFERRR_T—HF=
AztmBE -—E—hHFRA+—H =F
—RENA+ER-_ZE—FHE+—A+HE
TURESGRH KANEBFEET KT

is as follows: Read FSEFZHFTHENT
Number of
regular Board
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEERESYE
% GERUE
EFEERRY
EDs HITEE
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat RGBS A 4/4
Mr. Chng Swee Ho HimxkE 4/4
Mr. Sheng Jia BRERE 4/4
(Ms. Shen Li resigned on 30 June 2015 and during (JTEBIZ 4+ =—FE—HFNA
her term of appointment, she attended two meetings =1 HEFE R E(FHIA -
which were held on 24 March 2015 and 11 May 2015, #MHEDFIR - E—FF
respectively) ZAZFHAR=-F—AHF
AA+—HE7Z
K& o)
NEDs FHITEE
Mr. Li Mingshan FEAILEA 3/4
Mr. Li Gang Mk E 4/4
Mr. Wong Sai Hung =it A 4/4
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (Appointed on 12 July 2015) RIRFTEE (R=ZF—AF 1/2*
+ A+ -—HHEZF)
Ms. Zhou Youmeng (Appointed on 11 December 2015) AR BL+ (R -F—AF 0/0*

1At —HEZE)
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A. THE BOARD (Continued)

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)
A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)

=2
1 #& =]
A. EEE @)
A6 EEETEE (8
AG2EFEZHEZL I (8)
Number of

regular Board
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEERESY
B AEREE
ESEEERY

INEDs BULIEBTEE
Mr. Ge Ming BHREE 4/4
Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed on 8 October 2015) BEBAREL (R=FE—AF 1/1*

+ANNAEZF)

Mr. Wang Wei FEELE 4/4

Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015)

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015 and during
his term of appointment, he attended two meetings
which were held on 24 March 2015 and 11 May 2015,
respectively.)

(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on 16
February 2015 and resigned on 3 August 2015. During
his term of appointment, he attended two meetings
which were held on 24 March 2015 and 11 May 2015,
respectively,)

FRUBE (R-F—7Z
F+H+—HEZE)

(BEHER—FE—RFELA
THBEELERREFHA %
HESIR - E—H"F=H
AR FE—AFRA
T—HBITZHAEH )

(BERFELIR-F Ei_
A+ ANAEZERR-F—
?ﬂﬁ*ﬂ%&ﬂ#ﬁﬁﬁ
A BHESFIR - FE—HF
—AZFPHAR=—F—AHFA
B+—HAETZHAEHE -
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THE BOARD (continued)

BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)

53

Note for *:

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin was appointed on 12 July 2015. During his term
of appointment, he attended one regular Board meeting held on 10
August 2015.

Ms. Zhou Youmeng was appointed on 11 December 2015. During her
term of appointment, there was not any regular Board meeting which
she was required to attend.

Dr. Ou Minggang was appointed on 8 October 2015. During his term
of appointment, he attended one regular Board meeting held on 10
November 2015.

Dr. Yin Zhongli was appointed on 11 October 2015. During his term
of appointment, he attended a regular Board meeting held on 10
November 2015.

There were 6 additional Board meetings held and attended
by certain EDs, NEDs and INEDs during the normal course of
business throughout the Year. Apart from the said meetings,
matters requiring the Board’s approval were arranged by
means of circulation of written resolutions of all Board
members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written
resolutions were well-documented. Minutes of the Board
meetings and written resolutions are kept by the Company and
are available to all Directors.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)
During the Year, the AGM was held on 11 May 2015.

attendance of each Director is as follows:

-

fi= #&l:u

AL EEET @)

A6 EEETEE (&)
AG2EEZH BT (8)
The RAEERN BEBFAGNR-Z—

hER

A+—R&87 BEFEZHFETHENT:

Number of general
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEBREXRE
REBERE
BREXEXRH
EDs HITEE
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat CRRELE 1/1
Mr. Chng Swee Ho HIhZEE 11
Mr. Sheng Jia BRiESRAE 11
(Ms. Shen Li resigned on 30 June 2015 and during her (LBl Z 1+ R - F—HF
term of appointment, she attended the AGM held NA=ZTHEFERRETE
on 11 May 2015 (the “2015 AGM’).) A BEHER - E—LF
AAT—HETZRRAFE
AE [ ZE—AFRFAF
A&g/e)
NEDs FEHITEE
Mr. Li Mingshan FEAIL LA 0/1
Mr. Li Gang Mk E 1/1
Mr. Wong Sai Hung = A 11
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (Appointed on 12 July 2015) RIRET A (R=ZFE—AF 0/0*
AT ZHEZE)
Ms. Zhou Youmeng (Appointed on 11 December 2015) RARBZ+ (R -_ZFE—AF 0/0*
+Z A+ —HEZF)
INEDs BLIFHITEE
Mr. Ge Ming EREE 1/1
Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed on 8 October 2015) BEBAREL (R=FE—AF 0/0*
FANAEZ(E)
Mr. Wang Wei FHRELE 1/1
Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015) FHuBT (R=ZF—AF 0/0*

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015 and during
his term of appointment, he attended the 2015 AGM.)

(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on 16
February 2015 and resigned on 3 August 2015. During
his term of appointment, he did not attend the 2015

AGM.,)

TAT—HEZE)

(BB ER—FE—RFLA
THBERREEHA %
HE - FE—DFREBFA

g°)

(BERRELR-F ﬁfﬁ_
At NABZERR —F—
fﬁ/(ﬁEEé’?/fO%E/fﬁﬁ
A I —F— A
KERBFAE )
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A. THE BOARD (Continued) AL EEg @)

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued) A6 EEEEH 1)

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued) AG2EFEZHIEER (48)
Note for *: it :
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin was appointed on 12 July 2015. During his term of RIERFAERZT—AFLATZABZEE-R
appointment, there was not any AGM which he was required to attend. HAHRRN BERAEEECRRBAFREG-
Ms. Zhou Youmeng was appointed on 11 December 2015. During her ARBZLIHN -_T—RAF+-_A+—HEZEE-
term of appointment, there was not any AGM which she was required REFHAN SEFAELECRIBFAg-
to attend.
Dr. Ou Minggang was appointed on 8 October 2015. During his term of BEARETR =T —AF+ANREZE -RE
appointment, there was not any AGM which he was required to attend. AHRN BEREELECRRBAFRE-
Dr. Yin Zhongli was appointed on 11 October 2015. During his term of FHRUBITR T —AF+A+—BEZRE-R
appointment, there was not any AGM which he was required to attend. HEASHRN BERALRECREBFRE-
Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the Chairman EERTAZFANEXEBEA2ERE - £
to attend the AGM. Due to other business commitments EARHFRFBEFERE - BREHILEEN
which must be attended by Mr. Li Mingshan, he was not ES2MEMEESS BREHE_T—H
able to attend the 2015 AGM. Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, the Vice- FRRAFAG -BIFHREFNTEZRE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, acted as the chairman of BEEERE-_FT—RAFRFBAFRAEER
the 2015 AGM to ensure an effective communication with the PATEIR B REIT B BUB M ©
Shareholders.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.7 REQUIRED STANDARD OF DEALINGS

The Company has adopted its securities dealing code (the
“Own Code”) regarding dealings in the Company’s securities
by the Directors, senior management and certain employees of
the Group (who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its securities) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). A specific
enquiry has been made by the Company, each of the Directors
and all of them had confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Required Standard of
Dealings and the Own Code throughout the Year.

No incident of non-compliance of the Required Standard of
Dealings and the Own Code by the Directors and relevant
employees was noted by the Company.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
the Directors and relevant employees in advance.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee, and the Nomination
Committee have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are published on the respective websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are available to the
Shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of the Board committees are in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in sub-section
A.6.1 above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

A.

-

fi= #&m

EET (m)

7 X5 uwsFEA

AAFIERAEBES aREEERET
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BTN —EFFBEET AT (B
AI]) - EAGFRI LB AR _E AR AISE5.48
ﬁﬁ%5&%ﬁﬁ§$Lﬂﬁ%ﬁamﬁm
ﬁwwx%bﬁ Al ) B - AAREMA
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ERIESEIEE
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SRHUSTEAB BT ZE M-
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EEEETHEES
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TEERHRE

B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
B.1 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises all the EDs of the
Company with Mr. Phang Yew Kiat acting as the chairman
of such Committee. The Executive Committee operates as a
general management committee under the direct authority of
the Board to increase the efficiency for the business decision.
It monitors the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses and
makes decisions on matters relating to the management and
day-to-day operations of the Company.

B.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises a total of four members,
namely Mr. Ge Ming (chairman), Dr. Ou Minggang (appointed
on 8 October 2015), Mr. Wang Wei and Dr. Yin Zhongli
(appointed on 11 October 2015). All of them are INEDs of the
Company. (Note: Mr. Peter Z Kuk and Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying
Ho resigned on 10 July 2015 and 3 August 2015 respectively).
The chairman of the Audit Committee also possesses the
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
as required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The terms of reference was revised and adopted on 29
December 2015 to include the responsibility arising from the
Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk management and internal
control under the CG Code applicable to all listed companies
with accounting periods on or after 1 January 2016.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

B.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance
officer or external auditor before submission to the Board; (ii)
review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditor; and (jii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system
and risk management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee met six times and one of
which was also attended by the external auditor and the Audit
Committee members (without executive directors). The Audit
Committee performed the following major tasks:

Review and discussion of the relevant draft quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, results
announcements and reports, the related accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
relevant audit findings;

- Review and discussion of the financial reporting, internal
control and risk management systems of the Group;

- Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment
of the external auditor; and

- Review of the Company’s continuing connected
transactions for the Year pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

B.2

59

#&r:

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the attendance of each member of the Audit

Committee is as follows:

B. EEg€ETHZES @)

B2 EZEZEEET (@)

Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed on 8 October 2015)

Mr. Wang Wei

Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015)

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015 and
aduring his term of appointment, he attended three
meetings which were held on 10 February 2015,
24 March 20156 and 11 May 2015, respectively.)

(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on

16 February 2015 and resigned on 3 August
2015 and during his term of appointment, he

attended three meetings which were held on 24

March 2015, 11 May 2015 and 1 June 2015,
respectively.)

Note for *:
Dr. Ou Minggang was appointed on 8 October 2015. During his term

of appointment, he attended one meeting held on 10 November 2015.

Dr. Yin Zhongli was appointed on 11 October 2015. During his term of
appointment, he attended one meeting held on 10 November 2015.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditor.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee setting out

its role and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
B.3 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Company has established
the Nomination Committee which comprises a total of four
members, namely Dr. Ou Minggang (chairman) (appointed as a
member and the chairman on 8 October 2015 and 11 October
2015 respectively), Mr. Ge Ming, Mr. Wang Wei and Dr. Yin
Zhongli (appointed on 11 October 2015), all of whom being
INEDs. (Note: Mr. Peter Z Kuk and Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho
resigned on 10 July 2015 and 3 August 2015 respectively).

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the Board composition; (i) develop and formulate
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors; (jii) identify qualified individuals to become members
of the Board; (iv) monitor the appointment and succession
planning of Directors; and (v) assess the independence of the
INEDs.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee met two times and
performed the following major tasks:

- Review and discussion of the existing structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Assessment of the independence of the existing INEDs;
and

- Recommendation on the re-appointment of retiring
Directors at the 2015 AGM pursuant to the Articles of
Association.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is as follows:

B. EEg€ETHZES @)
B3*Egéﬁg( E)

RAFERN REREEENE 2 HFELLE
mr

Number of
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEH
FERHEERRY

Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed as a member and BRAME L+ (DR =ZF—AaF 1/1*
the chairman on 8 October 2015 and FANAR=ZE—HF
11 October 2015 respectively) + A+ —HEZTABIES
ZEEHERFE)
Mr. Ge Ming BREE 2/2
Mr. Wang Wei F@EE 2/2
Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015)  FH 1B+ (R=-ZF—AF 1/1*

1T A+ —HEZEE)

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015 and (BEFXER-FE—AF tﬁ + A &
during his term of appointment, he attended one — 1ERRELHIA - #iHE— AR =-F
meeting held on 10 February 2015.) —AF-_A+HETZEE -

(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on ( EFHARELIRZF—AF A+
16 February 2015 and resigned on 3 August 2015 HEZFRR - FE—AF/1H=H
and during his term of appointment, there was not /%? ERREFEIA  BmRALES

any meeting which he was required to attend.) 2% )

Note for *:
Dr. Ou Minggang was appointed on 8 October 2015. During his term of

appointment, he attended one meeting held on 10 November 2015.

Dr. Yin Zhongli was appointed on 11 October 2015. During his term of
appointment, he attended one meeting held on 10 November 2015.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee setting
out its role and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
B.4 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of four
members, namely Mr. Wang Wei (chairman), Mr. Ge Ming,
Dr. Ou Minggang (appointed on 8 October 2015) and Dr.
Yin Zhongli (appointed on 11 October 2015). All of them are
INEDs. (Note: Mr. Peter Z Kuk and Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho
resigned on 10 July 2015 and 3 August 2015 respectively).

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a policy on such
remuneration; (ii) make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of EDs and senior management; and (i) review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference to the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the Year is set out below:

In the band of

—

HFMEZEE
FHZEeHXpRENEKE ETHLLE
(/%) EBRLE BHBABL(RAZZ
—HEF+ANBEZT)RFFIEL (R
—ET-AE+AT—HAEZT) -HEHAE
BNIEITES (Mt BB ALEREES
BLoFR—FE—AFEATHAR=—FE—F
E )\ H=FEHE) -

FHZEENIEREBRIMARAES

SREEEXEZHFMTEBERLRRBIR
HEZERARZEAMABEAZNRERF A
HEBRFMERRAESSRMER ()3
HITEELSRERABNFNESRRLE
& L2 EZEEGTRHBRNARANNL
iRt RAEARR B H B -

REBEEEEATAIST ARG EBA 6 KA
FRERHFMARE D 22N EEABFTME
FIEA

Number of Individuals

48 51 ANE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0017% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company
for the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee met two times
and performed the following major tasks:

S To review and make recommendation on the payment of
a year-end bonus and a special bonus to the Directors
and senior management of the Group; and
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
B.4 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

= To review and make recommendation on the current —
remuneration package of the Directors and senior

63

-#&r:

management of the Group.

During the Year, the attendance of each member of the

B. EEg€ETHZES @)

RAFERN HFME

B4 HFMEESE (@)
RAEEEERSATEBNBRTE
B4 A e R RIS S -

B @ BN E 2 HFE L

Remuneration Committee is as follows: m
Number of
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEaE
EERUEERRE
Mr. Wang Wei TH#|AELE 2/2
Mr. Ge Ming BEEE 2/2
Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed on 8 October 2015)  BEAMIE + (R - FE—FF
THANEEZ(E) 1/1*
Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015) FHRUBLT (R=ZF—AF
T A+—HEZF) 1/1*
(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015 and (BEFEERZ fffﬂ’:ﬁ +HEF
during his term of appointment, he attended one FRRA EEFﬁW BHE—ARZE
meeting held on 10 February 2015,) —AFE-AF+HETZEHE )
(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on 16 (E#FELR - FE—AF - H+~
February 2015 and resigned on 3 August 2015 and HEZERR —E—AF/\A=H
during his term of appointment, there was not any — BTN RA(THIA - K A 1 EZ
meeting which he was required to attend.) 2ie)
Note for *: Bt~ :
Dr. Ou Minggang was appointed on 8 October 2015. During his term of BRARMETRN T —AF+ANBEZE-RE

appointment, he attended one meeting held on 10 November 2015.

Dr. Yin Zhongli was appointed on 11 October 2015. During his term of
appointment, he attended one meeting held on 10 November 2015.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee setting BRIk
out its role and responsibilities are available on the respective RETRAR

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 13 March
2014, which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considers that diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial information
and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

TRERRE

EERHES TILHE
EFgER T WUF=A+=BERNES
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REZTlb 285 -
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RELINHFTERSE  PHRE REFHRAE
B B R BRI 2 RS B ER
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REERE 2 EHHMRRNZERTHARE -
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the Group’s assets and, with the support of the Audit
Committee, for reviewing the effectiveness of such system on
an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group for the Year. The senior
management reviews and evaluates the control process and
monitors any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the
Board and the Audit Committee on any findings and measures
to address the variances and identified risks.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR AND
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company on
its reporting responsibilities for the Group’s financial statements
for the Year is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the
Company’s independent auditor, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the Year are analyzed below:—

Type of services provided
by the independent auditor

E. WEpETH:

EXCRATARENZABEZERS IR
ERRANERAEEEE TEBRRER S
MXB TEESFRIZER ZME-

EEECHARERNAFEZARMERE RS
HMBEETTIRGS - B ARE BB E M KAF
HEERFMERTARRER YRES
SREVZEQERTAHERLIALRERRA
2= M B Rl 2 BB 2 e 3t

3L EED R BRI &

ARARBILZBEABEHRANEERAE
ERMBERRBRETZER AR AFER
(BB HRE | — o

RO - B A D B9 SR BT 2k B A
(BB)REHMEBFERA TR B
BRAS RIEEE RIS T BB B A AT
mF

Fees paid/payable

BAGEMRMNREES gt/ EBHER
HK$
BT
Audit services FiTRE 1,550,000
Non-audit services FEFE IR 1,210,000
TOTAL: A5 2,760,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties including:

(@@ to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board has
reviewed and performed the said (a), (b), (c) and (e) corporate
governance functions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and
voting. Besides, various rights of Shareholders, including the
right to propose resolutions, are contained in the Articles of
Association.

TRERRE
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

A summary of certain rights of the Shareholders is disclosed
below:—

Procedures for convening extraordinary general meetings and
putting forward proposals at general meetings

Each general meeting other than an AGM shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting. General meetings may be
held in any part of the world as may be determined by the
Board. According to article 58 of the Articles of Association,
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or proposal to be put forward at the general meeting can be
addressed to the principal place of business in Hong Kong
of the Company marked with the attention of the Company
Secretary. The requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
objects of the extraordinary general meeting to be convened,
and such request must be signed by all the requisitionists.
Upon receipt, the Company will verify the requisitionists’
particulars and if the request is in order, the Company will
convene the extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

Director are posted under the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website at www.creditchina.hk.

CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2015

H BRE#F @

BRzETRNBERENT

BERRIFFIA B EFRIEBEA & _L1E
=¥t

BHRBFREG AN ZEBRRAREHW AR
FRIRE -BRRAGAHEERTERE 2R
T 77 817 - IRIBEIR A RIFE85 (]
—HALEREEERKARFTETLRAR
AERAN (B TRARFBRAE LRE
Bt o2 —ZBRRRAERRESEEER
MEEFGHARAZARAME ([REWE])
BHEEER BREFSAMBERFIA
C NEEAMERTEAZEMNER: A
HZABRNEZZERIEMQIMEARET
WE2R - +—CNVHERN EFEXREEH
ZRE AR 2R AL AREE T A EL
e ME2ERALTREETERFARAK
EMARELZMERXEARRRENT
BHRA-

ERERRREIAG 2 ZRIANBEERK
CREZEZUVARARATLEETRE XN
BoWEARRMER - EZBRKALTHA
RERPEAK TFTERIBRRENAGZ B
B AHBRALE2BEEERALEE-
ARRWR B R BB ZEREEERKALZE
o HEZRTERF ARAKREREE
RARBRAKRRERIARE -

WEEH—BALTELEFEZESF

RE—BALTERTIEEZEFEHNALQR]
A ufwww.creditchina.hki& & & A B0 {7



Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding on the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
sustainable investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.creditchina.hk” as
a communication platform with the Shareholders and investors,
where the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited and for other
enquiries, Shareholders and investors may also write directly
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Rooms 3533-39, Level 35, Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Hong Kong or via email to “ir@creditchina.hk” for any enquiries.
Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for Shareholders to exchange
their views with the Board. The Chairman as well as the
chairmen and/or other members of the Board committees
will endeavor to be available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by the Shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its investors. Designated senior management
officers maintain regular dialogues with institutional investors
and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary since 7 July 2014. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and
regulations, are followed.

Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to assume such office and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Ms. Lau
Sim, the Group Financial Controller and Head of Compliance of
the Company.

As Mr. Kwok was first appointed the company secretary of a
Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in
1991 and has been acting in such capacity for a number of
other reputable companies listed on the Stock Exchange at
substantial times since then, he was not required to have at
least 15 hours of relevant continuous professional development
training for the Year under the Listing Rules. Despite the above
exemption, Mr. Kwok had delivered and attended over 15
hours’ relevant seminars during the Year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the
Company is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong and the GEM
Listing Rules and has established the inside information/price-
sensitive information disclosure policy with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
traditional financing services and related financing consultancy
services including entrusted loan service, real estate-backed loan
service, pawn loan service, other loan service, mircofinance service,
and internet financing services including online third-party payment
services, peer-to-peer (“P2P”) loan services and related activities on
loan portfolio management.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 321.

Since 2014, the Group has been focusing on building up our internet
finance strategy by making significant investments in online third-
party payment and P2P loan service platform businesses, and has
successfully delivered strong operational growth in our internet
finance business as evidenced by its over 50% contribution to the
Group’s turnover in 2015. As we anticipate the internet finance
industry to enter into a consolidation phase in the coming 24
months, the Group is proactively seeking to capitalize on further
investment opportunities as they arise.

As a result, the Board does not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the Year, and intends to reinvest our profits
in accelerating our growth momentum, with the aim of further
reinforcing our leading position in the internet finance industry and
ultimately building long term shareholder value.

Report of the Directors
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 14 of
this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 14 of this annual report and
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. Also, the Company’s
communications with its investors are contained in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 68 of this annual report.

Sustainability and Environmental Initiatives

The Group is committed to sustainable development of the
environment and our society. We work to advance environmental
and social progress and conduct business in a way that creates
value for our clients and employees. The Group complies with all
relevant environmental regulations and practice “Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle” with the following initiatives:

° Promotes the knowledge of environmental protection to staff
and advocates to sort their trash into separate bins.

o Saves power by implementing automatic lights off during non-
business hours.

° Adjusts the air conditioning and refrigeration system to low
settings when necessary.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognizes that our employees, customers and business
associates are keys to our sustainability journey. We strive to achieve
corporate sustainability through engaging our employees, providing
quality services for our customers, collaborating with business
partners and supporting our community.

The Company places a significant emphasis on human capital. The
Company provides a fair workplace, constant physical exercise
training classes, promotes non-discrimination and diversity to our
staff, together with competitive remuneration and benefits, as
well as a range of opportunities for career advancement based
on employees’ merits and performance. The Company provides
periodical trainings for staff to keep them abreast of the latest
developments in the market and industry, in the form of both
internal trainings and trainings provided by experts from external
organizations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

To enhance customers’ satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Group, we value the feedback from
customers through setting enquiring email to guarantee accessible
communication and satisfaction surveys. When dealing with a
customer’s complaint, we treat it as an opportunity to improve
our relationship with the customer, addressing the concern in a
timely manner. As regards the communication with our business
associates, we proactively collaborate with our contractors to deliver
quality sustainable products and services, and make spot checks on
goods and services during the contractual periods.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), every Director shall be secured harmless out of assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, incurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his/her duties.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2016 annual general meeting of the Company (the “Annual
General Meeting”) is scheduled for Monday, 9 May 2016. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 6 May 2016 to Monday, 9 May 2016, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting,
unregistered holders of the Shares should ensure that all share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 5 May 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five years is set out in the financial summary on
page 322 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company entered into a placing agreement with Sheng Yuan
Securities Limited (“Sheng Yuan”) on 29 June 2015 (the “1st Placing
Agreement”), pursuant to which Sheng Yuan agreed to place, on a
best-effort basis, an aggregate of up to 120,000,000 new Shares
at the price of HK$1.70 per placing Share, subject to the fulfilment
of the conditions precedent set out in the 1st Placing Agreement.
The closing price was HK$1.59 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the 1st Placing Agreement. On 9 July
2015, the Company completed the placing and issued 94,112,000
new Shares to two placees, namely Tandellen Group Limited and
Mr. Zhao Chengfu. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 29 June 2015 and 9 July 2015. The net
proceeds from the above placing amounted to approximately
HK$157.5 million. The Company has fully utilized the net proceeds
for the Group’s general working capital purposes and for the purpose
of repayment of a bank borrowing.

The Company entered into a placing agreement with Sheng Yuan
on 30 September 2015 (the “2nd Placing Agreement”), pursuant
to which Sheng Yuan agreed to place, on a best effort basis, an
aggregate of up to 307,696,000 new Shares at the price of HK$1.95
per placing Share, subject to the fulfilment of the conditions
precedent set out in the 2nd Placing Agreement. The closing
price was HK$2.00 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the 2nd Placing Agreement. On 22 October 2015,
the Company completed the placing and issued 265,128,000
new Shares to two placees, namely China Dragon Asia Champion
Fund Series SPC and Sheng Yuan Global High Growth Industries
Fund Series SPC. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 30 September 2015, 14 October 2015
and 22 October 2015. The net proceeds from the above placing
amounted to approximately HK$505.33 million. The Company has
fully utilized the net proceeds and applied them for general working
capital purposes and for the purpose of acquisition of a 10% equity
interest in Genesis Business.
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ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES (continued)

The Company entered into a placing agreement with Sheng Yuan on
11 November 2015 (the “3rd Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which
Sheng Yuan agreed to place, on a best effort basis, an aggregate of
up to 287,889,200 new Shares at the price of HK$2.10 per placing
Share, subject to the fulfilment of the conditions precedent set out
in the 3rd Placing Agreement. The closing price was HK$2.30 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the 3rd
Placing Agreement. On 2 December 2015, the Company completed
the placing and issued 280,324,000 new Shares to not less than six
placees. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 11 November 2015 and 2 December 2015. The net proceeds
from the above placing amounted to approximately HK$581.3
million. The Company has fully utilized the net proceeds and applied
them for general working capital purpose.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group revalued its investment property at the year end date.
Details of such revaluation are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 48(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity holders comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses, amounted to approximately RMB1,486.2 million
(2014: RMB577.4 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s
major customers is set out below:

Revenue
— The largest customer 3.6%
— The total of the five largest customers 12.2%

Due to the nature of the activities of the Group as a financial services
provider, no major supplier contributed significantly in the Group’s
purchases and the aggregate purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers for the Year was less than 30% of the Group’s
purchase for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors nor their
close associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”, and the “GEM Listing
Rules”, respectively) nor any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the five largest customers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the Year and
up to the date of this report are named as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
Mr. Chng Swee Ho
Mr. Sheng Jia

(Ms. Shen Li resigned on 30 June 2015)

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)

Mr. Li Mingshan

Mr. Li Gang

Mr. Wong Sai Hung

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (Appointed on 12 July 2015)

Ms. Zhou Youmeng (Appointed on 11 December 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed on 8 October 2015)

Mr. Wang Wei

Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed on 11 October 2015)

(Mr. Peter Z Kuk resigned on 10 July 2015.)

(Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho was appointed on 16 February 2015
and resigned on 3 August 2015)

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin and Ms. Zhou Youmeng would retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, Mr. Wong Sai Hung, Mr. Ge Ming
and Mr. Wang Wei would retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 27 to 41 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years, which is
renewable automatically for successive terms for one year unless
and until () terminated by either party thereto giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice, with the last day of the notice
falling on the last day of the initial term or any time thereafter; or (ii)
the executive Director not being re-elected as a Director or being
removed by Shareholders at general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs has been appointed for a fixed term
of three years and shall be subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed herein, no Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group, to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meeting every year. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board by reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with
the highest emoluments are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

For the Year, the Directors were not aware of any business or interest
of the Directors, the controlling shareholder and their respective
close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflict of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group, save as Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (“Mr. Zhang”), a
NED and a substantial shareholder of the Company, has an interest
in the continuing connected transactions relating to a sub-tenancy
and master agreement for a business centre as announced by the
Company on 23 October 2014. Mr. Zhang is also interested in NCF
Wealth Holdings Limited (formerly known as “First P2P Limited”)
(“NCF”), as the 100% owner of Great Reap Ventures Limited which is
NCF's majority shareholder, and as the 99% registered shareholder
of kERBRFHAEREEEER AR (Beijing Dongfang Lianhe
Investment Management Limited) which is the operating company
of NCF’s business in the PRC. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 12 January 2015 for further details. In addition,
Mr. Zhang has a 36% shareholding in BIEEEEIE AR A 7
(Phoenix Asset Management Limited) which holds 51% of the equity
interest in /B ® 5L #2485/ BB EH B R A 7 (Hainan Pioneer Internet
Microfinance Limited). Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 11 August 2014 for further details. Mr. Zhang also (1)
beneficially owns 36.50% of &+ 5% 2 RIEH R 2 7] (Shanghai
Zhongfeng Business Factoring Ltd.) (2) owns 99% of 1t R HEE &
£ EEE AR A A (Beiing Eastern United Investment Management
Company Limited) which has a 3-year cooperation agreement with
Shanghai Feng Zhi Xing to mutually refer customers with automotive
financing needs and (3) owns 99% and 100% of two companies,
respectively, which lent Shanghai Feng Zhi Xing in total approximately
RMB8,435,000, which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on
demand.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were
required; (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Interests in Shares and the underlying Shares
of the Company
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Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/Nature Shares Total the Company’s
Chief executive of interests interested Note interests issued Shares*
HEELZZ EERAAE
£EE /18 Bt/ BITRHZ
TBHAB#E St/ #EHE HHEBRNEE fit st BiEs BAE Stk
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat Beneficial owner 15,000,000 1 15,000,000 0.39%
TRELE EREBA
Mr. Chng Swee Ho Beneficial owner 6,000,000 1 10,740,000 0.28%
HHRAE EGBRBA 4,740,000
Mr. Sheng Jia Beneficial owner 6,000,000 1 6,080,000 0.16%
BELRE EREBA
Family interest 80,000 2
N2
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

EEREIETHASKERG HE
R RESREABEEZERR

RE (@)

Interests in Shares and the underlying Shares 78/ 5] iR 1 R tH BRI BE 1 Z #E 3 (#)

of the Company (Continued)

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/Nature Shares Total the Company’s
Chief executive of interests interested Note interests issued Shares*
BERHZ ERAFE
Bz 1% B/ BRHZ
THABRE S/ ERNE HRRHEER (i3 B AOEE A
Mr. Li Gang Beneficial owner 4,000,000 1 4,000,000 0.10%
ZMlx & ERBEAA
Mr. Wong Sai Hung Beneficial owner 4,000,000 1 4,000,000 0.10%
LA ERBEAA
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin Beneficial owner 113,916,000 781,148,000 20.16%
(“Mr. Zhang’) EREBA
RiR# A ([REE]) Interest in a controlled 649,232,000 3
corporation
REEHERE 2 5
Family interest 18,000,000 4
Rk
Ms. Zhou Youmeng Beneficial owner 228,000 228,000 0.01%
BAREZL ERBEAA
Mr. Ge Ming Beneficial owner 2,480,000 1 2,480,000 0.06%
ERxE BRBERA
Mr. Wang Wei Beneficial owner 2,480,000 1 2,980,000 0.08%
THEE ERBEBA 500,000
Dr. Ou Minggang Beneficial owner 1,480,000 5 1,480,000 0.04%
BARIE £ ERBEAA
Dr. Yin Zhongli Beneficial owner 1,480,000 9) 1,480,000 0.04%
FRUET ERBEAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests in Shares and the underlying Shares
of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. These interests represent the underlying Shares comprised in the
share options granted by the Company on 11 December 2014 and
11 December 2015.

2. These interests represent Shares held by Ms. Hu Haichen, the wife of
Mr. Sheng Jia. Therefore, Mr. Sheng Jia was deemed to be interested
in these Shares under SFO.

3. These Shares were held by First Pay Limited (“First Pay”), the entire
issued share capital of which was owned by Mr. Zhang. Therefore,
Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in these Shares under the
SFO.

4. These Shares were held by Ms. Zhang Xiaomin (“Ms. Zhang”) who
is the wife of Mr. Zhang. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be
interested in these Shares under the SFO.

58 These interests represent the underlying Shares comprised in the
share options granted by the Company on 11 December 2015.

6. All interests stated above are long positions.

* The percentage represents the number of Shares and the underlying

Shares interested divided by the number of issued Shares as at 31
December 2015 (i.e. 3,875,210,000 Shares).

Details of the above share options granted by the Company are set
out under the heading “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which was required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FTERERHEMALTRIRG RBEHR

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Directors, the W-ZE—HAF+-_A=+—H BEEHM T
following persons and entities, other than the Directors and the chief  FIA TR ERE (ZEZERARREBITEAERIN)
executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the R D R IRRINL D R BB RIEES LB EIEHIE
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to ~ 336K N AR R BT HFE 2 & o MRk

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests in Shares - Long Position

BRBFHERRKE

W
Wi ZEZ-FE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of substantial Capacity/ Shares Total the Company’s
shareholders Nature of interests interested Notes interests issued Shares*
EARE
FrEE#EL BRITRHZ
TEREEB HE St/ HAHE B8 A s R BAE S b
First Pay Beneficial owner 649,232,000 649,232,000 16.75%
F-xft EaEAA
Ms. Zhang Beneficial owner 18,000,000 781,148,000 20.16%
R T EnBEBA
Family interest 763,148,000 1
RIEHE =
Jiefang Media (UK) Co. Limited Beneficial owner 355,990,400 355,990,400 9.19%
(“Jiefang Media”)
EnBERA
Shanghai Xinhua Interest in a controlled 355,990,400 2 355,990,400 9.19%
Publishing Group Limited corporation
(“Xinhua Publishing”)
FERERTEERRRAR REEHER 2 B
([#rERT])
Shanghai United Media Group Interest in controlled 355,990,400 2 355,990,400 9.19%

LEHREEE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND

Report of the Directors
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SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Interests in Shares - Long Position (Continued)

RERMBZEZ-FE @

FTERREREMATRRY RHEEE
BEHARHEZRERE @)

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of substantial Capacity/ Shares Total the Company’s
shareholders Nature of interests interested Notes interests issued Shares*
HALR
AR BETRMZ
TERFEB A St/ HEEEE B8 A B & o BAE 4 b
Shanghai Greenland Interest in controlled 355,990,400 2 355,990,400 9.19%
Group Company Limited corporations
(“Greenland Group”)
L& (KE)BRAA REEHER 2 s
(MgEE])
Aisidi (HK) Ltd. (“Aisidi HK”) Beneficial owner 115,384,615 3 265,384,615 6.85%
EiE (BB BRAA ERBEBA
(IEwERE]) Beneficial owner 150,000,000
ExBEBA
Shenzhen Aisidi Co. Ltd. Interest in a controlled 265,384,615 4 265,384,615 6.85%
(“SZ Aisidi”) corporation
AN E ERG R A A REZEHEE 2 s
(MRYITmEE])
Sinomaster Group (“Sinomaster”) Interest in controlled 265,384,615 4 265,384,615 6.85%
corporations
Sinomaster Group ([ Sinomaster | ) RS HIEE 2 %
Shenzhen Huaxiafeng Ltd. Interest in controlled 265,384,615 4 265,384,615 6.85%
(“SZ Huaxiafeng”) corporations
Shenzhen Huaxiafeng Ltd. REZEGER 2 s
('SZ Huaxiafeng | )
Huang Shao Wu =3 E Interest in controlled 265,384,615 4 265,384,615 6.85%
(“Mr. Huang”) corporations
RN ([FEAE]D REEHER 2 #w
F 2015 pELEERERAT O34
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Interests in Shares — Long Position (Continued)

Notes:

)

Out of the total 763,148,000 Shares, 649,232,000 Shares were held
by First Pay, the entire issued share capital of which was owned
by Mr. Zhang who is the husband of Ms. Zhang, and the remaining
113,916,000 Shares were held by Mr. Zhang. Therefore, Mr. Zhang
was deemed to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

These Shares were held by Jiefang Media. Jiefang Media was wholly-
owned by Xinhua Publishing which was in turn owned by United
Media and its associates as to approximately 50.8% and Greenland
Group as to approximately 39%. Therefore, under the SFO, Xinhua
Publishing was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Jiefang Media, and each of United Media and Greenland Group was
deemed to be interested in all the shares which Xinhua Publishing
was deemed to be interested in.

These underlying Shares represented 115,384,615 Shares to be
issued upon full conversion of the convertible bonds (the “Convertible
Bonds”) in the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 (subject to
adjustments as set out in the conditions for issue of the Convertible
Bonds).

These 150,000,000 Shares and 115,384,615 underlying Shares
were held by Aisidi HK, which was wholly-owned by SZ Aisidi. SZ
Aisidi was owned as to 56% by Sinomaster which in turn is owned
by SZ Huaxiafeng. SZ Huaxiafeng was owned by Mr. Huang as
to 90%. Therefore, under the SFO, each of SZ Aisidi, Sinomaster,
SZ Huaxiafeng and Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the
Shares and the underlying Shares held by Aisidi HK.

The percentage represents the number of Shares and the underlying
Shares interested divided by the number of issued Shares as at 31
December 2015 (i.e. 3,875,210,000 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, according to the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person or entity who/which had any interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO.
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(1) P4 #£763,148,0000% B% 17 # - 649,232,0008%
BROBE-—INEE ME—XNF22PEHE
TRAAREE(RLLTZ2XR)HEE MHT
113,916,0000% & 17 AR SE £ HE A - AL - IR IKFE
HFREEGRD REEBRABNZERDTESR
LE S

(@) ZERH A Jiefang MediafF A ° Jiefang Mediaf
MERT2ERE MAEZRTH FRER
HE B A THEA 4950.8% 5 kG EBHEEL
39% M e ALt IRIBFF KGR - FrEHT
WAk B Jiefang Mediats & ) 2 SBA% 1) 70 A 1
M BB R R AR R B AR AR T E AT
WRRREPHEERENEMROP R ER -

() EEMREEIRMDIER A S A300,000,0007 7T 2 7]
BIEES ([T RRES | ) RS E RS T 31T
2115,384,61588 1% 15 (BRI ITAI B EFHF 21§
BRI TAE) -

4) 5% %150,000,0008% % 17 & 115,384,6150% 44 B8 A%
MIBHEREESRE MEKEEESTHTRY
MEEEE2E A o AY|TE HEE B Sinomaster
E56%7E z + M Sinomaster# M FHSZ Huaxiafeng
¥ B o SZ Huaxiafengf & 5t 4 # H90%H# 2=
Bt - REBEEFHFRBEEAN FITERE-
Sinomaster *SZ Huaxiafeng 2 & 7t £ & B #48 A1
BHEEARFAE 2RO REARN P HEEER -

* EZEADH A #am 2 R 1D RIGEIR (1720 B B

KR -—FE—RFEF+ - HA=+—HA2ZE %7K %
A (£13,875,210,0000% 8% (7 ) °

BrEdEN RZE—RF+TA=1T—H RE
RAFIRBELSRBAE GO EIBCIRETE 2 #
B R AT R - WA A 13k E B8 A AR 17 Sk AR B AR
MPEEREFESFRARKRIIZAREARREEN
Ef S S A R -



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolution of the
Shareholders on 4 November 2010 for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group and/or enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Directors, INEDs, employees of the Group, customers of the
Group, consultants, advisers, managers, officers or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support to the
Group.

129,470,000 share options were granted during the Year (2014:
193,800,000). Thus, there were 315,450,600 Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme, representing approximately
8.14% of issued Shares as at 31 December 2015. Options
comprising a total of 10,600,000 underlying Shares had lapsed, and
options comprising a total of 14,490,000 underlying Shares had
been exercised as at 31 December 2015.
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B ESE

REBRR-_F-FF+- ANANEERER
AR A —BBEER 8 ([BEERE])
NEHAERBEESARBEEHZEMG TR
BREER FBEAEESUABERRESER
BERESIBAKEEEENANER BEE
AEZAER2EERREES BIUATES:
AEEREE AEBEF ERH FAAKEA
B SRR B oA AN R B 1R A 3 s B A Rl X
EHERE-

RERFEE129,470,0000) B #E# (— 2 — Y
£ :193,800,0001% ) - At EEREFE BT B
315,450,600/ & (7 Al 31T - HEXR T —H
FHZA=T—HZBETRMDL814% - RZZE
—hFE+ZA=1+—H" ¥ k& 10,600,000 48
BRR (5 2 BB AR MR B 2R I I $£14,490,0008%
RS 2 ERED T -

Details of movements of the share options granted under the Share  #RiZEE IR 2P HBEIRENFERN 2 S BB
Option Scheme for the Year were as follows: U N
Number of underlying Shares comprised in the options
BRESRZERRHEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2015 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2015
B’
® —%-1%
i gk mEEY -P-if . ‘ +=A
£l RHAH s TR KfE -R-H8 FRi EMfTE FREH FRRH =+-H
HKS$ HKS
B BT
Directors
i
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1.814 - 10,000,000® S = S - 10,000,000
10 December 2024
TRERE “E-QE “E-RfT-A+-AE
TZA+-H “ZCmETZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 5,000,0009 - - - 5,000,000
10 December 2025
“2-f —E-AF+-A+-RHZ
+ZA+-A “ECRFTCATA
Mr. Chng Swee Ho 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 3,000,0009 - - - 3,000,000
10 December 2024
HREEE ke S} 3 “I-A%t-A+-R%
TZA+t-H “R-METZATA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 3,000,0009 - = = 3,000,000

10 December 2025
E-RET-AT-HE
“Z-RFTZATH

—2-55+4
-8
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RS (m
Number of underlying Shares comprised in the options
BRESRZERRBEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2015 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2015
B®
i “g-1f
) B8R mEFY ZF-1f - +2A
bl RHAH T8 TR BfE -R-H EnRY ERNFTE EnEH ERRH =+-H
HKS HK$
oy BT
Mr. Sheng Jia 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 3,000,000@ - - - - 3,000,000
10 December 2024
RELE ke Sl 3 —Z-A%t-At+-B%
TZA+-8 ZZ-mETZATA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
10 December 2025
—T-Rf —E- 5+t-A+-AZ
TZA+-H —Z-R¥+ZATH
Mr. Li Gang 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 2,000,000® - - - - 2,000,000
10 December 2024
kL it Slif:3 “F-nFt-A+-R%
+ZA+-8 ZE-mE+=A+A
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
10 December 2025
—T-nf “2-"¥t-AT-BZ
TZA+-H “Z-RftZA1H
Mr. Wong Sai Hung 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1.814 - 2,000,0009 - - - - 2,000,000
10 December 2024
EtHERE “Z-QE “E-RFT-A+-HE
TZA+-H —Z-ME+=ATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 2,000,0009 - - - 2,000,000
10 December 2025
“Z-1F ZE-~Ft-AT-BZ
+=ZA+-8 “E-RFtZATA
Mr. Ge Ming 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 1,000,000¢ - - - - 1,000,000
10 December 2024
ERLL it Slif:3 “2-n¥t-At-B%
TZA+-H ZZ-mETZATA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 1,480,0009 - - - 1,480,000
10 December 2025
—T-Rf —E- 5+t-At+-RZ
TZA+-8 —Z-RFt-ATH
Mr. Wang Wi 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 1,000,000® - - - - 1,000,000
10 December 2024
THEE it Slif:3 “Z-nFt-A+-R%
TZA+-H “Z-mETZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 1,480,0009 - - - 1,480,000
10 December 2025
—T-nf “2-"¥t-At-BZ
TZA+-H “Z-R5tZA1H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) ,E\%ESL*E =T & ()
Number of underlying Shares comprised in the options
BRESRZERRHEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2015 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2015
R —5-1%f
i mEFY -F-1f +ZR
bl RHAH s TR BifE -fA-H FRi FRfTE ENFSH EREH EitH
HKS HKS
BT BT
Dr. Ou Minggang 11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 1,480,0009 - - - 1,480,000
10 December 2025
BHRIEL “Z-IE ZE-REtZAt-RZ
TZA+-8H ZZ-RF+ZATR
Dr. Yin Zhongli 11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 14800009 - - - 1,480,000
10 December 2025
FRUFE —Z-3% “2-"¥t-At-B%
+ZA+-8 —E-Rft-ZA+A
Former Directors
HES
Mr. Ting Pang Wan, 12 July 2013 12 Aprl 2014 to 0.74 2.150  14,490,000% - (14,490,000) - - -
Raymond 11 July 2018
THEXE “2-=F “Z-MENAT-AZ
tA+ZH “Z-\¥+A+-H
Mr. Peter Z Kuk 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 1,000,000@ - - - (1,000,000) -
10 December 2024
HELE keSS “Z-A%t-A+-A%
TZA+-H “Z-MET=ATH
37,490,000 20,920,000  (14,490,000) - (1,000,000 42,920,000
Employees 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1814 - 39,300,000 - - (6,600,000) 32,700,000
(in aggregate) 10 December 2024
&S (83) “E-QE “I-R§t-A+-HZ
TZA+-8H “ZZRE+ZATH
8 June 2015 8 June 2016 to 213 - - 36,550,000¢ - - (2,500,000) 34,050,000
7 June 2025
“Z-1% Z2-R"ERANRE
~ANA ZZZRFRALA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 18,000,0009 - - - 18,000,000
10 December 2025
—T-Rf —E- 5+t-At+-RZ
TZA+-H ZZZRETZATR
Former Employees 12 July 2013 12 April 2014 to 0.74 - 500,000% - - - (500,000) =
(in aggregate) 11 July 2018
HifES (A5) —3-=f “E-MEMAT-HE
tA+=H —Z-\&tA+-A
39,800,000 54,550,000 - - (9,600,000) 84,750,000
Consultants 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 1.814 - 131,500,000¢ - - - - 181,500,000
10 December 2024
BB —E-pE —E-Rf+-A+-RAZ
TZA+t-H —Z3-mE+=ATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 337 - - 54,000,0009 - - - 54,000,000
10 December 2025
—3-1f “E-RET-AT-HE
TZA+T-H ZZ-RFTZATH
131,500,000 54,000,000 - - - 185,500,000
Total 208,790,000 129,470,000  (14,490,000) - (10,600,000 313,170,000
it
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$0.75 per Share.

©)) The options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:

(i) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 10 December 2015;

(ii) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 10 December 2016;

(iii) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 10 December 2017;
and

(iv) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 10 December 2018.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which

the share options were granted was HK$1.79 per Share.

4) The options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:
(i) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 7 June 2016;
(ii) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 7 June 2017;
(iii) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 7 June 2018; and
(iv) one-fourth of the options shall vest on 7 June 2019.
The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which

the share options were granted was HK$2.13 per Share.
5) The options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:
0} 40% of the options shall vest on 10 December 2016;
(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 December 2017; and
(iii) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 December 2018.
The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which

the share options were granted was HK$3.43 per Share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Please refer to note 47 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of the fair value of options granted in 2015.

The fair value of share options granted were calculated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model for the year ended 31 December
2015 and 2014. The inputs into the model were as follows:
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BER T RAFERIBREATVFEZHE
FLRHEE M RR M EE4T o

REZ_ZT—RAFE-_ZT—NF+_RA=+—H
HEFER EREERE, AFENERRBAT -
FRZUAETERAFE - AZEX 2&EW
T

11 December 2014 8 June 2015 11 December 2015
—F-mE “E-1f ZE-AE
+ZRA+—H ~A/NH +ZA+—H

Inputs into the model WMAZER 28R
Exercise price IEE HK$1.8478 T HK$2.137 7T HK$3.37/8 7T
Expected volatility TBER IR 41.71%-42.35% 44.56%-49.47% 48.48%-50.96%
Expected life 5 Hi F 5 2-5 yearsF 2-5 yearstF 2-4 yearst
Expected dividend yield TEHARE B = 0.676% 0.219% 0.287%

Risk-free rate e
Expected volatility of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme was determined by using
the historical volatility of the share price of comparable companies
and the Company respectively. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The fair values of share options granted to consultants were
measured at the fair value of the services received.

The Group recognised total expenses of approximately
RMB43,999,000 for the Year (2014: RMB4,790,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

0.43%-1.237%

0.479%-1.314% 0.404%-0.895%

RIBERAFEERBRE S LBEET B
oz R 2 TEHVR IR T 0 BRI & L A F]
KA R 2 BB 2 BERKEMERE - ZRAFK
ReBEHEHERBEREE Z&REBRATE
FETERILTAARZEEELRAE-

BT R 2 BARE Y AT AR RERE 2 A
FiEstE -

REBRAREERARRRLE 2 EBIREERFX
@z A R#43,099,0007T (ZE—F : AR
4,790,0007T) ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year did the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company (including their respective
spouses and children under 18 years of age) have any interest in or
exercise, or had been granted, any rights to subscribe for shares
(or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, associated companies, fellow
subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or the chief executive of the Company to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company and/or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO).

STRUCTURE CONTRACTS

1. Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company

Limited* (L BSREBAEBR 28 )
(“Shanghai Yintong”)
Shanghai Yintong recorded revenue and a net loss of
RMB129,000 and RMB1,753,000, respectively, for the Year
(for the year ended 31 December 2014: revenue and a net
loss of RMB2,351,000 and RMB2,212,000, respectively).
As at 31 December 2015, the total assets and net assets of
Shanghai Yintong were RMB43,455,000 and RMB44,272,000,
respectively (as at 31 December 2014: RMB45,701,000 and
RMB46,025,000, respectively).
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* (L BiRBEHBREFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

Shanghai Yintong, a limited liability company established in
the PRC, has entered into the structure contracts (“Structure
Contracts”) with Lucky Target Property Consultants (Shanghai)
Company Limited (& 12 ¥ % B8/ (_£)8) B2 F]) (“Lucky
Consultants”), a limited liability company established in
the PRC and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and its equity holders, namely, Shanghai Jinhan
Investment Development Limited ( F /8888 IEEHR A
R A F]) (“Jinhan Investment”), a limited liability company
established in the PRC and Xinrong Asset Management Limited
(FTMEESEARAA) (“Xinrong Asset”), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, pursuant to which all the
business activities of Shanghai Yintong are managed by Lucky
Consultants and all economic benefits and risks arising from
the business of Shanghai Yintong are transferred to Lucky
Consultants.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Structure Contracts:

(1) Management Agreement

On 25 February 2010, Jinhan Investment, Xinrong
Asset, Shanghai Yintong and Lucky Consultants entered
into a management agreement (the “Management
Agreement”), pursuant to which Lucky Consultants
agreed to manage and operate the business, including
pawn loan and entrusted loans, of Shanghai Yintong.
Under the Management Agreement, Lucky Consultants
is responsible for the management and operation of
Shanghai Yintong.

Under the Management Agreement, Lucky Consultants
shall assume all economic benefits and risks arising
from the business of Shanghai Yintong. The revenue
of Shanghai Yintong, after deducting all relevant costs
and expenses (including taxes) shall be paid to Lucky
Consultants after the accounts of Shanghai Yintong have
been audited.
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

93

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* (L BEsRBEEER LA )
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

(1)

2

Management Agreement (Continued)

The term of the Management Agreement is 10 years
commencing on 25 February 2010, and renewable at the
request of Lucky Consultants.

Pledge Agreement

On 25 February 2010, Jinhan Investment, Xinrong Asset,
Shanghai Yintong and Lucky Consultants entered into a
pledge agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”), pursuant
to which Jinhan Investment and Xinrong Asset granted
to Lucky Consultants a continuing first priority security
interest over their respective equity interests in the
registered capital of Shanghai Yintong (the “Pledged
Securities”). The Pledged Securities represent the entire
equity interests in the registered capital of Shanghai
Yintong, and the entering into of the Pledge Agreement
secures due performance of the contractual obligations
by Jinhan Investment, Xinrong Asset and Shanghai
Yintong under the Structure Contracts.

The Pledge Agreement is for a term commencing on 25
February 2010 and ending on the date of termination of
the Management Agreement.
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* (L BEsRBEEER 2 A)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)
(2) Pledge Agreement (Continued)

The pawn loan business currently engaged by Shanghai
Yintong is regulated by, amongst others, the Pawning
Measures. In accordance with applicable PRC law and
regulations, an application for the establishment of a
new pawnshop must be submitted to local commerce
authorities and thereafter must undergo examination and
approval by provincial level commerce authorities and
finally the Ministry of Commerce (‘“MOFCOM”) before
MOFCOM can issue the requisite Pawn Operations
Business Licence. Further, a transfer (or accumulated
transfers) to a third party of more than 50% of the equity
interests in a pawnshop must receive approval from
the provincial level commerce authorities and thereafter
must undergo examination and approval by MOFCOM.
However, as at 31 December 2015, no relevant rules
and regulations had been announced by the PRC
governmental authorities regulating this sector. Approval
for investment in pawn business by foreign invested
companies in the PRC falls under an administrative
act, which means that if there are no established laws
governing the investment by foreign invested companies
in pawn business, no approval can be granted and no
licence can be issued to a foreign invested company.

In addition to the above regulatory issue, the reasons for
adopting the Structure Contracts together with the risks
associated with them are disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 15 November 2010. There were
no material changes to the Structure Contracts and/or
the circumstances under which they were adopted, nor
was there any unwinding of them or of a failure to do the
same due to the restrictions that led to their adoption
being removed.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

95

Beijing Phoenix Credit Management
Corporation* (1t ZBEEEREEFRAA)
(“Beijing Phoenix”)

For the Year, Beijing Phoenix recorded revenue of
RMB33,245,000 and a net profit of RMB5,889,000,
respectively (for the year ended 31December 2014: Nil
for both). As at 31 December 2015, the total assets and
net assets of Beijing Phoenix were RMB59,520,000 and
RMB44,535,000, respectively (as at 31December 2014: Nil for
both).

On 11 August 2014, Wanjun Hangzhou Venture Capital
Management Company Limited (“Wanjun Hangzhou”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
acquisition agreement to acquire a 100% equity interest in
Beijing Phoenix through structured contracts at a consideration
of RMB50.0 million. The transaction was completed on 28
January 2015.

The principal business of Beijing Phoenix is engaged in
operating an online P2P lending business, which concentrates
on financial assets, via a website (www.9888.cn % &l T 35)
under the brand name of Financial Workshop/< &t 15 .

Beijing Phoenix’s existing shareholder is a nominee, which
holds 100% of its registered capital.

(1) Exclusive Option Agreement

The nominee has irrevocably agreed, to the extent
permitted under the laws of the PRC, to transfer to
Wanjun Hangzhou or any persons(s) designated by
Wanjun Hangzhou at any time and from time to time, all
or part of its equity interests in Beijing Phoenix, or all or
part of the assets of Beijing Phoenix.
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

2. Beijing Phoenix Credit Management
Corporation* (1t ZBEEERAEEFRAA)
(“Beijing Phoenix”) (Continued)

(1)

2

Exclusive Option Agreement (Continued)

Wanjun Hangzhou may exercise its rights under the
paragraph above at any time and in any manner at
its sole discretion as permitted under the laws of the
PRC. The exercise price of each of the rights under
the paragraph above shall be RMB1 or the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to
any other price as required by the PRC government
authorities.

The nominee undertook that, among other things, it
will not () amend the articles of association of Beijing
Phoenix; (i) increase or decrease the registered capital
of Beijing Phoenix; (iii) transfer, mortgage, create any
security interest or third party rights in its equity interests
in Beijing Phoenix (save for the pledge under the Equity
Pledge Agreement set out below); or (iv) appoint or
remove any directors of Beijing Phoenix.

Exclusive Consultancy and Services
Agreement

Beijing Phoenix has engaged Wanjun Hangzhou on
an exclusive basis to provide consultancy services
in connection with the business of Beijing Phoenix,
including technology research and development,
technology support, technology consultation, technology
training and other related management and corporate
consultation services.

In consideration of the provision of consultancy services,
Beijing Phoenix will pay Wanjun Hangzhou a monthly
service fee equivalent to 100% of the monthly net income
of Beijing Phoenix. During the term of the Exclusive
Consultancy and Services Agreement, Wanjun Hangzhou
shall have the right to adjust the service fees at its sole
discretion without the consent of Beijing Phoenix.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

2. Beijing Phoenix Credit Management
Corporation* (1t ZBEEERAEEFRAA)
(“Beijing Phoenix”) (Continued)

Q7

3

4)

Equity Pledge Agreement

The nominee(s) has agreed to pledge all equity interests
in Beijing Phoenix held by the nominee(s) (including
present registered capital and its rights and benefits
and any future registered capital and its rights and
benefits acquired or held by the nominee(s) subsequent
to the date of the Equity Pledge Agreement) to Wanjun
Hangzhou, as continuing first priority collateral security
for the performance of all payment obligations of the
nominee(s) (including but not limited to those under the
Exclusive Consultancy and Services Agreement and
relevant interests, costs and expenses).

Business Cooperation Agreement

Wanjun Hangzhou and Beijing Phoenix have established
a cooperation committee (the “Cooperation Committee”),
and its composition and the appointment procedure
of the committee chairman and members shall be
the same as those of the Board. The functions of the
Cooperation Committee include (1) supervision of daily
business operation of Beijing Phoenix; (2) confirming and
adjusting the service fees payable by Beijing Phoenix to
Wanjun Hangzhou under the Exclusive Consultancy and
Services Agreement; (3) supervision of the execution of
the Business Cooperation Agreement and the Exclusive
Consultancy and Services Agreement; and (4) formulating
and making recommendations on principal and strategic
operation issues of the business of Beijing Phoenix and
Wanjun Hangzhou.
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

2. Beijing Phoenix Credit Management
Corporation* (1t ZBEEEREEFRAA)
(“Beijing Phoenix”) (Continued)

(5) Power of Attorney

The nominee(s) has/have, among other things,
irrevocably authorised Wanjun Hangzhou or any
members of the board of directors of Wanjun Hangzhou
and its respective successors or liquidators to act on
its behalf all matters in relation to its equity interests
in Beijing Phoenix, including attending shareholders’
meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’ meeting and
shareholders’ resolutions, exercising its full shareholder’s
rights under the articles of association of Beijing Phoenix
and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including
but not limited to shareholders’ voting right, the right
to sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of all or
part of rights relating to its equity interest in Beijing
Phoenix, appointing the legal representative, chairman,
director, supervisor, managing director and other senior
management of Beijing Phoenix, filing documents with
the relevant companies registry and exercising the right
to appropriate, use or otherwise dispose of the dividends
declared by Beijing Phoenix.

There were no material changes to the structured contracts
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted, nor
was there any unwinding of them or of a failure to do the same
due to the restrictions that led to their adoption being removed.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

P9

Beijing Phoenix Credit Management
Corporation* (1t ZBEEEREEFRAA)
(“Beijing Phoenix”) (Continued)

Apart from foreign ownership restrictions, the structured
contracts also relate to internet content provision (ICP)
licences. The Company understands it will be subject to more
stringent requirements or additional requirements imposed by
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC
or its local counterparts (the “Relevant Authority”) as compared
to domestic enterprises in the PRC. As compared to domestic
enterprises in the PRC, the Relevant Authority will require more
information, documents and other proof from an applicant
which is a foreign-owned enterprise in various aspects,
such as the identity and nationality of its ultimate individual
shareholders, its prior experience in operating value-added
telecommunications businesses and a proven track record of
its overseas business operations (collectively, the “Additional
Information”). No criteria, standard, guidance or interpretation
documents have been published by the Relevant Authority on
how the Additional Information will be assessed, whether in
qualitative or quantitative aspect, and on the extent or form of
requirements of the Additional Information.

Due to the lack of clarity on how the requirements in respect
of the Additional Information can be satisfied, an applicant
like the Company will be unable to follow such requirements
when applying for an ICP licence to the Relevant Authority,
and hence there will be a prolonged process of application
with unknown results. Hence, there exists great difficulty and
uncertainty for the foreign-owned enterprises to apply for an
ICP licence from the Relevant Authority in the PRC. Taking into
account the above points, in order not to interrupt the daily
operations of Beijing Phoenix, the Group had to adopt the
structured contracts to own the entire equity interests of Beijing
Phoenix.
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

Beijing Phoenix Credit Management
Corporation* (1t ZBEEERAEEFRAA)
(“Beijing Phoenix”) (Continued)

In addition to the above regulatory point, the reasons for using
the structured contracts together with the risks associated with
them as well as the actions taken by the Group to mitigate
such risks were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 11 August and 20 October 2014.

UCF Pay Limited* (X #ZXHHR L A)
(“UCF Pay”) (Formerly named as Dalian
UCF Business Services Co., Limited* K&
EEMBRBBERLA)

For the Year, UCF Pay recorded revenue and a net profit
of RMB140,070,000 and RMB83,638,000, respectively
(for the year ended 31 December 2014: RMB66,316,000
and RMB33,516,000, respectively). As at 31 December
2015, the total assets and the net assets of UCF pay were
RMB1,091,163,000 and RMB218,295,000 respectively (as at
31 December 2014: RMB444,647,000 and RMB134,658,000,
respectively).

The Group in October 2013 entered into structured contracts
with Bt & 812 &£ E AR A 7 (United Venture Guarantee Group
Co. Ltd.*), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability and 98.17% indirectly owned by Mr. Zhang Zhenxin
(‘UVG Group”) and with B BiE & R/ ERER (b)) &
R 22 7] (Guorong United SME Investment Consultancy (Beijing)
Co. Ltd.*), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability and owned by an independent third party (“Guorong
Investment”). The structured contracts relate to the effective
control over and the rights to enjoy the economic benefits in
and/or assets of UCF Pay which is principally engaged in the
provision of online third-party payment services and prepaid
card issuance business in the PRC and which has a third-party
payment licence issued by the People’s Bank of China. Online
payment profit is primarily obtained from transaction fee and
interest income from reserve fund accounts.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

101

UCF Pay Limited* (%X #ZHHR L A)
(“UCF Pay”) (Formerly named as Dalian
UCF Business Services Co., Limited* X &
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ BE/L}EJ ) (Continued)

The Group is not able to acquire the equity interests in UCF
Pay because foreign invested enterprises in the PRC are not
granted approval and licences to engage in online payment
services. The structured contracts include an exclusive
management and operation contract, an exclusive call option
contract, a shareholders’ entrustment contract and an equity
pledge contract, together with powers of attorney ancillary
to such agreements (collectively, the “Control Contracts”).
Taken as a whole, the Control Contracts allow the Group to
effectively control UCF Pay and therefore recognise and receive
substantially all of the economic benefits of the business and
operations of UCF Pay. The following is a summary of the
principal terms of the Control Contracts:

(@ UCF Pay agreed to (i) engage the Group to provide
exclusive and comprehensive management and
operation services to UCF Pay; and (i) pay an annual
management service fee to the Group equal to the
revenue generated by UCF Pay after deducting all
relevant costs and expenses (including taxes), losses and
related reserve funds;
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STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

3. UCF Pay Limited* (& ZHHRAA)
(“UCF Pay”) (Formerly named as Dalian
UCF Business Services Co., Limited* X &
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ BE/L}EJ ) (Continued)

(b)

UVG Group and Guorong Investment () have granted
the Group the exclusive right to acquire any or all
the equity interests in UCF Pay at the lowest price
as and when permitted under the relevant PRC laws
and regulations on the condition that such acquisition
shall be in compliance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations; (i) have pledged their entire equity interests
in UCF Pay to the Group for the purpose of securing
the performance of their and UCF Pay’s respective
contractual obligations under the Control Contracts; and
(iiiy have entrusted the Group or its designated party to
exercise all their respective rights as shareholders of
UCF Pay including but not limited to the rights to vote in
a shareholders’ meeting, sign shareholders’ resolutions
and file documents with the relevant registration authority
and the rights to receive the remaining assets of UCF Pay
upon the winding-up of UCF Pay. The Control Contracts
shall be legally binding on the successors of UVG Group
and Guorong Investment in the event of any change in
their holding of the “equity interest of UCF Pay due to
bankruptcy, winding-up, termination of operation or any
other reason.”; and

in case of a dispute in relation to the Control Contracts,
the parties to the Control Contracts shall negotiate in
good faith to resolve the dispute. If the dispute cannot be
settled through negotiation within 45 days, any party may
refer the dispute to the Dalian Arbitration Commission
for an arbitration award which shall be final and binding
on the parties concerned. In addition, pursuant to the
terms of the Control Contracts, the Dalian Arbitration
Commission has the power to effect actions or arbitral
awards on any shares, assets or business of UCF Pay,
including the grant of compensation orders, restraining
orders or winding up order. Such arbitration awards will
be enforced by the People’s Courts of the PRC with
jurisdiction.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

STRUCTURE CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

UCF Pay Limited* (£#ZRHHMRAA)
(“UCF Pay”) (Formerly named as Dalian
UCF Business Services Co., Limited* X &
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ BE/L}EJ ) (Continued)

The Control Contracts are valid for a term of ten years
commencing on 21 November 2013 and may be extended
for such further ten-year periods as may be requested by the
Group. The Group is entitled to effect the early termination
of the Control Contracts at its own discretion. Neither UCF
Pay nor its shareholders may vary or terminate the Control
Contracts. There were no material changes to the Control
Contracts and/or the circumstances under which they were
adopted, nor was there any unwinding of them or of a failure
to do the same due to the restrictions that led to their adoption
being removed. The Group intends to unwind the Control
Contracts arrangement and directly hold the equity interests
of UCF Pay when the relevant restrictions no longer exist. For
further details, including the risks associated with the Control
Contracts as well as the actions taken by the Group to mitigate
such risks, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 9 October 2013.

* For identification purpose only

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A E#EHEREL S (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

1. Sub-tenancy Agreement and Master
Agreement for Business Centre

U)

On 23 October 2014, the Company as sub-lessee
entered into a sub-tenancy agreement with China UCF
Group Co., Limited (“UCF”) as sub-lessor in respect of
the sub-tenancy of an office premises in Hong Kong at a
monthly rent of HK$471,360 for the period commencing
on 25 October 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016
(the “Sub-tenancy Agreement”).

On 28 October 2014, Ever Step Holdings Limited (“Ever
Step”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a master agreement for business centre with
Beijing Fengchao Business Service Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Fengchao”) in respect of the use of the business centres
of Beijing Fengchao and other associates of Mr. Zhang
(excluding the Group) from time to time (the “Connected
Group”) by any member of the Group from time to time
for the period commencing on 25 October 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016 (the “Master Agreement
for Business Centre”).

Mr. Zhang is a NED and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. UCF, Beijing Fengchao and members of the
Connected Group are associates of Mr. Zhang and hence
connected persons of the Company. The transactions
under the Sub-tenancy Agreement and the Master
Agreement for Business Centre constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules.

1. SEBBERETRLOERE

(i)

R-E—WNF+A=-+=8B AQ7
(ERPEMBA) AR H R REE
ERAF ([kgaml) (FRH LM
NiFvolmz (28 BED A
AEMBE-_T—NOFTA-+RAR
E-E-XRE+-A=+—HItHM
% AT471,360B T HEBRAEY
o,

R-TE—NF+A-+=8 KEZE
RERAFR ([KFE]) (RARIZE2E
MEARD BRI REEmBREER
AE ([JEREE DI EBEPOE R
#(EBRLOEWZE])  AEEHH
REBZERKERARHZE—HF
+TAZt+TRARBRE=ZZE—XE+=H
Z T BIHHRTRFERILREYE
KR EZ EMEE A+ (TEERE
E) ([BEEE]) 2EmBHRL -

REERBARBZIFATESRER
RR-EETR EREENBEEE
ZBRRIRREEZHEAL  AH
HARARAB ZEEAL - RIFAIER
EMRRA - DR MEBT O E R
BT 2R BERARB 2 FHBRER
5o

g3 0015 pEEEERERAD 104



Report of the Directors

EEEHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A E#EHEREL S (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2. Annual Caps 2. £FEELR
The maximum aggregate annual consideration for the HEZZ—R"F+tZA=+—RHLE=[FE
aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the three years TBEEER S ERFERBEERR
ending 31 December 2016 and the actual amounts of such RNEEEBRG2EBRSENT

transactions for the years are as follows:

Approximate
actual amounts
for the year
ended
Caps for the three years ended/ 31 December
ending 31 December 2015
#EZ+-A=+-H BE_%-1%
L=EEELR +ZRA=+-H
2014 2015 2016 LEEZ
—F-mE —F-1f —E-RE BABRER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
. Continuing connected transactions
with UCF
. BEBRERHEHERS
(@ Lease arrangements with UCF
as sub-lessor (HKD’000) 1,052 5,656 5,656 5,656
(B) BxEem(ERALEBAAN)Z
MEZH(TAT)
IIl. - Continuing connected transactions
with Beijing Fengchao
I BRBEHEHERSH
(o) Lease arrangements with Beijing
Fengchao as lessor 3,200 6,500 8,000 337
b) BiRBE(ERLEA)IZ
HEZH
For detailed information relating to the above transactions, BB LIRS 2 FWER  F2EXRAT
please refer to the announcement issued by the Company on BRAPA_ZT—NF+A+=HZRE-

23 October 2014,
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A E#EHEREL S (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Review by INEDs and Auditors

The INEDs have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that:

in respect of the Sub-tenancy Agreement and the Master
Agreement for Business Centre, the transactions carried
out during the Year have been entered into a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; b)
on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and ¢) in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

The independent auditors of the Company have performed
procedures on the continuing connected transactions and
issued a letter to the Board to confirm that:

i)

the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provisions of goods
or services by the Group, they have found that the
transactions were in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company;

they have found that the transactions were entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not exceeded their respective caps.

3. HEBILFHUITEERRBEMNER
WY IFRTEFEE BN DS EEERS
R

moMBEREFPLOEREMS
RAFERNETHNR S TIa)R ANEEH
BER—REBKBREPFIL: bIRR—
RRETSRRRET L - AR R R 5
TRUAHEZER ZNGREE R —
RREEG AIREAREET S TER
B FE = ARG EHE (ER) K
{RFRETSL : ROIRIBIRE TR H &
ENBRIGER L MRFERIBAF
B Y HNABRROERN -

27 .

ARBBY ZEBMCHEERER HETE
&

MR YRAEESHE DL KT

i)

ERBENRSEWNERIORESTSH
e
S RAEEREEVEARBORS

M RBEERZERIFHERREAR
AIH) FEBRRAETT

RBEABERZERFURKRIRE
ERERFNERBEET &

ERBERBERERSYRBHREES
BE LR
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The connected transactions between the Group and its associates
during the Year are as follows:

On 12 January 2015, Ever Step, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement with First
P2P Limited to acquire a 10% equity interest in First P2P at a
consideration of RMB50.0 million, later diluted to 9.1% in August
2015. First P2P Limited is an indirectly non-wholly owned company
by Mr. Zhang. The transaction was completed on 27 January 2015.
Details of the transaction was set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 January 2015.

First P2P is principally engaged in the operation of an internet
financing platform. The Directors are of the view that the acquisition
will enhance the Group’s competitiveness in the internet financing
industry in China, and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions disclosed under “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Connected Party Transactions”,
details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements,
which do not constitute notifiable connected transactions under the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed and traded on
the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries
purchase or sell any of such Shares during the Year, save as
disclosed in the section “Issue of Equity Securities” to this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules and all the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, except for
the following:

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the Chairman of
the Board to attend annual general meeting of the Company (the
“‘“AGM”). Due to other business commitments which must be
attended by Mr. Li Mingshan, he was not able to attend the AGM
held on 11 May 2015. Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, the Vice-Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, acted as the chairman of the above AGM to
ensure an effective communication with the Shareholders.

According to Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
must appoint independent non-executive directors representing at
least one-third of the Board. Upon the appointment of Mr. Zhang
Zhenxin as a non-executive director of the Company on 12 July
2015, the Board comprised ten directors, among whom only three of
them were INEDs, which fell below the one-third INED requirement
under Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. Furthermore, upon
the resignation of Dr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho on 3 August 2015,
the Board comprised only two independent non-executive director,
which fell below the requirements of () at least three INEDs under
Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules; (i) a minimum of three
members in the Audit Committee under Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules; and (i) the composition of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee pursuant to their
respective terms of reference.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

However, following the appointment of Dr. Ou Minggang as an
INED, the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee. Furthermore, upon the appointment of Dr. Ou Minggang
as the chairman of Nomination Committee on 11 October 2015 and
the appointment of Dr. Yin Zhongli as an INED on 11 October 2015,
the Company re-complied with Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules
and the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 42 to 69 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued Shares was held by the public throughout
the Year and thereafter up to the date of this report.

REVIEW OF THE FINAL RESULTS BY
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
four members, namely Mr. Ge Ming (Chairman), Dr. Ou Minggang,
Mr. Wang Wei and Dr. Yin Zhongli, all of them being INEDs.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the Year
and this annual report have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Board is of the opinion that such financial information has been
prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting standards,
the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and any other
applicable legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have
been made.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the year end date of 31
December 2015 are set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”), who
will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Board has
taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution to re-
appoint SHINEWING as the independent auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Phang Yew Kiat
Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 Az B A

feksPia

Shineﬂ)inﬁ

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Credit
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 321,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
21 March 2016

18 M A% ZUEN R

ERTEREETERANGREA M BIHREM
HeR L BRBEEREUIEREE - BOREE
FFEUR R X BN < H 6 - 2R A& E B B R
HIREBAHRRA (w2 B BMEFREER S RE)
ZRE - EEH R TR AR RBMEEEE
BEUABEMAAZEAMBERREMZAEE
B URGHEERREF  BAF/SHER A
ERERBAMERERER BRI ETERNEE
EMRAZETBRRRERERMEZ G HE
EEAE UERFEFAMBERRZEREN S
= o

AZEEEE  BPIEBRERNIE 2 EREE
REMzERE R RHEER-

ER

AZBMRL BREBMBEREENRE 2R
EUBHRREEAAMRER ERAFRAMER
ARZE-—RAF+ZA=+—HZYWBIKR KK
FHEZRAULFEZUBRARRSRE YO
BREBLAGIZEEREZERS -

Bk (F8) M EHHERLAE
R EZEAT

HER

HEBEZYRE - PO5591

Bt
—T-A¥=A=+-R

30015« hEEERRERAD |12



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ceBEakHtEERER

For the Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZE-ZE—HF+-A=+—HLEFE

2015 2014
—_E—-afF —E-EF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®F T ARBTT
Turnover X 7 429,590 374,068
Interest income A B U A 7 146,468 175,680
Interest expenses FERAX 11 (101,530) (92,419)
Net interest income FEBNFE 44,938 83,261
Financial consultancy service B %5 55 =l BR FS UL\
income 7 37,650 66,597
Online third party payment service #t % =7 %t RIEUN
income 7 128,148 60,665
Peer-to-peer loan service income P2PEF RN 7 112,546 24,822
Gain on transfer of rights on HREWERMNEER Z
interests on loan receivables I &= 7 4,778 46,304
328,060 281,649
Other income H A A 9 24,427 18,810
Other gains and losses Hfth U 25 & &5 18 10 7,586 =
Handling charges for online third party 48 25 =7 52~ AR% 2
payment service FEB (28,911) (10,154)
Administrative and other operating TR REASERT
expenses (200,887) (189,776)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA Rz W 44 42,091 6,068
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HEGEDFEERE 25 - (56)
Change in fair value of investment WEYHEZ N EE
property 20 (1,000) 10,239
Change in fair value of derivative and T T AR AR ES 2
embedded derivative components of STTETAIRMZ
convertible bond NS EE=) (7,877) 394
Change in fair value of contingent JEW S AREZ
consideration receivable NEEEZS - (8,452)
Share-based payment expenses PARR D 32 F 2 A2 (43,999) (4,790)
Share of results of associates FEAG B & R R SE4E 6,024 672)
Share of results of joint ventures EhEEREEE (6,230) (1,945)
Profit before tax B % B i F 12 119,284 101,315
Income tax Frig i 13 (39,243) (35,057)
Profit for the year FEEF 80,041 66,258
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

5=

nv. \

= N7/

E =z \
For the Year ended 31 December 2015 ESZ

ﬁﬂ%ﬁqﬂl 3 7%

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

2015 2014
—_E—-afF —T-mF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®F T ARBTT
Other comprehensive expense Hit 2 mEH X
Items that may be reclassified BEEAHEEHFNEE
subsequently to profit or loss: HmZEE:
Exchange differences on translating 2 & § 5 & E A &)
foreign operations PE X =% 19,546 (3,020)
Change in fair value of available-for- A H &R E 2
sale investments NEBEEDY 2,824 (1,334)
Other comprehensive expense for FEHMEEMAY
the year, net of income tax MR FTIS L 22,370 (4,354)
Total comprehensive income FEZEBNEERE
for the year 102,411 61,904
Profit for the year attributable to: FE{5 Z FEi&F :
Owners of the Company PINNEIEZ =N 85,606 58,194
Non-controlling interests IR = (5,565) 8,064
80,041 66,258
Total comprehensive income for EhZEESEHITNGLE:
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company iNNEIEZ =N 107,974 56,384
Non-controlling interests FEE i = (5,563) 5,520
102,411 61,904
RMB RMB
AR #E AR
Earnings per share SBEAERN 17
Basic HAK 2.55 cents % 1.85 cents 7
Diluted s 2.55 cents % 1.84 cents 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR 3R

As at 31 December 2015 R=ZZE—FHF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—AfE — g4
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR#T T ARBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment TR 5= K 2% 1 18 10,373 13,817
Club membership E 19 - 737
Investment property "EYE 20 574,000 575,000
Intangible assets EmEE 21 172,141 136,310
Goodwill BES 22 47,871 43,214
Available-for-sale investments AIHEHEERE 23 53,066 1,125
Interests in associates REEE N B 2R 24 60,357 353
Interests in joint ventures REELEZER 25 - 6,230
917,808 776,786
Current assets MEEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 23 37,142 33,055
Trade receivables B 5 YK 26 35,769 17,793
Loan receivables FEWE R 27 2,247,993 862,842
Prepayments and other receivables ~ FE{FBRFX M H ﬁﬁfE Wskmg 27 268,483 183,536
Amounts due from joint ventures UG EDER 25 13,251 5,196
Amounts due from associates e L Bt %’A —J/T>)\ 24 911 =
Amounts due from related FE U B8 3 R R FUE
companies 28 197,532 186,747
Amounts due from non-controlling JE W SE 28 AR AR 3R R IA
shareholders 29 - 4,001
Derivative financial instruments MTESMIT A 30 227 =
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 31 9,018 =
Income tax recoverable Al UG [B] AT 15 AR 1,362 520
Pledged bank deposits BRI 33 - 30,008
Bank balance - trust account IRITAER—(EFERRP 32 527,190 305,728
Bank balances and cash IRITREBRNIES 33 615,015 265,515
3,953,893 1,894,941
Current liabilities i iﬂ] =L
Accruals and other payables EtEAKAEMERNKIE 34 91,909 161,076
Funds payables and amounts due to 1% RAEEAHRIER
customers JEI & P FRIE 32 527,190 305,728
Amounts due to non-controlling FE T IEFE AR Hx%
shareholders 29 1,109 714
Amounts due to related companies AN NEITE O 28 199,758 207,865
Borrowings BE 35 693,616 288,379
Obligations under finance leases mﬁl B EAE 36 2,203 =
Corporate bonds NEfESH 38 173,719 =
Income tax payables FER PSR 16,260 6,525
1,705,764 970,287
Net current assets MBEEFE 2,248,129 924,654
Total assets less current liabilities & & 4818 R ik B & & 3,165,937 1,701,440
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR 3R

As at 31 December 2015 R=ZE—HFE+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—IF —F—mF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R ARET T
Non-current liabilities ErSHEaRE
Corporate bonds NAESH 38 60,044 203,818
Convertible bond AR E 39 234,098 =
Borrowings BE 35 150,000 =
Deferred tax liabilities B IBEE 37 89,209 78,194
533,351 282,012
Net assets EEFE 2,632,586 1,419,428
Capital and reserves BEEREE
Share capital % 2 40 321,642 267,736
Reserves i 2,286,568 1,138,059
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ANA Al A A BIGHE RS
Company 2,608,210 1,405,795
Non-controlling interests JEVEAR M 24,376 13,633
Total equity AR 2,632,586 1,419,428

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 321 were F113BEFR1BE 2 AV B HRREEESTZR

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 Z—ZF—NFE=A -+ — B ERFETE W H
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: NTEERREE
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat Mr. Sheng Jia
TR EE BEEE
Director Director
o EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/-.r\ *ﬂh t B2 E-JJ %%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARER ARG
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share Share Refained  revaluation ~ Exchange  payment controling Total
capital  premium profits reserve reserve reserve Total interests equity
DARIA
RAEM XfHE
RA  RAEE REER e EifE e it EnkEn BafE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR T ARETT ARETR ARBTT AR%TR T ARETT ARETT ARETRT
(Note (a) (Note (c))
(HizE(a) (Hi3¥()
At 1 January 2014 R=F-mF-A-A 245,773 556,369 455,320 1,402 (7,302) 8,698 1,194,135 100,290 1,294,425
Profit for the year ERREF - - 58,194 - - - 58,194 8,064 66,258
Other comprehensive expense FEEMRERY
for the year
Exchange differences on translating BERINEERA
forelgn operations EXER - - - - (476) - (476) (2,544) (3,020)
Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale A/ HERE 2
investments ATEEE - - - (1,334) - - (1,334) - (1,334)
Total comprehensive income (expense) £ F 2EMA (B%)
for the year a1 = = 58194 (1334) 476) = 56,384 5500 61,004
Issue of shares upon exercise of WrEERERETRA
share options (Note 4016)) (H3E400)) 6073 51411 - - - 6459 51,025 - 5105
Issue of shares under placing REREZTRN
(Note 40(a)) (GEZEN 15,890 111,230 - - - - 127,120 - 127,120
Lapse of share options BRIER R - - 205 - - (225) - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 43)  WBE—FEIMBAF
(F3x49) - - - - - - - (99) (99)
Acquisition of additional interests WERHBARZ
in subsidiaries BMER - - - - - - 2,956 (9.989) (7,033)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HERBAR (Hia) - - (2,859 = 17) = - (©@707)  (96,707)
Dividends recognised as distribution B AN EZRE
(Note 16) (Rf3t16) NG - - - - (30615) - 30615
Appropriation to statutory reserve funds A EfEE 2 AR - - (122) - - - - - -
Capital contribution by non-controling ~ FFHERRER 1 &
shareholders - - - - - - - 14,618 14,618
Recognition of equity-settled ERREREEARD
share-based payments TRz EM - - - - - 4790 4,790 - 4790
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-Q%
+=-A=+-H 267,736 688,395 510,758 68 (7,995) 6,804 1,405,795 13,633 1,419,428
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

= N7 z—‘-z
GEERBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZ—HF+-B=+—HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EXCE EPN 4
Equity
Share- component
Investment based of Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Retained revaluation Exchange  payment convertible Capital Special controlling Total
capital  premium reserve profits reserve reserve reserve bond reserve reserve Total interests equity
MR F#RR
RAEf XHFR &% kR

BE  RBEE ZEHE  REEH HE ELGG R RENS RARE HHER @t s EzlR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETT AR%TR ARETR ARETR

(Note (a)  (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d))  (Note ()
(@) (&) (H&E(c)) (GE D))
At1 January 2015 RZE-1F
—-A-A 267,736 688,395 25,067 510,758 68 (7,995) 6,804 - (125,038) 40,000 1,405,795 13,633 1,419,428
Profit for the year EEEF - - - 85,606 - - - - - - 85,606 (5,565) 80,041
Other comprehensive expense  FEH 1 2EFR X
for the year
Exchange differences on REFNEERR
translating foreign operations ER%@ - - - - - 19,544 - - - - 19,544 2 19,546
Change in fair value of ARLEREY
avalable-for-sale investments A TEZH) - - - - 2,824 - - - - - 2,824 - 2,824
Total comprehensive income ~~ EEZFAMA

(expense) for the year (A%)28 - - - 85,606 2,824 19,544 - - - - 107,074 (5,563) 102,411
Issue of shares upon exercise of 177 (R BBk 317

share options (Note 40(d) Bt (Bratdo) 1,141 10,604 - - - - (3,304) - - - 8,441 - 8,441
Issue of shares under placing %ETEEE@*HM\

(Note 40(c)) (Fi3H40()) 52,765 992,525 - - - - - - - - 1,045290 - 1,045,290
Share issue expenses Rip BT - (14774 - - - - - - - - (14774 - (14774
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - 199 - - (199) = = = = = =
Acquisition of a subsidiary e —HHBAR

(Note 43) (HizE43) - - - - - - - - - - - 10,623 10,623
Dilution of interests in EENHBARER

subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 3 - 3 %] -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR

(Note 44) (Fi3k44) - - - - - - = = = = = 386 386
Dividends recognised as BRADRZRE

distrioution (Note 16) (GED) - (11,7249) - - - - - - - - (11,729) - (11,729
Appropriation to statutory EEREEZAR

reserve funds - - 8,039 (8,039) - - - - - - - = =
Capital contribution by FARBRRLE

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 5,300 5,300
Recognition of equity-settied RREREE

share-based payments MRGBE 2 Tl - - - - - - 43,999 - - - 43,999 - 43,999
Recognition of equity component # AR # kB

of convertible bond (Note 39) #5547 (P 3£39) - - - - - - - 23,206 - - 23,206 - 23,206

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%F
tZA=1-H

321,642 1,665,026 33,106 588,524 2,892 11,549 47,300 23,206  (125,035) 40,000 2,608,210 24376 2,632,586
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

SERBDE

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision),
the share premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid and the Company is able to pay debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. During the year ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2015, dividends were funded out of its share
premium.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), companies established in the PRC are
required to transfer at least 10% of their statutory annual profits after
tax in accordance with the relevant statutory rules and regulations
applicable to enterprises in the PRC to the statutory reserve until the
balance of the reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, the statutory reserve may be used to offset against
accumulated losses of the respective PRC companies. The amount of
the transfer is subject to the approval of the board of directors of the
respective PRC companies.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve represents accumulated gains and
losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
that have been recognised in other comprehensive income/(expense),
net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those investments
have been disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received arising from changes in the
Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the loss of control and are accounted for as equity transactions.

Special reserve

The special reserve represented the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of Ever Step Holdings Limited (“Ever Step”),
a wholly owned subsidiary, and E/&RBHZEHR A A (‘LEER
8") and the amount of share capital of the Company issued to Kaiser
Capital Holdings Limited (“Kaiser Capital”’) and Jiefang Media (UK) Co.
Limited (“Jiefang Media”), which are 100% owned by the controlling
shareholders, in 2010 in exchange for the entire equity interests in
the above companies as part of the reorganisation completed on 25
February 2010 to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Growth Enterprises Market
(“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

II‘/T/\IEE/)ILE%

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

2015 2014
—_E-1fF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARBTF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&R E)
Profit before tax B 356 Al s A 119,284 101,315
Adjustments for: T FIBHARE
Depreciation e 5,678 7,139
Interest expenses EENE3 101,530 92,419
Interest income B U A (17,157) (6,788)
Government grants income BT R A (4,277) (9,510)
Net (gain) loss on disposal of HEME K ()
plant and equipment B 18 55 (106) 50
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTEB ARz ke (42,091) (6,068)
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HEGELEZEE - 56
Gain on settlement of Convertible BT AR
Bond e (7,595) =
Share-based payment expenses ARE 9 25 2 32 43,999 4,790
Change in fair value of investment WEYEZ N FEES
property 1,000 (10,239)
Change in fair value of contingent ERHAREZ
consideration receivable N EEH) - 8,452
Change in fair value of derivative and  $T4E T A R AR EH 2
embedded derivative components NEPTET RS H 2
of convertible bond NEEEDY 7,877 (394)
Loss on disposal of held HERIEESR
for trading investment & 2 BB 94 =
Change in fair value of held for RHIEEEKREZ
trading investment NEBEED (52) =
Change in fair value of derivative fTEemIAZ
financial instruments N EEE (33) =
Share of results of associates N E (6,024) 672
Share of results of joint ventures ARSI 8 6,230 1,945
Impairment loss recognised on trade  #t & 5 & Yk
receivables R REREE 2,984 =
Impairment loss recognised on loan &t & Y B ZXHER
receivables DEREN SR 15,562 29,046
Impairment loss recognised on MEREERR
intangible assets AEEE 3,821 =
Impairment loss recognised on MEERRAZRERBE
goodwiill 8,919 -
Operating cash inflows before EEE IR
movements in working capital EERSIMA 239,643 212,885
Increase in trade receivables H 5 e WL i (21,361) (17,793)
Increase in loan receivables JE W E I AN (1,390,967) (105,189)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments T8 BE 7 & H 4th fE Uk
and other receivables SRIERE A (3800) (39,665) (68,090)
Increase in funds payables and BERESENFIER
amounts due to customers B 5 P RRIB L 0 221,462 305,728
(Decrease) increase in accruals and BT & 3 K H i fE
other payables FRIB (R ) 580 (110,165) 148,450
Increase in held for trading FIEEEREEN
investments (9,060) —
Increase in bank balance RITAEARIE N
— trust account —fE5EERP (221,462) (305,728)
Cash (used in) generated from g (A SRS
operations (1,331,575) 170,263
Income tax paid BEAIFTIEH (29,263) (28,860)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM R2nE (PrA) s
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFE (1,360,838) 141,403
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

—AFE+=ZA=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—_E—-af — P4
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBFT ARBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE M&ME (2,372) (13,301)
(Advance to) repayment from ( BEDERI)
joint ventures ﬁ%im (8,055) 49,893
Advance to related companies ﬁ EZ R NEIEEN (7,778) (13,923)
(Advance to) repayment from ([AIEEE N RIEATR)
associates B &5 N BB 3N (911) 525
Repayment from non-controlling FEVEAR AR R E X
shareholders 4,001 =
Repayment from amount due from FEUR BB B A AIIB Z
former subsidiaries EBR 24,849 =
Repayment from amount due from JE U 5 AT S A
a disposed available-for-sale WERARIEZER
investee 59,017 -
Proceeds form deferred cash HERBARZ
consideration of disposal of RERESKE
subsidiaries Fr 58 /I8 73,445 =
Acquisition of investment property WIS B Y% - (61,761)
Acquisition/establishment of - VA AN
associates (53,980) =
Acquisition of club membership g a—p= - (739)
Acquisition of an available-for-sale IS AT H SR E
investment (50,000) =
Acquisition of a joint venture Wisa &% - (7,922)
Consideration paid for acquisition of ~ UrBE —RIM B A TR T
remaining interests in a subsidiary R ZBENRE (2,741) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of an I is —fEEEE R Az
associate BffiEe (160,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of club k= %‘;ZFFH% KIE
membership 779 =
Proceeds from disposal of plant and HEME k& #E 2
equipment Fr 18 /8 984 216
Proceeds from disposal of joint HESE /JE E v
ventures Ffr/E /8! 25 - 1,450
Proceeds from disposal of an o6 AT Hj EREZ
available-for-sale investments Fr 158 3k IH 1,058 =
Net cash inflow(outflow) on disposal  HEKEB A TR S
of subsidiaries WA O ) F 5 44 34,702 (14,046)
Net cash (outflow) inflow on WEE—fEN B ARIEE
acquisition of a subsidiary ) mAFEE 43 (58,929) 103
Decrease in pledge bank deposits BIRBRITFE IR A 30,008 =
Interest income received 2 Y F B U A 13,698 6,300
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING KEZBARSFHE
ACTIVITIES 102,225 (43,205)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

an\/\IEﬁ/JILE%:Z

—AF+ZA=+t—-HLFE

2015 2014
—E—af — T[4
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARBT T AREFIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG 2 TS FRIE 1,045,290 127,120
Proceeds from exercise of option 1T HARE 2 TS SRIE 8,441 51,025
Share issue expenses paid E = %’*‘TTHX MmAX (14,774) —
Advance from (repayment to) #2138 (EXT)
non-controlling shareholders FEFEAR AR R 395 (456)
Advance from related companies BREBMERT 10,802 28,538
New loans raised L ER 918,088 147,808
Proceeds from issue of BIIRREREEZ
corporate bond raised FTi58 708 14,651 203,818
Proceeds from issue of 7O Hx1 55 L
convertible bond FT 1S 338 236,419 =
Expenses paid on issue of EMNETIBREEERY
convertible bond (1,066) -
Repayment of borrowings EEBERK (338,851) (273,714)
Repayment of corporate bonds EBEAFES - (255,611)
Proceeds from financial assets sold ~ RiEOE = EE 2
under repurchase agreement TREEZ TS EIE - 20,781
Repayment of financial assets sold EEBRIZRRIERZ L % Z
under repurchase agreement TREE - (29,914)
Repayment of obligations EEMEHERTZ2EME
under finance lease (14) -
Government grants received B BT £ B 4,277 9,510
Dividends paid ERE (11,724) (30,615)
Capital injection from non-controling R B 1= fiEzs 2 /&
interests 5,300 11,868
Cash outflow from acquisition of I B B BB A Bl < BB IME =R
additional interests in subsidiaries ZEERH 43 - (6,968)
Interests paid on corporate bonds BERNRARESFHNE (19,089) (30,761)
Interests paid on convertible bonds B A] i E 5 F 8 (7,885) -
Interests paid on bank and B RITREMEFHAE
other loans (42,947) (61,658)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) mEEBETS (FTA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 1,807,313 (89,229)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH IR& NIR&EEEE
EQUIVALENTS e 344,250 8,969
Effect of foreign exchange NG [ = B 8 2 B
rate changes 5,250 (8,045)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HHRE X
AT 1 JANUARY ReEEEHE 265,515 259,591
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt+ZA=+—HB&
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by  IR& KRIREHEER
bank balances and cash ASRATAS 84 IR BR 8 51 R 615,015 265,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/j_\

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

1.

BRI

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 4 January 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Zhang Zhenxin
is the substantial shareholder of the Company. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
Other than those subsidiaries established in the PRC and
certain subsidiaries of which primary sources of revenues are
dividends which are derived from the operation of its major
subsidiary operating in Mainland China, whose functional
currency is RMB, the functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”).

The Company'’s principal activities during the year are provision
of consultancy service and investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 48(a).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”) and Interpretations
(“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 — 2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011 — 2013 Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (i) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014,

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss.
The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided
if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=

2.

BRI

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
18 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a
manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation
is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to
a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company consider that the application
of the amendments to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle has had
no material impact in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=ZZ—HF+-B=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both
standards may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The amendments are applied prospectively. The directors of
the Company consider that the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle has had no material impact in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations’

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

2 Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=ZZ—HF+-B=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further
amended to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in the financial statements. A finalised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all
the requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous
years with limited amendments to the classification and
measurement by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS 9
also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for impairment
assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS
39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses
should always be accounted for. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition and,
consequently, more timely information is provided about
expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

o HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis
that is required to be undertaken only for accounting
puUrposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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2.

131

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) |dentify the contract with the customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal,
is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

rather it

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and
arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement
in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bond rates must be used.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 Cycle (Continued)

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34
clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference
between the interim financial statements and wherever they are
included within the greater interim financial report. The other
information within the interim financial report must be available
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements
and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other
information in this manner, then the interim financial report is
incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle will have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based
amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate.
This presumption can be rebutted only in the following limited
circumstances:

) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

ii) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint venture
and associate. An investing entity is required to recognise
the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets
that constitutes or contains a business to a joint venture or
associate in full. An investing entity is required to recognise
the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets that
does not constitute or contain a business to a joint venture or
associate only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that joint venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
has not yet been determined. However, earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group does not have any investment in joint operations,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should decide,
taking into consideration all relevant facts and circumstances,
how it aggregates information in the financial statements,
which include the notes. An entity does not require to provide
a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material. This is the case
even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or
describe them as minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method,
separated into the share of items that (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes; and

(i)  significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Earlier application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFEK

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (the “CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the GEM Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or the GEM Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment property that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3.

BRI

(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

= 7t 7% R 7= M 5

~AE+-A=t-ALEE
EXEFER @

mEBEE

@ BBRREEARATREARFREM
Ttﬂzg%(@% SEEE) 28

#&i% EARANAATIER  BIEUS

it

s  AREEBIRKRET:

. RESRERASEHHEGAAR
BETRER &

o ARENAEBENFZEHDR-

WA FERISRBR LY = TRZE S RT <
Hh—HZEEE AEE@BHMFHE
BIEHBIRE T

MAEBERERE ST 2 REREREHEAREZ
HAEREREUNE TASEERENE
FEEEEIRE S 2 AAEE R E
FHERES - AEEENERNERRERE
IR EERE RN TEENRZRAA
HEEERIBER B

o AEEM &m%hﬁ/\ﬁﬁh&mﬂﬁz
BEMDHBER AEERARERL
HE:

o  REBE - HMIEEEFAAREMAL
BEZEBERERE:

o HMANTHIELZEN K
o  RANFBEELIRTER - KNEE B ATHE
R TAAS 2 EAE M=

ERER (BERZABRREE L2K
RHRN)

32015« hEEERRERAT 138



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/j_\

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3.

BRI

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Change in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Change in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of subsidiaries, it (i) derecognises
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiaries at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (i) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiaries at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
associates or joint ventures.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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3.

141

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o and assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3.

BRI

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating unit (the “CGU”) (or
groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHE K (#)

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

BB MEE

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s or joint venture’s losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its investment in the associate
or joint venture. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate or
joint venture. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture upon the Group losing significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest
is measured at fair value at that date which is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in
accordance with HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate or joint venture and the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued is recognised in profit or loss. Any
amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that investment is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained earnings on the same basis as it would have been
required if the investee had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets),
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at cost less
any impairment loss. Impairment is reviewed annually or when
there is any indication that the club membership has suffered
impairment loss.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3.

BRI

(Continued)

Investment property (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

B R R M 5T

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
as defined above.

Bank balance - trust account and funds
payable and amounts due to customers

Bank balance — trust account and funds payable and amounts
due to customers relate primarily to the online third party
payments service segment and arise due to the time to clear
transactions through external payment networks. When
customers fund their account using their bank account, or
withdraw money to their bank account, there is a clearing
period before the cash is received or settled. Customer
balances are held under online platform as direct claims against
the online platform are reflected on the consolidated balance
sheet as an asset under “bank balance-trust account” and
“funds payable and amounts due to customers” as a liability at
the same time.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”). The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
other income line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts
due from associates, amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders, pledged bank
deposits, bank balance - trust account and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
The Group has designated the unlisted equity securities and
the debt element of an investment in convertible bond as an
available-for-sale investment on initial recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign
currency rates, interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

BB MEE

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale equity financial assets that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and loan receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy
below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable or loan receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/j_\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3.

BRI

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including accruals and other payables,
fund payables and amounts due to customers, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders, amounts due to related
companies, borrowings, obligations under finance leases,
corporate bonds and liabilities component of convertible bond,
are subsequently measured at the amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form as
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bond and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible bond equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bond is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bond equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible bond equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bond equity reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bond (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bond using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

3.

BB MEE

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC local government defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities
recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax”, as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probably
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

3.

161

BB MEE

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the assets realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment property that is measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
property are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business net of sale
related taxes.

Financial consultancy service income is recognised when the
services are provided (for example, financial advisory and
service fees for non-online loan financing transactions).

Peer-to-peer (“P2P”) loan service income is recognised when
the services are provided (for example, financial advisory and
service fees for online loan financing transactions).

Online third party payment service income is recognised when
the services are provided (for example, online loan provision
services to borrowers on behalf of funds providers).

Gain on transfer of rights on interests on loan receivables is
recognised when the rights and titles have been contractually
and legally passed, at which time the Group has transferred to
the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
rights.

Interest income, including administrative fee income, from
financing service and a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from financing service and a financial asset
(including the interest-bearing convertible bond designated as
an available-for-sale investment) is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFEKR (&

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expense are translated at the average rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over subsidiaries that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share-
based payment reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHE K (#)

(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees
(Continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to business associates

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are cancelled and
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

4,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

De facto control over subsidiaries

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in /& 8R3@, 4t
BYNBRAR (EXM) and tREREREESR
~al (dE R BLE), the Group is able to exercise control over
LEBHRE, LI and JEREE through the contractual
arrangements.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has control over /&R, L& and 1t =B
J&l based on whether the Group has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of /&R, L& and 4t
T BLEl unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors
of the Company considered the Group’s rights through the
contractual arrangements. After assessment, the directors
of the Company concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of =
IR, 88T and 1t RBlEland therefore the Group has
control over =/8R3A, #2371 and 1t =Bl EL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment property

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment property that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment property
is not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment property, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amount of investment property measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of investment property as the Group
is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”) and Land
Appreciation Tax (“‘LAT”) on disposal of its investment property.

Classification of joint arrangements

The directors of the Company assessed whether joint
arrangement has been established following the deemed
disposal of 49% equity interests in Absolute Wise Holdings
Limited (“Absolute Wise”) as detailed in note 25, based on the
composition of board of Absolute Wise of which decision about
the relevant activities cannot be made without both parties
agreeing. After assessment, the directors of the Company
concluded that the joint arrangement has been established and
Absolute Wise is classified as a joint venture of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Classification of joint arrangements (Continued)

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group’s acquired domain name, licences and online P2P
platform are classified as an indefinite-lived intangible assets in
accordance with HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”. This conclusion
is supported by the fact that there were no specific terms for
the rights and the directors of the Company expected that the
business underlying the rights can be operated perpetually.
Under HKAS 38, the Group re-evaluates the useful lives of
the domain name, licences and online P2P platform at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the view of indefinite
useful life for the assets. At 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of domain name, licences and online P2P platform
of the Group are approximately nil (2014: RMB475,000),
RMB132,014,000 (2014: RMB135,835,000), net of
accumulated impairment losses of RMB3,821,000 (2014: nil)
and RMB40,127,000 (2014: nil) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss of trade
receivables, the Group takes into consideration the estimation
of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of trade receivables is approximately
RMB35,769,000 (2014: RMB17,793,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately RMB2,984,000 (2014 nil).

Impairment of loan receivables

The policy for impairment of loan receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of the receivables and on management’s judgements. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of loan receivables from these customers, if
applicable, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provision for impairment may be required. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of loan receivables is approximately
RMB2,247,993,000 (2014: RMB862,842,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately RMB19,465,000
(2014: RMB3,903,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

Loan receivables mainly include financing advances provided
to customers which are mainly secured by real estates and
other collaterals. Apart from assessing the financial positions
of customers, the management further reviews value of the
pledged real estates and other collaterals by reference to
recent market transactions in comparable properties or fair
values determined by the directors of the Company. If the
market value of secured real estates and other collaterals
is deteriorated and is below the carrying amount of the
corresponding financing advances, provision on impairment
may be required.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to the directors,
employees and business associates determined at the date
of grant of the respective share options is expensed over
the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the
Group’s share-based payment reserve. In assessing the fair
value of the share options, the generally accepted option
pricing models were used to calculate the fair value of the
share options. The option pricing models require the input
of subjective assumptions, including the volatility of its own
ordinary shares and the expected life of options. Any changes
in these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the
fair value of the share options. Details are set out in note 47.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

The management of the Group determines whether the
intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis.
The impairment loss for intangible assets is recognised
for the amounts by which the carrying amounts exceed
their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of intangible
assets have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
such as the future revenue and discount rates. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amounts of intangible assets are
approximately RMB172,141,000 (2014: RMB136,310,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB3,821,000 (2014: nil).

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwiill
has been allocated. The value—in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill
is approximately RMB47,871,000 (2014: RMB43,214,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB8,919,000 (2014 nil).

Estimation of useful lives of intangible assets

Determining whether useful lives of licences are indefinite
require an estimation of ability to renew the licences, costs of
renewal in the future and the expected lives of the licences to
generate net cash flows for the Group. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the useful lives of the
licences.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sales investments

The management of the Group reviews the available-for-sales
investments periodically to assess whether any impairment
losses exist and any indication of impairment. The objective
evidence of impairment for available-for-sale financial assets
includes adverse changes in the financial performance of
the investments, the management of the Group will also
consider the historical fluctuation records of market condition,
financial position and performance of related industry. As at
31 December 2015, the carrying amount of available-for-
sales investments is approximately RMB90,208,000 (2014:
RMB34,180,000). No impairment losses were recognised as at
31 December 2015 (2014: nil).

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair values based on the
valuations performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of
the current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the investment
property and the corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The carrying
amount of investment property measured at fair value at 31
December 2015 was approximately RMB574,000,000 (2014
RMB575,000,000).

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors of
the Company are responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the
Company work closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The directors of the Company regularly assess the
impact and the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the
fair value of certain types of financial instruments, including
derivative embedded in convertible bond and contingent
consideration receivable. Note 6 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made.

Revenue recognition for gain on transfer of
rights on interests on loan receivables

The management of the Group assesses the timing if the
rights and titles on interests on loan receivables have been
contractually and legally passed to the buyer, at which time
the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the respective rights and revenue is
recognised by the Group accordingly.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEKEE
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to AEBEREEANEEBZENREAEER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, SUE B IR R IR A A BRI T i B
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders BB F IS R E R MRS EEBURERS
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and BEKANE HELARREEDRKE A
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing Hb Rz A T BER &=
access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its REEBEER LT AERRERRRN &
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher B DERSREERIE N T O s
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels BefEEK T E R 8 E AR R I R
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a NMARIE 2 [ ES 18 - 3 (R e 48 B IR Ay &
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital L EREBEL AR
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net AEERFEBEEARL KEEEEARZE-
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, net debt is defined as all HEME BEFEATEEIEE BE
borrowings, obligation under finance leases, corporate bonds MEAE  RRES RARRESF BT
and convertible bond, less bank balances and cash and capital BEEE MEANBREERNME IG5 -
comprises all components of equity.
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—_E—-af —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREF T
Borrowings BE 1,313,680 492,197
Less: Bank balances and cash B ERIT AR MR & (615,015) (265,515)
Net debt EHFH 698,665 226,682
Equity attributable to owners of AARHEANELES
the Company 2,608,210 1,405,795
Net debt-to-capital ratio FREBEBERLE 27% 16%

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of the review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the raising of new debts, the repayment of existing
debts, payment of dividend and issuance of new shares. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €I A
a) TMIAMSE

a) Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 December

mR+-A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-1fF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets  AJ ft HH & ¢ B E &= 90,208 34,180
Loans and receivables (including & & EWRIE (B 1E
bank balances and cash) RITHBEIRS) 3,901,703 1,857,895
Financial assets at fair value BRAFBETAEBZEZ
through profit or loss STREE
Held for trading investments BIEEBHRE 9,018 =
Derivative financial instruments BEREATFEFABRZ
designated at FVTPL MESEIT A 227 =
4,001,156 1,892,075
Financial liabilities THEaR
At amortised costs bice SN 2,114,916 1,155,634

AEENTIEZSRIABEAHLE

The Group’s major financial instruments include

available-for-sale financial assets, trade receivables,
loan receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
joint ventures, amounts due from associates, amounts
due from related companies, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders, derivative financial instruments,
held for trading investment, pledged bank deposits,
bank balance - trust account, bank balances and
cash, accruals and other payables, funds payables
and amounts due to customers, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amounts due to related
companies, amount due to a joint venture, borrowings,
obligation under finance leases, corporate bonds and
convertible bond. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk). The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

CREE FBRESENR BRER
Hith fEURRIE - RIS R EERIE - B
Yok & A Bl FR0E - EYCRRE A Bl F0E
FEWIEZER AR R FIE  PTE SR THE
FHEEERE B EMIBITER  RIT
ERR—EtRP RITERKE S JE
STERREAMENKIE  EREENRK
IE&FEH%F' RIA - JE T FEFE AR AR AR K
I Fttfﬁ IR EREERE
IEEE vﬂﬁtﬂ SR - RAER
&Ttﬁﬂxﬁ% TRTANFIENIEMH
MsT B EE - Bk E SR T EABENE
Et§1ij§\ﬂ ENE € Rk &g
i (BFEF R b R INERPR) ©
t_EiﬁﬂﬁAE’Jﬂlﬁﬁ‘zﬁ\TY EEEE
f@&%ﬁ%u?iﬂf‘ﬁ VATRIR K s R B 3L
HWERBUE & i
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

BB MEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of loan receivables, representing financing
advances to customers under the Group’s pawn loans
business, other secured loan business, entrusted loan
business and microfinance business, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s financial background
and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

In the course of loan portfolio management, the Group
further minimises the credit risk regarding to interests
receivable from loan receivables by transferring the rights
on interests on loan receivables to buyers for certain
consideration, at which time substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the rights have been passed to
buyers by the Group.

35% (2014: 49%) of all financing advances given out
as at 31 December 2015 are backed by real estates
situated in the PRC, as security. The Group also focuses
on identifying legal ownership and the valuation of the
real estate collaterals. An advance given out is based on
the value of collaterals and is in general approximately
2% — 119% (2014: 2% — 88%) of the estimated value of
the collaterals. The Group closely monitors the ownership
and value of the collaterals throughout the loan period.
Advances to customers are due by the date as specified
in the corresponding loan agreement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZEZZ—HF+-B=+—HILLEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. 8% (2014: 13%) of
the total loan receivables as at 31 December 2015 was
due from the Group’s largest customer and 30% (2014:
49%) of the total loan receivables as at 31 December
2015 was due from the Group’s five largest customers
for the Group’s other loan business and entrusted loan
business.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, including Hong Kong,
which accounted for 100% (2014: 100%) of the total loan
receivables as at 31 December 2015.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due
from related companies, amounts due from associates,
amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders and convertible bond, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of
the counterparties are limited as the counterparties have
sufficient net assets to repay its debts and a good history
of repayment. The Group does not expect to incur a
significant loss for uncollected amounts due from these
related companies, associates, joint ventures and non-
controlling shareholders.

With respect to credit risk arising from loan receivables,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of
the counterparties are limited as the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of each individual receivables at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk for bank balance — trust account, bank
balances and pledged bank deposits is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account of the collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of loan receivables and trade receivables
as at the end of the reporting period. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivables are
set out in note 27.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and other source of funding and considers
the risk is minimal.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TRIT A (m

c) Liquidity risk (Continued) c) MBESEEAR (@)
Liquidity risk tables MBE £ R
More than one  More than two

Ondemand  year butnot years but not Total
or within one  exceeding two exceeding five More than  undiscounted Carrying
year years years five years cash flow Amount

—FpE k1 REHH

RERH EFER BFER REnE
-£R W if AEYNE an fRAEfE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  AR®TR  ARMTR  ARETR

As at 31 December 2015 RZF-E5+ZA=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilites 34 &ma K
Acoruals and other payables [Est B R RE M EMFE 73,179 - - - 73,179 73,179
Amounts due to non-controling [EEE TS
shareholders 1,109 - - - 1,109 1,109
Funds payables and amounts dueto ~ EA & BN TERERN TR
customers 521,190 - - - 527,190 527,190
Amounts due to related companies [EREEDRARE 199,758 - - - 199,758 199,758
Borrowings (Note) BE () 809,772 140,338 30,437 - 980,547 843,616
Obligation under finance leases RERERE 2,420 - - - 2,420 2,203
Corporate bonds RAlfEH 187,155 3,683 11,066 72,530 274,434 233,763
Convertible bond MR ES 15,077 15,077 288,290 - 318,444 234,098
1,815,660 159,098 329,793 72,530 2,377,081 2,114,916
More than one  More than two
year but not  years but not Total
On demand or exceeding two  exceeding five More than  undiscounted Carrying
within one year years years five years cash flow Amount
—E)E —ENE REARH
REKRY B B BRER HemE
—ER k3 bk RENE bk EHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTn ARETT ARETn ARET:
As at 31 December 2014 RZZ-mF+=A=+—-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £ M & &
Accruals and other payables EErE R R A1 MR 149,130 - - - 149,130 149,130
Amounts due to non-controlling RER U E SR
shareholders 714 - - - 714 714
Funds payables and amounts due to i & e FUR R ER R F 7R
customers 305,728 - - - 305,728 305,728
Amounts due to related companies B BIE A A 207,865 - - - 207,865 207,865
Borrowings (Note) B8 (&) 299,963 - - - 299,963 288,379
Corporate bonds Ttﬁ 17,596 176,177 7,844 52,775 254,392 203,818

980,996 176,177 7,844 52,775 1,217,792 1,165,634
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

181

c)

d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables (Continued)
Note:

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the ‘on demand or less than 1 month’ time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
to RMB126,000,000 (2014: nil). Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to RMB228,234,000.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its loan receivables, bank balances,
borrowings and corporate bonds. Bank balances,
borrowings and deposits received at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk, while
loan receivable, borrowings, corporate bonds, obligation
under finance leases and convertible bond at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e B S AR Y

Interest rate risk (Continued) d)

The Group’s loan receivables, bank balances, pledged
bank deposits, borrowings, corporate bonds, obligation
under finance lease and convertible bond and their
respective interest rates as at 31 December 2015 and

2014 are set as below:

2= B B ()
REBK =

MR EE 0T :

As at 31 December

—RE+-A=t-—ALEE
6. TRt T B (@)

E-hAFER-ZFT—NF
+:HE+—EZF%§%€%t*
B EEFERTER-BE 2R E
%~@§ﬁ§%%&7&h%%u&ﬁ

R+ZA=+—H
Interest rate 2015 2014
S —E-IfF —ZT-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Fixed rate loan receivables 2015: 0.50% - 2.1% per month
(2014: 0.50% - 2.50% per month) 2,247,993 862,842
T BERER —hF:H5H0.50%-2.1%
(ZZ—MF: 5 H0.50% - 2.50%)
Fixed rate corporate bonds 2015: 5.5% - 9.5% p.a.
(2014: 5.5% - 9.5% p.a.) 233,763 203,818
ERRAIES —E-NF:8F55%-95%
(ZT—MF:5F55%-9.5%)
Variable rate bank balances 2015: 0.01% - 1.75% p.a.
(2014: 0.01% — 0.385% p.a.) 615,015 295,523
FERITHER —AF:HF0.01%-1.75%
(ZZ—MF: §0.01% - 0.385% )
Fixed rate borrowings 2015: 7% - 16.8% p.a.
(2014: 9% - 12%p.a.) 703,616 76,534
ELEE —hF BF7%-16.8%
(ZE—MF:8F9%-12%)
Variable rate borrowings 2015: 2.17% - 7.01% p.a.
(2014: 2.17% — 5.13%p.a.) 140,000 211,845
FEEE 2 -RF:BF217%-7.01%
(ZB -5 :8%217%-513%)
Fixed rate obligation under 2015: 8% - 10%
finance leases (2014 nil) 2,203 -
EERMEREASE —hF:8%-10%
(ZZ—MF:&|)
Fixed rate convertible bond 2015: 6%
(2014 nil) 234,098 -
ERABRRES —RF 6% (ZT—NF &)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable rate
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

50 basis points have been used for variable rate bank
balances and borrowings.

For variable rate bank balances, if the interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB2,063,000 (2014:
RMB966,000 approximately).

For variable rate borrowings, if the interest rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB368,000 as of 31 December 2015
(2014: RMB16,000).

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at 31
December 2015 and 2014 and had been applied to the
exposure to interest risk for financial investments and
borrowings in existence at those dates. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis throughout the two
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e)
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6. EMITE @

Foreign currency risk e) HMEE = Bx
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. ARBERNTTEHABABING - FTEL R
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must ARBRINER GARBBFEHARR
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other TS H MR R ETINE B B S
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. HEIT  INER ZFERMAERTIHRE AR
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange IRITETRAER (EEZREKEE) °
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.
Certain amounts due from joint ventures and other WG ErEZ A TRIEREME
receivables are denominated in RMB, amounts due to HRIBAANREEEHE - ENIEE AR AR R
non-controlling shareholders are denominated in HK$, HA TTETHE - & TR E R AETTET
certain loan receivables and denominated in US$, certain B FFRITEHKUARE - BTRE
bank balances are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$ TTEME AT RITEEUETFE M
and certain bank borrowings are denominated in US$, ETREHESEERBYREE NN
which are currencies other than the functional currency of Bk o
the relevant group entities.
The following table shows the Group’s exposure at TRINRASEBRREHREERAE
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising BRI L B RS LAGNE “itéf.:ﬂEZEﬁE
from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a REERBEMEEZERR
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.
Liabilities Assets
afg BE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—-H R+ZA=+-—H
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-I1f —mEF ZE5-I1f —mF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
HK$ BT 754 714 18,038 32
RMB ARE - - 499 59,222
Uss$ £ - 54,019 24,154 7,371

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

R ER [ B B3 £ R R L] S S R R
ReRM BEEEBSERINERAR A
ERFBEREZEBEIFEAINERR -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

If a 5% (2014: 5%) increase/decrease in HK$ against
the RMB and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit after tax for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB563,000 (2014:
decrease/increase by approximately RMB1,959,000).
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items. The sensitivity
analysis includes cash and cash equivalents where the
denomination is HK$ or RMB other than the functional
currencies of the respective group entities.

If a 5% increase/decrease in US$ against the RMB
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB810,000 (2014: decrease/increase by
approximately RMB1,525,000). 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items. The sensitivity analysis includes cash and cash
equivalents where the denomination is US$ other than
the functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

n\/-_l_\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

BB MEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset (liability) is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The financial assets (liabilities)
of the Group at fair value in the statement of financial
position are grouped into fair value hierarchy as follows:

—AFE+=ZA=+—HLEFE

6. EMITE @
fy) EMIEZATFEE @)

BEEREULNTFEFAEZLX
EEzHEEREMBRZ A
FolE (4)

REE (RBE) BBRAZATEE
FAZBR DERBAFEAEBRE
RZREBREAERE D - AEE A
NHEAMBRARR 2 EBMEE (&
B)NBINDBATZAFERBR:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—8 $Z8 H=4 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETTL
31 December 2015 —F—Hf
+ZA=t+-8
Held for trading REEBRE
investments 9,018 - - 9,018
Derivative financial fTESBTAE
instruments 33 - 194 227
Debt component of A #RkESHZ
convertible bond B EH - - 37,142 37,142
9,051 - 37,336 46,387
31 December 2014 Z—ZE—M#
+ZA=+—-H
Debt componentof ~ AI#kES 2
convertible bond BB MR - - 31,997 31,097
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 7t 7% R 7= M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

6. EMITE @
fy) EMIEZATFEE @)

BEEREULNTFEFNEZE

and financial liabilities that are measured EEsHEERETHMEREZ L
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) FlE (&)
There were no transfers between levels of fair value RAFERBAEFE A FESERM
hierarchy in current and prior year. i3 ke
The following table gives information about how the fair TRIEHEEPNAETZESFEE
values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are kemaBsATE (CERMRAM
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and BRERERBA) 2Bk -
inputs used).

Valuation Significant
Financial assets/ Fair value technique(s) and unobservable
financial liabilities Fair value hierarchy key input(s) input(s)
SHEE/SRAER NFE NTEESR BEALEREZERGA BEATAHEERHA

As at 31 December 2015

R-ZZE-I1&+°A=+—-H

Avalilable-for-sale investments Asset Level 3
- debt component of - RMB37,142,000
convertible bond

HHERE-ARRESZE BE-ARE E

BHs 37,142,0007T
Derivatives financial instruments ~ Asset Level 3
- derivatives embedded in - RMB194,000

convertible bond

TESRMTA-TRRERAE BE-ARE EZR
ZITETA 194,0007C

As at 31 December 2014

R-F-ME+-A=+—H

Available-for-sale investments - Asset Level 3
debt component of convertible - RMB31,997,000
bond

AHEERA-ARES2E AE-ARE F=R
B 31,997,0007

Present value of the contractually The required yield was determined
determined stream of future cash with reference to the credit rating

flows discounted at the required of the convertible bond issuer
yield (note 1) and remaining time to maturity at
12.52%.
RENBEEZARRERENRT REURELZARREFETA
W EHE 2 A (M) ZIEETRREREDIEA 2 Fe
K fE1£12.52% € ©

Black-Scholes option pricing model  Dividend yield taking into account
based on the stock price, volatiity, — management’s expectation of
dividend yield, risk free rate and market conditions of specific
option life (notes 2 and 3) industries at 0%.

HRNRE KRB REMEE ER SZRERRURTAXZTNLZ
BAXRBRFH 2 BNR -5  FEHZREE0% -

BT ERR (f2ks)

Present value of the contractually The required yield was determined
determined stream of future cash with reference to the credit rating

flows discounted at the required of the convertible bond issuer
yield (note 1) and remaining time to maturity at
9.09%.
TA%UTEEZ?KWE%}MEWEE REREE2ZABRRESETA
Was RATH 2 B E (fit1) ZEEFGRIRERSHE 2 Fe
By 7 120.00% B T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

BB MEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

1) A 5% increase in the interest yield used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the
debt component of the convertible bond by RMB41,000,
and vice versa.

2) A 5% increase in the dividend yield used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the
derivatives embedded in convertible bond by RMB7,000,
and vice versa.

3) A 5% increase in the volatility used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the
derivatives embedded in convertible bond by RMB70,000,
and vice versa.

Details of reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements for derivatives components of the
convertible bonds are set out in note 23.

Valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for the fair value measurements
are determined by the directors of the Company and the
independent qualified valuer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 3 inputs are not available,
the Group engages independent qualified valuer to
perform the valuation. The directors of the Company
work closely with the independent qualified valuer to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The directors of the Company will review
the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the assets and
liabilities annually.

7. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are provision of traditional
financial services and related financing consultancy services

including entrusted loan service,

real estate-backed loan

service, pawn loan service, other loan service and microfinance
service, and internet financing service including online third
party payment service, P2P loan service and related activities
on loan portfolio management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

7.

Ol

BB MEE

—AFE+=ZA=+—HLEFE

TURNOVER (Continued) 7. 88 @
Turnover represents interest income (either from entrusted &R MBI 2 R S 18 2 T 2K
loans, pawn loans, real estate-backed loans, other loans and ACREZAER HEER  FHERTE
micro loans), financial consultancy service income, P2P loan o HEMERRNEER) « BB ARBEK
service income, online third party payment service income A P2PEFRIEUA - 48 £ 5 = 5 A AR ES
and gain on transfer of interest rights, net of corresponding WA RS F SRR 2 Wam e REERE
sales related taxes. The amount of each significant category of BHERIBMAZSERNERNSENT
revenue recognised in turnover for the year is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-H=1+—HLEE
2015 2014
—_E—af — 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREEF T
Interest income Fil S A
Entrusted loan service income EXEZTRBUA 93,011 101,302
Other loan service income H A B RRE WA 30,006 17,856
Real estate-backed loan service FE i ERFE SRR KA
income 22,747 24,026
Microfinance service income NEERLE AR TG U A 704 32,496
146,468 175,680
Financial consultancy service income 1 75555 IR # N 37,650 66,597
Online third party payment service — #8_L %= 7 Z (1 IRFHEWA
income 128,148 60,665
P2P loan service income P2PE 50 AR N 112,546 24,822
Gain on transfer of rights on interests BB G507 SR Z K 7
on loan receivables 4,778 46,304
Turnover EEH 429,590 374,068
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial data and information provided regularly to the
Group’s chief operation decision maker (“CODM”), which are
the most senior executive management, for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

The directors of the Company have organised the Group into
different segments by types of services provided. No operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision maker have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors of the
Company, after considering the usage of external borrowings
raised in the PRC, decided that it is more appropriate to
include finance costs related to external borrowings raised in
the PRC in assessing the loan financing segment. The finance
costs related to external borrowings raised in the PRC was
then reclassified to loan financing segment and the relevant
segment information for the year ended 31 December 2014
was restated.

1. Loan financing — provision of financing services (other
than micro loan financing) in the PRC and Hong Kong;

2. Micro loan financing — provision of micro loan financing
services in the PRC;

3. Online third party payment service — provision of online
third party payment services and prepaid card issuance

business;

4. P2P loan service — provision of internet loan financing
service in the PRC; and

5.  Others — property investment

No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEMEHR @)
Segment revenue and results TEHBNREE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—FE—FHEF+—H=+—HIEE
Online
third party
Loan  Micro loan payment P2P loan
financing financing service service Others Total
NEEH PLE=H P2P&
ERRE mE X R% &% Hith &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®TR AR%FRT AR®Tt AR¥ETR ARETR
REVENUE ['ON
External income and gain SO 6 188,192 704 128,148 112,546 - 429,590
Segment results DEEE 76,529 (21,107) 88,437 23,728 (1,000) 166,587
Share of results of associates =N e 6,024
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EIG A& ¥ £ (6,230)
Unallocated other income ROBREMBA 20,044
Other gains and losses Hinlhz R EE 7,586
Change in fair value of derivative  $T£ T AR A #H R EH
and embedded derivative W A%}TEIEE‘B iz
components of convertible bond 2 F{E % L) (7,877)
Net gain on disposal of plant and it} Eﬁﬁ% Rtz Wm 5
equipment 106
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 EHTB R &2 W 42,091
Share-based payment expenses AR X7 % (43,999)
Interest expenses FIEHX (46,791)
Unallocated expenses APEAZ (18,257)
Profit before tax B RTR A 119,284
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

8.

ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ

—EE+-A=+-BLEE
DEE R (@)
DEPUTN B E4E (

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2014 2z = %g—ﬂﬂfft’:ﬁ_:t—— HIFFE
Online third
Loan Micro loan party payment P2P loan
financing financing service service Others Total
PEER BEE= PPEH
ERmE WA Z R R Hith Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARET:H
REVENUE ON
External income and gain SO E 176,041 105,130 66,316 26,581 - 374,068
Segment results SHLLE 77,886 32,305 42,607 4,501 10,239 167,538
Share of results of associates ~ FE(GEEE A A 24E (672)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EIRA S N EEE (1,945)
Unallocated other income APEEMBA 6,931
Change in fair valug of derivative $T4 T AR AR ESRZ
and embedded derivative W SOTHET ARz
components of convertible bond A B £ & 394
Change in fair value of contingent JEURSk AR B2 A FEEH
consideration receivable (8,452)
Net loss on disposal of plant and  HERE kR EEEFE
equipment (50)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 E B &2 W 6,068
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HEA S ¥ 7 BB (56)
Share-based payment expenses AR T2 (4,790)
Interest expenses FEHRX (52,525)
Unallocated expenses AAEEZ (11,126)
Profit before tax BR B AR A 101,315

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit or loss represents profit earned by or loss
from each segment without allocation of share of results of
associates and joint ventures, unallocated other income,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, loss on disposal of joint
ventures, change in fair value of derivative and embedded
derivative components of convertible bond, change in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, change in fair value
of contingent consideration receivable, central administration
costs, share-based payment expenses and certain interest
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

BEA B2 EH BRI AAEEE

utIEAZ% H-nHBHZEZHMERFZE
ML BEOEEBIEBERRRAEDREL

%% RO REAMKA - HEN B AR 2K
s hERELEZER. ?ﬁilﬁ&ﬁﬁ;@

BiEHEZASITETAERNHDZAFEE
TESMIAZAFEES RBKRLARE

ZRFEZEE  HRITEAA AR A
ZXHEETHMEFRZ I ERD B K
RBEFEARSEERRAZRZTE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

8.

BB MEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

8. MEMEHN @)

THEERERE
REETHERGEH B2 AEREBA
mT -

Segment assets DEEE
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
3 —ZE-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T ARET T
Loan financing EXmE 2,829,320 1,035,151
Micro loan financing NEEE A 17,522 134,581
Online third party payment service W EE=F IR 895,131 592,278
P2P loan service P2PE AR 7% 182,862 96,750
Others H 574,000 575,000
Total segment assets D EP AR A B 4,498,835 2,433,760
Unallocated corporate assets ADBEGCEEE 372,866 237,967
Consolidated total assets EBREE 4,871,701 2,671,727
Segment liabilities NEEE
As at 31 December
W+-R=+—H
2015 2014
—E—AfF —E—PF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T ARET T
Loan financing B & 923,822 166,215
Micro loan financing NEERRE 1,067 965
Online third party payment service HEE=F IR 531,282 307,299
P2P loan service P2PE X AR 7% 6,077 32,591
Others H 465 3,534
Total segment liabilities DEpEE FE 1,462,713 510,604
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEEEE 776,402 741,695
Consolidated total liabilities LERAaE 2,239,115 1,252,299
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZEZZ—HF+-B=+—HILLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interests in associates, interests in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, club membership,
amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders,
derivative financial instruments, held for trading
investments and income tax recoverable; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amounts due to related companies, borrowings,
obligation under finance leases, convertible bond,
corporate bonds, deferred tax liabilities and income tax
payables.

DERE B ()

DHEEREE @
ERSBERBERS B EEIEANS

FIEEENDDEELENH (RIER
AlziEm Rt Al
ERE 28 BUAZEREZFIEA
FEWER S R B2 FR - RUERE R R
TR - RUSEEIRACRRIE - TS R
TE FHHEEERE LAWK E A EHE
5N+ e

FMBERBEANEEEZE DB (B3
R ARR R - BN BEA TR {8
E RMEBEEAE AJBREES 27
B RERBAEREMNAEHE
) @
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

BB MEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2015

8.

—AFE+=ZA=+—HLEFE

DERE B ()

H i 5 8 & A
BE-F—HE+-A=+—HiI4E

Online
third party
Loan Micro loan payment P2P loan
financing financing service service Others  Unallocated Total
MNEER  BLEZR P2PE 3k
SHME W& TR R £t FOR CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®Tn ARETR ARETx AREFx AR%Fn ARETR
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
SANBERINDEELEE:
Additions to non-current assets (note) R & FEREN & & (FifzE) 312 137 3,853 5,404 = = 63,706
Depreciation & 2,178 229 2,844 424 3 - 5,678
Impairment recognised on loan HENERRR 2 AE
receivables 2,047 13,515 - - - - 15,562
Impairment recognised on trade  FLE HEWF R ZFE
receivables 2,984 - - - - - 2,984
Impairment loss recognised on HEERARERE
goodwil - 1,976 - 6,943 - - 8,919
Impairment loss recognised on REVAERALHEEE
intangible assets - 3,821 - - - - 3,821
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
EARETREBERRAEESE “*ET%JE“* BERTET R
Interests in associates REE AR 2 s - - - - - 60,357 60,357
Share of results of associates EiEBE Rz EE - - - - - (6,024) (6,024)
Share of results of joint ventures }??5 HRERE EE - - - - - 6,230 6,230
Bank interest income FATFIBHA - - - - - (12,859) (12,859)
Interest income on convertible bond AT &2 84 - - - - - (3,459) (3,459)
Other interest income HEipFIB WA - - - - - (839) (839)
Interest expenses FIEFY 54,739 = = - - 46,791 101,530
Income tax FEH - - - - - 39,243 39,243
Net gain on disposal of LERE kB KEFE
plant and equipment - - - - - (106) (106)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 K& - - - - - (42,901) (42,901)
Share-based payment expenses AR {4 2 i - - - - - 43,999 43,999
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. HEMER @
Other segment information (Continued) H it 5 & E # (m)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—ZF—pWFE+_—_A=+—HIFZF
Online
third party
Loan Micro loan payment P2P loan
financing financing service service Others  Unallocated Total
NEER  BLE=H POPE
EXpE Ei xR TR% Eft AR at

RMBIO ~ RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB'OO
ARBTE ARETE ARETR ARETL ARETLI ARETR ARETR

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

STAPBERINBEELEE:
Additions to non-current assets RNEFRBEE (M)

(note) 9,376 84 2,234 8,167 51,761 - 71,622
Depreciation ik 1,611 3,184 1,745 59 3 - 7,139
Impairment recognised on loan SERE R A

receivables - 29,046 - - - - 29,046
Change in fair value of RENEATEEE)

investment property - - - - (10,239) - (10,239)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

EE@%%%%E%@?&%)\@E&E% BEADBEENTEHRZHA

Interests in associates REERR 2 ER - - - - - 353 353
Share of results of associates Wg EBENR ¥ - - - - - 672 672
Interests in joint ventures iy} "gﬁ%Z B - - - - - 6,230 6,230
Share of reslts of joint ventures ERELECER - - - - - 1,945 1,945
Bank interest income iﬁftﬂ%uﬁU\ - - - - - (2,461) (2,461)
Interest income on convertible bond A A& 57 &M A - - - - - 4,327) (4.327)
Interest expenses FlERZ 39,804 - - - - 52,525 92,419
Income tax PG - - - - - 35,057 35,057
Net loss on disposal of HERE kX BERTE

plant and equipment = = = = = 50 50
Loss on disposal of joint ventures ~ HEAELEZER - - - - - 56 56
Gain on disposal of subsiciaries  HEMEL A2 Mz - - - - - (6,068) (6,068)
Share-based payment expenses MG T 2 i - - - - - 4,790 4790
Note: B 5 -
Non-current assets included plant and equipment, investment property, REE_ZT—AFE=_FT—HNOF+=—A=+—H
goodwill and intangible assets for the years ended 31 December 2015 IEFE ERBDEERIERE REZHE REWZE.
and 2014. BN RELEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of customers.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets other than
financial instruments is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets.

8.

DERE B ()

E & #

BRASERBINEEPHBANENTIIR
BEPMEMZES -ERAKRENFRBDEE
(ERTARINNERDIREEMELZ

K

Revenue from external customers

Non-current assets

RENMDE FEHIBAN FRBEE
For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BE+_A=+-HLEE R+ZA=+-—H

2015 2014 2015 2014
—3-1f “E-NF —B-If —ZT-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®FT ARETR ARETT
PRC I 363,029 364,144 728,347 767,309
Hong Kong Bt 66,561 9,924 136,395 8,352
429,590 374,068 864,742 775,661

Details of the customers accounting for 10% or more of
aggregate revenue of the Group during the year are as follows:

RAFE  AAREBKRAI0%HIA EHE
FrfBaT:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014

—_E—hfF —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARET T

Customer A EEA N/A T i 2 68,023
Customer B! ZFB N/A T3 2 37,760

! Revenue from loan financing business
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

OTHER INCOME

9. Htht A

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HILLEE

2015 2014
—E—RF — g4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT
Net exchange gain b 5 W55 F 5 - 1,536
Government grants (note) BT EE (BI&E) 4,277 9,510
Bank interest income AT B WA 12,859 2,461
Interest income on convertible bond AR AR 1E 5 F) S U A 3,459 4,327
Other interest income H fth ) S A 839 =
Net gain on disposal of HERE k& WamFaE

plant and equipment 106 =
Others H A, 2,887 976
24,427 18,810

Note: Bt o

Government grants in respect of encouragement of expansion of
enterprise were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant

granting criteria.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

BB ERER ZBTRMNANEE TS 1H6H

R AL R ERT FERR

10. Hittir & R BG18

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HILLEE

2015 2014
—E—AfF —ZT—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Gain on settlement of R ]mKRES 2 W
the Convertible Bond 7,595 -
Loss on disposal of LERIEEEREZEE
held for trading investments (94) -
Fair value changes of EeMIAZ A FEES)
derivative financial instruments 33 -
Fair value changes of FIEEBEREZRATEED
held for trading investments 52 =
7,586 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

11. INTEREST EXPENSES

~HEEt-A=t-ALFE
1. FIBFEX

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HILLEE

2015 2014

—E—AfF —ZE—mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T AREEF T

Interest on corporate bonds NEEHFE 21,828 30,761

Interest on bank and other borrowings 8 77 & E fib {2 & X & 63,573 57,671
Interest on financial assets sold under R IFIERE 775 HE 2

repurchase agreement TREEFS - 3,987

Interest on convertible bond AR ESH S 16,129 =

101,530 92,419

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

12. B& % 8y i 7

B

BR B AE A TR (FFA) To SRR E

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—_E-afF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBEFIT
(a) Staff costs, including directors’ (a) E I 74 BI5E = FHH
remuneration
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IEREMETR 57,340 72,689
Contribution to defined contribution JE B8 SR KB FI T B
retirement benefits scheme MR (M 5E42)
(note 42) 5,985 5,176
Share-based payment expenses AR 2 X 17,164 3,375
80,489 81,240
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

SR BHRRMEE

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

n‘/T\

12. BB A i #1 (4

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—_E—af —E—-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT

(b) Other items (b) HiIEH
Auditors’ remuneration % E R B 1,459 1,236
Depreciation e 5,678 7,139
Net exchange loss RN i= b 5,768 =
Operating lease charges MELEHERST

in respect of properties 15,459 16,230
Impairment recognised on BIEWE KR ZRE

loan receivables 15,562 29,046
Impairment recognised on trade BE 5 UK

receivables BE 2,984 =
Impairment recognised on goodwill MEBERZME 8,919 =
Impairment recognised on MEFEERARZRE

intangible assets 3,821 -
Net (gain) loss on disposal of plant HERE RZE (HKas)

and equipment b= (106) 50

13. INCOME TAX 13. Ei 15 %%

(a) Taxation in the consolidated (@) FEEEREMMEEWER
statement of profit or loss and other NZHIEE:
comprehensive income represented:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE
2015 2014
—_E—-afF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREF T

Current tax: BVHARE 1A

Provision for PRC EIT PEIERAFHES 38,719 30,621
Overprovision in prior years RBEFEEBERE (459) =
Deferred tax (Note 37) EFERL IR (FI5E37) 983 4,436
39,243 35,057
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

13. INCOME TAX (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represented:
(Continued)

U)

(i)

)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin Island (the
“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax
in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The applicable tax rate for the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong is 16.5% for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as
the Group has no assessable profit for Hong Kong
Profits Tax purposes for both years.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in the PRC
are subject to PRC EIT.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Several subsidiaries established in the PRC were
approved by the local tax bureau and the taxable
income of these subsidiaries shall be the total
revenue of such subsidiaries, deducted by any
non-assessable revenue, exempted revenue,
other deductions and amount of offsetting any
accumulated losses, for the period from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
several subsidiaries established in the PRC were
recognised as High Technology Enterprises and
subject to PRC income tax at 15% in accordance
with the EIT Law.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (f#E A R # 70
B+ 3 12 E R E 1716 51) effective from 1 January
1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules on
the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT ( /F
EANRAMBE T BERGTHROIEHBABA)
effective from 27 January 1995 as well, all income
from the sale or transfer of land use rights, buildings
and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
of the appreciation value as calculated according to
the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and
its Detailed Implementation Rules.
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13. Fi 5 %t (@)

(a) ZeEHEK

Hith & E UL m &

NZHIEE: (@)

(i)

)

(iv)

REASHSMNRBRELES
(RBEZEE | ) RAFER -
AEBEBBEHRNENRASES R
RBRELEREMEH-

HE T RAFER-_Z—NF
+=-A= + Etig NG
EMAKAL 2 M B A & Za%ﬁ%
£16.5% °

mmm&smag:g—ﬁiﬁ
—mE+-/B=+—HItF
Flﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ ST Z FERTR
Dl R I A K e S R (et w
BEFSHEE-

e BB ST B A ] 2 % B
e B S B

RIEPE AR ZEEHR
FE(EEMERE]) KGR
SEB MG - R BB B A B
EFE 2 %19 /25% °

SRR B S 2 f BB A R B 2

BEHmERME B T —HF
—A—BRE_Z-—AF+_H
=+t—HILHFE ZEH B AR

ZIERTU A 757 BT /&8 X 7]

Zﬂ%AﬂiﬁﬁﬂM%ﬁW
EA 0 WA ~ Ll F0Rk K

%EMEHEEZ%E°

HE=—_Z—hF+-_A=+—H
EFE - RNPBERIZETHE
NEERRASRIRCE AR
BOEMEBRIARIS% TR
R R PSR o
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“t+EBRBAERZBREARIM
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

13. INCOME TAX (Continued) 13. 5% (&)
(b) The tax charge for the year can be (b) ZMIE BB HHEKREEE
reconciled to profit before tax per the HithtmMERZBRH
consolidated statement of profit or BY i %'J ZHERWMT:

loss and other comprehensive income
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E—RF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Profit before tax B 5 B A 119,284 101,315
Notional tax on profit before tax, %@ AN A BEH B E E @ /Y
calculated at the rates applicable & 7| &% 3= 5+ & #9 B &4 A1l i £
to profits in the tax jurisdictions % 518
concerned 22,754 35,201
Tax effect of expenses not AN HHAT MR E T E
deductible for tax purpose 16,030 19,001
Tax effect of incomes not taxable 78 s F1 Ug A B9 3 75 57 22
for tax purpose (3,581) (2,3606)
Tax effect of LAT on investment & & ¥ 3 ) - o 12 EF
property Mg 2 - 2,021
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIEEENREE
recognised 3,304 5,631
Tax effect of share of profit (loss) D 1G#tE AT 2
of associates wh) (E1E) 2 B2 1,506 (111
Tax effect of share of loss of joint DA S REZ
venture BRZMGTE (1,028) (321)
Utilisation of tax losses previously 2 F3 5¢ Ail 78 7 72 B B 755 /5 18
not recognised (1,003) —
Income tax on concessionary rate 1% {8 E i K5+ E 7 BT H (218) (25,235)
Overprovision in prior years RBEFEBEEE (459) -
Tax effect of withholding tax at 10% ?ﬁzti SEAF B AR
on the distributable profits of Al 99K 5 A% 10%
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries u‘l' BB E 1,938 1,236
Income tax expense for the year  FJE FT{5 85 &2 39,243 35,057
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 14. EERIFETHAESME

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2014: 16) ZEEMNSEMNTEEZ (ZE—HF: +X
directors and the chief executive were as follows: H)EERFETHAER Z@M%ZIDT
Salaries, Contribution Share-based
allowances to retirement payment
Directors’ and other benefits Discretionary  transaction
fees benefits scheme bonuses expenses Total
B A
£ BEER BHER Xtz
Ezng HigH B BETa xexH BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AR¥TR AR¥TRT ARETZ AR%®TR AR%Tx
Year ended 31 December 2015
BEE-h&+ZRA=+—-HILEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat TRERE - 579 14 48 2,106 2,747
Ms. Shen Li BT (RZE—1F
(Resigned on 30 June 2015) NA=ZTHEHE) - 1,508 48 248 - 1,804
Mr. Sheng Jia BERE - 579 14 43 678 1,319
Mr. Chng Swee Ho HERELE - 579 14 48 678 1,319
Non-executive directors: HHTEE:
Mr. Wong Sai Hung EHELE 241 - - - 452 693
Mr. Li Mingshan FHRILEE - - - - - -
Mr. Li Gang FRIEE 241 - - - 452 693
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin RERFEE (RZT—0F
(Appointed on 12 July 2015) +A+-BEZE) 113 - - - - 113
Ms. Zhou Youmeng AREZLT (R=Z—1F
(Appointed on +ZA+—REZMA)
11 December 2015) 14 - - - - 14
Indlependeent non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors
Mr. Peter Z Kuk HALE(RZF—1F
(Resigned on 10 July 2015) T ATHEE) 127 - - - - 127
Mr. Wang Wei Tank 241 - - - 241 482
Mr. Ge Ming BERLL 241 = = = 241 482
Dr. Ou Minggang (Appointed BEABEL (R —1F
on 8 October 2015) TANBEZE) 56 - - - 46 102
Dr. Yin Zhongli (Appointed Ryt (R=F—1F
on 11 October 2015) +A+—BEZT) 54 - - - 46 100
Mr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho BAREE(RZT—1F
(Appointed on 16 February AT BEZER
2015 and resigned on RZZE-AF/\A=H
3 August 2015) Bf) 112 - - - - 112
Total Wt 1,440 3,245 90 392 4,940 10,107

205 CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra B IS R AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 14. ESRFETHAEME &)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salaries,  Contribution Share-based
allowances  to retirement payment
Directors’ and other benefits  Discretionary transaction
fees benefits scheme bonuses expenses Total
PARR AR
Ho 2R RIKER iz
208 Hi a7 AR WiETEA RHXM ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARET:R
Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NF+-A=1+—-HLFE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat YRS - 546 12 48 108 714
Ms. Shen Li LBzt = 2,629 13 141 268 3,051
Mr. Sheng Jia BEEAE - 546 12 48 32 638
Mr. Chng Swee Ho (Appointed ~ H#mE %4 (R=Z—N4F
on 17 March 2014) =At+tREZRT) - 432 9 38 32 511
Mr. Ji Zu Guang (Resigned FEREE (RZF—NEF
on 17 March 2014) =A+EREHE) = 139 21 = 176 336
Mr. Shi Zhi Jun (Resigned AEERE (RZT—EF
on 17 March 2014) =A+EAEHE) - 193 3 - 176 372
Mr. Ting Pang Wan, Raymond ~ THEE%4 (RZT—N4F
(Resigned on 7 July 2014) A EEHE) - 3,303 6 = 1,109 4,418
Non-executive directors: HHTEE:
Mr. Wong Sai Hung (Appointed &t 4 (R =T —M4&
on 17 March 2014) =ATtBEZEML) 188 = = = 22 210
Mr. Li Mingshan FRHLEE (RZT—EF
(Appointed on 7 July 2014) + At BERT) 368 - - - - 368
Mr. Li Gang (Appointed FRIEE (RZZ—0F
on 17 November 2014) +—ATtREZE) 29 = = = 22 51
Indlependent non-executive BUHRITEE
directors
Mr. Peter Z Kuk BELE (R=2—mF
(Appointed on 7 July 2014) T ALBEZE) 115 - - - 11 126
Mr. Wang Wei FHREE(RZZ—HE
(Appointed on 7 July 2014) +AtREZT) 115 - - - 11 126
Mr. Ge Ming (Appointed ERLE (RZZ—0F
on 18 September 2014) NATNBEZE) 68 - - - - 68
Mr. Neo Poh Kiat (Resigned BRERE(RZF—NF
on 7 July 2014) T AL HEE) 115 - - - 15 130
Dr. Lau Reimer Mary Jean AgFaEL (RZT—0EF
(Resigned on 7 July 2014) +AtBAET) 115 - - - 15 130
Mr. Lee Sze Wai FRELRE(RZF—HF
(Resigned on 7 July 2014) T ALHEE) 115 = = = 15 130
Total Har 1,228 7,788 76 275 2,012 11,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

14.

BB MEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Ms. Shen Li is the Chief Executive of the Company for 1
January to 6 July 2014 and Mr. Phang Yew Kiat is the Chief
Executive of the Company for 7 July 2014 to 31 December
2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, his emoluments
disclosed above include those for service rendered by him as
the Chief Executive. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
their emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by Ms. Shen Li of approximately RMB1,280,000 for
1 January 2014 to 6 July 2014 and Mr. Phang Yew Kiat of
approximately RMB425,000 for 7 July 2014 to 31 December
2014 as the Chief Executive of the Company.

The performance related incentive payment is determined
by reference to the individual performance of the directors of
the Company and the chief executive and approved by the
remuneration committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, one director waived
emoluments of RMB368,000. Neither the Chief Executive nor
any of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments in
the year ended 31 December 2014.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include two
(2014: two) directors, whose remuneration are set out in note
14. Details of emolument paid to the remaining three (2014:
three) highest paid individual of the Group was as follows:

15. [EE M &

AEELEESFMALTEERE(ZE
—HFE:-WE)ES HMES B RS
14 - BNASEKRT =R (ZF—MF:
Z)BERFMALTIHEG Z2FFBHT

¥

For the year ended 31 December
BEt+ZA=+—HILEE

2015 2014

—F-AfF —ZE—mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBTT

Salaries, allowance, and other benefits & - 28k & H b 13 7 3,298 2,531
Contribution to defined contribution TE REAR RAE FFT 81 5K

retirement scheme 105 13

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 461 631

Share-based payment expenses ARG D 32 4 2 2 i 1,441 166

5,305 3,341
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

15. EEM & (@)
HEZHEN FINTEHE :

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E—IfF —HF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEEHE EE&H
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FHER K A R ¥803,5007T
RMB803,500 to approximately ZE 4 AR #1,607,0007T)
RMB1,607,000) (2014: approximately ~— ( —ZZ—[PU4F : £ A R #&
RMB792,501 to approximately 792,501 T EH AR
RMB1,585,000) 1,585,0007T ) 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7 7 23,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FEZER 4 AR %1,607,001
RMB1,607,001 to approximately =4 AR#2,410,5007T)
RMB2,410,500) (2014: approximately ZE—NFHARE
RMB1,585,001 to approximately 1,585,001 TE X AR
RMB2,377,500) 2,377,5007T ) 1
3
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the five REE-_ZTZT—HAFE-_ZE—NWF+=HA

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The details of remuneration of member of senior management

are disclosed in Corporate Governance Report of the annual
report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

16. DIVIDENDS

16. Hl 15

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HILLEE

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2014 Final — HK0.46 cents (2014:
2018 Final — HK1.21 cents) per
share

FREF— th.zt,téftun

:%-Eiiﬁﬁ iﬂ&o 46;%%

2015 2014
—E-IfF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR AREFIT
11,724 30,615

Final dividend for 2015

No dividend was proposed during the year ended 31
December 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since

the end of the reporting period.

Final dividend for 2014

The final dividend of HK0.46 cents (or equivalent to RMBO0.36
cents) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 was approved and paid during the year ended

31 December 2015.

“E-RERBERR

RBE_T-—AFt_A=+—HLFEH
BEFREEABRE  BERSHRARI
tﬁtﬁk‘%/iﬁf“ﬁﬂﬂn Se

“E-NEXRERER
HE-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HIEFEZ
KREARR B 5 R T mAR0.467 8 Il (S ABZE R
AR¥036D)EREBEZE-_T—HF+=-HA
=t HIFEARERS T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFEE

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. BB H)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share KAEEE ANELHBREARRE SRR L
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TSR E

following data:

2015 2014
—F-1fF —T-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T ARBTTT
Earnings BF
Earnings for the year attributable to SAESREAREERT
the owners of the Company for the NAREEE NEEAFERF
purpose of basic and diluted
earnings per share 85,606 58,194

As at 31 December

R+=-HA=+—H
2015 2014
o —T-ms
Number of shares /%z &g
Weighted average number of ordinary HEERERRFN 2
shares for the purpose of basic jat B AR AN AE 1T B
earnings per share 3,351,431,151 3,138,506,729
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: /B1E & B v # S/ 2 ¢
Share options issued by the Company AN 7] 2% 17 B8 f 1 7,582,751 25,861,515
Weighted average number of ordinary st E S E#EE T 2
shares for the purpose of diluted TR hnAE I B
earnings per share 3,359,013,902 3,164,368,244
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the computation of REBEE_ZE—hF+-_A=T—BLFE"
diluted earnings per share does not assume the conversion RRTEARR R Z M ARER AR ESH15E
of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their HEREFIEMN WERBEERN ZFTEW
exercise would result in an increase in earnings per share. NMEFRERZ S W ARERAITIRRES
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
18. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8. BB B 7%
Office Leasehold Motor
equipments improvements vehicles Total
HEWE
N £ KE k)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARBTT ARETT
COST BA
At 1 January 2014 R—E—NE—Hf—H 10,002 4,409 7,545 21,956
Exchange realignment B 5 592 2 1 22 25
Acquisition of a subsidiary 428 — KB A Al

(note 43) (Kt7E43) 581 110 = 691
Disposal of a subsidiary & — I B A ]

(note 44) (Fi3¥a4) (3,936) (5,326) 678) (9,940
Additions NE 5,862 7,439 - 13,301
Disposal/Written off HE /e (233) (253) - (486)
At 31 December 2014 and R=F—M4F

1 January 2015 +ZA=+—-8%

“Z-RF—A—H 12,278 6,380 6,889 25,547
Exchange realignment B 5 592 42 - - 42
Disposal of a subsidiary & —FEfTBAF]

(note 44) (BtzEad) (2,034) (409) = (2,443)
Acquisition of a WE—HHB AR

subsidiary(note 43) (Fi3¥43) - 20 = 20
Additions NE 4,589 - - 4,589
Disposal/Written off HE /e (540) = (4,191) (4,731)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—1fF

+-R=+—H 14,335 5,991 2,698 23,024
ACCUMULATED RHHE

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2014 R-E-NFE—A—H 1,606 2,835 2,501 6,942
Exchange realignment B 5 592 1 1 11 13
Disposal of a subsidiary ~ H1& — B A ]

(note 44) (KizEad) (819) (946) (379) (2,144)
Eliminated upon disposal/ T H & /i35 45

written off (143) (77) - (220)
Charge for the year AEELH 2,902 1,569 2,668 7,139
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ—M4E

1 January 2015 +ZA=+—8k

“E-R%—fA—H 3,547 3,382 4,801 11,730
Exchange realignment B 5 35 % 25 - - 25
Disposal of a subsidiary & — I B A ]

(note 44) (Fi3¥a4) (609) (320) - (929)
Eliminated upon disposal/  FAtH & /i 3465 45 34

written off (416) - (3,437) (3,853)
Charge for the year KEETH 3,051 1,621 1,106 5,678
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-HfF

+=A=1+—-H 5,508 4,583 2,470 12,651
NET BOOK VALUES RmEFE
At 31 December 2015 RZT—h&F

+=-RA=+—*H 8,737 1,408 228 10,373
At 31 December 2014 AZZ—ME

+=-R=+—H 8,731 2,998 2,088 13,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

18. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 18. BB B 7%
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of plant METDNERERERE KR EORISREE
and equipment less their residual values, if any, using the (B EMHEERAE T AR MEFTE
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: MERMBETAIERAERIAT :
Office equipments 3-10 years LN 3ZE104F
Leasehold improvements over the lease term HEMERE THEEAR
Motor vehicles 4 years JRE 45
The net book value of office equipment of RMBS8,737,000 N 2 BREFE A K 88,737,000 £
includes an amount of RMB1,763,000 (2014: nil) in respect of REAREREHERACZEEZARY
assets held under finance lease. 1,763,0007T (=T — P04 : &) -
19. CLUB MEMBERSHIP 19. 38
Yacht club
membership
PR e
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Cost A
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 HW_ZT—MNFE—A—H  —ZF—O4F
and 1 January 2015 +—A=+—BEk=_Z—HF—HA—H 737
Disposal & (779)
Exchange realignment e H A 42
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE-—RF+-_A=+—H -
Accumulated impairment loss ZFtiR{ERE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, R=—Z—NFE— A —H  —Z—O4F
1 January 2015 and +ZA=+—H8-ZF2—hF—H—HEK
31 December 2015 —E-hFE+A=+—H -
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RF+-HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-—MFE+-_A=+—H 737
The membership of the Royal Hong Kong Yacht Club was BEREHEeSENBRARRE2ENB AR
belonged to Vigo Hong Kong Investment Limited (“Vigo”), a EmEBiREERAR (ER]) AW E
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and it was a life-time A FH G SE - ZSHEEME
membership which had no explicit legal life. This membership BEESREN TEE ZIENEAFER
was transferrable with the approval of the general committee of RANEFBLE=TF-

the club. This membership was disposed of to an independent
third party at cost during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ

—AF+ZA=+t—-HLFE

n‘/T\

20. L EME

RMB’000
ARBTT
FAIR VALUE YNEC]
At 1 January 2014 R-—ZE—NF—H—H 513,000
Additions NE 51,761
Change in fair value recognised RIBRERZ AT EES)
in profit or loss 10,239
At 31 December 2014 and RZBE-—mF+ZA=+—HBK
1 January 2015 —T—hF—H—H 575,000
Change in fair value recognised RERERZ A TEEZS
in profit or loss (1,000)
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—RF+-_A=+—H 574,000

The above investment property is situated in the PRC under
medium-term leases.

All of the Group’s property interest held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment property.

As at 31 December 2015, the investment property with
carrying amount of RMB574,000,000 (2014: nil) was pledged
to secure certain banks and other borrowings as set out in
note 35.

The fair value of investment property as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried
out on the respective date by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma
Appraisals”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. Roma Appraisals is a member of the
Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations.

A EREYEDURHEZHRARERS -

AEBRMAREEREUNRDESHEER
RERNZYEREANNFERESEY
BRREMEIEAR-

R-ZE—RE+_-_A=+—8 FEEABA
R #574,000,00070 (= Z — O F ) 2 %
BYMECER UMBETRITREMEE
(W Bl 7E35FT S ) ©

REVMENR _ZT-—AFLR-_ZFT-HF+_H
=t HZAVHEDHERSEYEFE L

BUAERERMLEMESERFEERA
A ([ESERE]) - NERE RiRbER
%= J—rtﬁﬁ’ﬁL@Uﬁﬁ%lﬁ’%pﬂﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁtﬁ“’“
2B HERBERUE 2 BUNEETH
ETHESRBERMIHNER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

20.

BRI

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

The fair value of investment property was determined based
on the market approach and was determined based on direct
comparison method assuming sales of property interests in its
existing state and marking references to comparable market
observable transactions of similar properties in the same
location and conditions as available in the relevant market.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties,

the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

There were no transfers between level of fair value hierarchy
during the year.

Detail of the fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
property as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Fair value hierarchy

—RE+-A=t—-BILEE
20. #HEWE @)

BEMEZ A FHEDNRBEMISEEE WA
ERUBEABRRYERGERRLERSE
KA ™5 A &3 2 AR R AR R < FE U
MEZAILBTIS A BRI S KEE

RE—FEMBZAEETALBELEE -G
AMRZAFER &R EREZDERRE
RERERE-

RER R FEE R EE -

R-E—RAFER-_T—NF+-_A=+—
B AEEREVEZAFEFEFBED
-y

Valuation technique and key input

NEEER HEAEREEERBAN
Investment property Level 2 Market approach
— Direct comparison method based on market observable
transactions to similar properties and adjust to reflect
the conditions and locations of the subject property.
REWMHE ER %A

—ERULBVENBELME TSI BRER S RERIE
AR AR BRIZE Y 5 2 AR B b B o

2 1 5 CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements S

ra B R AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE S

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B & E
Online P2P
Domain name Licences platform Total
4 e TE&P2PFE A e
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETFT ARBTT ARETT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2014 R-_Z-—NF—F—H = 135,835 = 135,835
Addition through acquisition B AMBARIAE
of a subsidiary (note 43)  (Ff5¥43) 475 = = 475
At 31 December 2014 and M=Z—WF
1 January 2015 +ZRA=+—
—E-hF-— ﬂ =] 475 135,835 = 136,310
Addition through acquisition & BRANBADGE
of a subsidiary (note 43)  (ff:£43) - - 40,127 40,127
Disposal through loss of Zﬁiﬁ%i“ﬂﬁ% Az
control of a subsidiary T 1 E
(note 44) (KizEad) (475) = = (475)
At 31 December 2015 R_Z—1F
+-A=+-H = 135,835 40,127 175,962
Accumulated ZEHEER
impairment loss
At 1 January 2014, RZZT—-mE—H—A"
31 December 2014and ~ —Z—M4F
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—8k
e s el = = = - -
Impairment loss recognised 4 AR
during the year »@ttﬁt@tt,a - 3,821 - 3,821
At 31 December 2015 RZT—hE
+-A=+-H = 3,821 = 3,821
Carrying values WREEE
At 31 December 2015 RZT—hE
+ZA=+—H - 132,014 40,127 172,141
At 31 December 2014 RZT—WE
+-A=+-H 475 135,835 - 136,310
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

21.

BRI

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The licence belonged to & JE™ &7 & E {5/ NEE R AR A
(“ARBE1Z") under mirco loan financing segment has no epr|C|t
legal life and licence belonged to UCF Huisheng Investment
(HK) Co., Limited (“UCF”) under third party payment service
segment has legal life of 5 years but are renewable every 5
years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group would renew the licences continuously
and has the ability to do so, and the licences have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the licenced products
are expected to generate net cash flows for the Group. As a
result, the licences are considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The licences will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired It RBEERAERRMNHAER AR (4t RBEE" and
an online P2P platform under P2P loan service segment of
approximately RMB40,127,000 was obtained through the
business combination. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the online P2P platform has no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the online P2P platform is expected
to generate net cash flows for the Group. As a result, the
online P2P platform is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The online P2P
platform will not be amortised until its useful life is determined
to be finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.
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21.

BREEE @)

NEREFRESMET 2AETEAREEZ
ENRERBRAR ([GEZE]MESR
ZHRIWBAREEFH ME =77 TR
BOMEATZEREFRE (FE)ARA
ﬂ ([%s2]) AR 2 REBEF 2EAEF

B ERAIAB DA EFFAEE- AR
Ti%.ﬂi% AEEBEHEEERR I
BReIHEEE BRI EHBHSFE
mAAEBESFRESR BREEAER
Rl E it ARTFEHRRRE S ER AR
SEERFERESR WASEERER
HNIRBERMAR - %‘iﬂﬁ”Zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&;&
ERBRE  FefinET#iE-mAe &
BE MR AR IERNE A 88 K IR ER H H
EITRERIF -

REBEE—T—AF+t-_A=+—BLFE"
AEBWRBELREEEAEERNDBRA
AI(TIERBE]) KB RHEBE FERSPP
BERRE D EIE T 2 EEP2PE AN ARK
40,127,0007C ° AR BIEER A EARP2PF
AEHEAREEELFER SR ZHM
B A TE RPR &l o B It - (A TR AT A2 PP
AT ERHAATNEEEMFERS T K
ZIKEI BERAAEGPPEABERBREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZEZZ—HF+-B=+—HILEFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired
FE#EZTRESRESRBBERAR (‘(LEEZIT) and
domain name in the website under P2P loan service segment
of approximately RMB475,000 was obtained from the business
combination. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the domain name has no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the domain name is expected to generate net
cash flows for the Group. As a result, the domain name is
considered by the management of the Group as having an
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to
net cash inflows indefinitely. The domain name will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead
it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that it may be impaired. The domain name was
disposed of by the Group upon disposal of /&% ~ 77 during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

For the purposes of impairment testing, licences of
approximately RMB132,014,000 and RMBS3,821,000 with
indefinite useful lives have been allocated to individual CGUs,
being the subsidiaries, UCF and & AEi&{Z respectively whereas
domain name and online P2P platform have been allocated to
individual CGUSs, being the subsidiaries, /&8 2 17 and 4t
[Bl/2| respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of the CGUs
containing online P2P platform belonged to 1t REE with
indefinite useful life.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately
RMB3,821,000 in relation to the licence belonged to & B
= as the revenue stream aligned with the licence had been
slower than expected and hence, the directors of the Company
determined that there was impairment for the licence of & AE#E

.

Particular regarding impairment testing on intangible assets is
disclosed in note 22.

21.

BREEE @)

REBE_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—HBILFE"-

AREBWE HBE2TAESRERREE
BB (TEEEZIT)REBEEAHTE
BP2PEFRRIS N BIE T 2 MR B AR
#475,0007C ° AR R EER A 5 H A E Y
ERASEELFRBRESRCHHANEAR
Rl Bl AR A A B ERBRAN
SEERFREREN MAKEEEERR
HEABERMAR BHE2BRFHRKE
ERARK FefEsRET#E-ma -

SEFMREPRBREA B HBRRER S
HETREAR RBEE-_FT—AF+-A
=t—HALEFE REBRZITHER K
SERLEEA-

BENRNE  EREEBZHABHAR
#132,014,0007T & A R #3,821,0007C 2 5
NEXIREELEN  BNBARLERE
JEE(s Mgk ® RELKPPTEAESRES
ReELEN B AR LB 2TRIE
HBLE -

BE_T-AF+_A=+—HLEFE &~
SEEEEETRER BNt RER 2 &R B
BERZERPPYE 2 REEE B R
=L

BHE_T-—AF+_A=+—HILEFE &
SEBN A LRE 2 HRER R E/BEY
AR#3,821,0007T ' RARZEHR 2 1EFE
W mEFEE  MA R EFTEEA LR
B ZHIRRE -

AR YA E 2 R B 2 S R I 522
W
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE
22. GOODWILL 22, IHE
RMB’000
ARET T
COST A
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—mF—H—H 37,820
Arising on acquisition of subsidiary W BT A Rl = A& (FFE43)
(note 43) 5,394
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE-—MOFE+_A=+—HK
1 January 2015 —hRF—HA—H 43,214
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B A /) i 2= A (FfF#E43)
(note 43) 18,970
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary 7 & — i B 2 &l B 1 88 (M 5E44)
(note 44) (5,394)
At 31 December 2015 MNZZE-—hAFE+=—H=+—H 56,790
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 W—-—Z—WME&E—F—H -
and 1 January 2015 —E+-—A=+—BEK-_Z—H&E—A—H =
Impairment loss recognised during FNERBEEE
the year 8,919
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=A=+—H 8,919
CARRYING VALUES REEE
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=A=+—H 47,871
At 31 December 2014 MRZZE—-—MFE+=A=+—H 43,214

For the purposes of impairment test, goodwill has been
allocated to individual CGUs, being the subsidiaries, UCF, & JE
(=, kBB, EF% 21T and IS IREEEERA A

(HTRAE).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22. HE (@)
The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting EAREHR BESHeELEUZEE
period is attributable to the respective CGUs as follows: BREEWT

As at 31 December

wR+-A=+—H
2015 2014
—_E-afF —T—uEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBEFIT
UCF - online third party payment GE-WEEE=F
service segment SRS DS 35,844 35,844
A BB # {= — micro loan financing GIEEE—/NEER
segment BE D = 1,976
1t Bl /E - P2P loan service segment 1t R BLE —P2PE X iR 75 7 26 12,027 =
/588217 — P2P loan service B Z1T-P2PER
segment Rk 7% 55 &B - 5,394
AT B4 — P2P loan service segment  #1T gh4E —P2PE 3R AR TS 5 26 - -
47,871 43,214
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

22.

221

BRI

GOODWILL (continued)

The Group conducted impairment review on goodwill and
intangible assets attributable to the respective CGUs at the
end of the reporting period by reference to the estimated
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts of the UCF, &
JE2(s, L% 21T, b RBEE and HTEELE of approximately
RMB631,575,000 (2014: RMB582,000,000), RMB33,831,000
(2014: RMB55,401,000), nil (2014: RMB11,200,000),
RMB163,409,000 (2014: nil) and RMB20,433,000 (2014: nil)
respectively have been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. The calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period, with pre-tax discount rate of 29.7%
(2014: 30.4%), 21.2% (2014: 26.1%), nil (2014: 27.5%), 24.3%
(2014: nil) and 27.1% (2014: nil) per annum for UCF, & IBE1E,
EE8#8217, tRBEE and LRS- respectively. The cash
flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a
steady growth rate of 2.5% (2014: 3.2%). The growth rate was
based on the relevant industry growth rate forecast and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation
related to the estimation of cash flows included net margin and
discount rate. Net margin of UCF, & iB#(s, £8#& 217, bR
JELE and AT g4 is based on the management’s expectation
for revenue growth and future market development. The
discount rate used are pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the risks specific to the relevant industry.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets for UCF, &
B8 217, LRBUE and WTREEL to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of UCF, /88217, b =/EE and #1)T
AE.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recognised impairment loss of approximately RMB1,976,000
(2014: nil) and RMB6,943,000 (2014: nil) for & AL (= and i
/LRt 4 respectively. For & AEZ1E, the goodwill is impaired as
the revenue stream had been slower than expected and hence,
the directors of the Company determined that there was
impairment for the goodwill of & MEZE(S. For T EL4, the
goodwill is impaired as the business plan cannot be exercised
due to the new restriction imposed by the government on
the relevant industry in July 2015 and hence, the directors of
the Company determined that there was impairment for the
goodwill of T @4k,
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—HEE+=A=+-BIEE
22. B8 (@)

REBRBEHRZ2BEFT I RE S EH
EHReCELEBNRELCEBERERLEEE
ITRERE - 5o AIEEE - bgtszrT-
I REE AT g4 2 AT Y E & 585 R4
AR#631,575,0007 (ZZF—MF : AR
582,000,000t ) * A R #33,831,0007T ( =
T — U4 AR¥S55,401,000T) Z (=
T — PN AR#11,200,0007T) ~ AR
163,409,0007C (=T — O F : ) R AR
20,433,0007C ( — = — PO 4F : &) IR
BEETEETC -AEFERRERETEA
WHERARRIESIE 2 AF RV BE
HR mkig 6RERE £E8E 2171
2B HFL&EE/I@MFZWMJHMET“ hilll=
FF29.7% (ZE—MUF :30.4% ) *21.2%
(ZE—&F: 261%) (22— &F:
275%) 24.3% —OEFF) R27.1%
—POFE E) . iuﬂﬁi/ﬁﬁzfﬁimi
)31%%25% —PFE:32%) FEER
REH - Z R R EPNERBITERRERIE
AR HBBERTEZ FHRER K6
Mt REREREZEREETEZEER
REIEFNEERAIE K L8 SRS
B8 217 AL REERATI RS 2 0F FE
ENENREEEH WAL R R A RTIHERE
ZIEHEFER MR AT AL X R
WM HEEBATERTERR ZFTE - BIE
BRAE ERZERRZERNEIEAEE
BrAeEHLE - EEEZT tRBERR
IR s ERENEAEZ RRRESR
% Bgg T ERBEEMKT IS 2
A U [B] 2 1B 42 %8 o

HE_Z—AF+-A=+—HBLEFE &
EE DRI A EEE R B4 R ERE
B4 ARA1,976,0007T ( —F — P04 4)
M AR#6,943,0007T (= —PU4F : #&) o 5k
ARIEZEms  BEREIHRKS RETE
g MARESETAEREZHER
BeptAImEms IEBRENHRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23. _H

DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE BOND

gZ41

SR BRRMEE

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

Hjﬁ'ti’ﬁ/ﬁ”ﬁﬂi%#l’q
TTEIR

As at 31 December

w+ZHA=+—H
2015 2014
ZE—-I1f —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT
Available-for-sale investments A HERESRE:
comprise:
Unlisted investments ELEmIRE
Equity securities (note (a)) F5 (MisE) 53,066 2,183
Debt component of convertible bond A% &% 2 &7 2B 1%
at fair value (note (b)) ZAYE (b)) 37,142 31,997
Total et 90,208 34,180
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEmMME PITAE:
Non-current assets EREBEE 53,066 1,125
Current assets MEEE 37,142 33,055
90,208 34,180
Derivatives embedded in convertible A& ESNEZiTETE
bond, at fair value (note (b) and 30) %/ & ( Bt 5 (b) % 30) 194 =

P &L :

Notes:
(@  The unlisted equity securities were issued by private
entities incorporated in the BVI of RMB51,125,000 (2014:
RMB2,183,000) and the PRC of RMB1,941,000 (2014: nil). They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that i) its fair value cannot be measured reliably as the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant or ii) it may be
possible to measure the fair value on initial recognition reliably,
however, it may not be feasible to measure its fair value reliably
over the period.

As set out in note 44, the Group accounted for the remaining
18.75% equity interests in _£/8%% 27T at the date when the
Group lost control over &8 277 as an available-for-sale
investment during the year ended 31 December 2015. The
Group's equity interests in £/ 21T were further diluted to
11% upon capital injection by other investors during the year
ended 31 December 2015. lts fair value on initial recognition was
approximately RMB1,941,000 and subsequently stated at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period.

FETRAZBLETIREBRELZEE (A
R¥51,125,000c (=T — MG : AR
2,183,0007T) ) & A B (A R #1,941,000
T(ZE—NF ) ) MR 2 AT
FrE51T - B E TR AR 3RS BAR 2 R E
”ri EERAARREZEZRR)BNAIEE
ATFEGBHHEREMS EQAFEEELT
5T UAET = » SRR W 2P E RS A g Al SE b
FFEATE A R EIR AR gL AR 5
WEtEHAFE.

WA T44FTE RASKBREBEE=Z
—AFE+-_A=+—HILEFERKESH L
EEREZITERAIHNEREZIEHEZH -
ANEBL L& ZITZ 8 T13.75%% # -
RBE-_Z—AF+_A=+—HLFE
R REMEE N TERAE @f%bﬁéz
T2 BHEE— S W EE11% - EAFER
1A TEREF 49 5 A R #1,941,0007T & BE 14
A 3R 45 HA AR 4% B AN LRk (B 51 B
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n‘/j_\

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

BRI

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23. Al HE&E#E AR ES N
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As set out in note 25, the Group accounted for the remaining
15% equity interests in Measure Up International Limited
(“Measure Up”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Measure Up Group”) at the date when the Group ceased to
have joint control over Measure Up Group as an available-for-
sale investment during the year ended 31 December 2014. Its
fair value on initial recognition was approximately RMB1,058,000
and subsequently stated at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group disposed of the remaining 15% equity interests in
Measure Up Group with carrying amount of RMB1,058,000,
which had been carried at cost less impairment before the
disposal at a consideration of RMB1,058,000. No gain or loss
on disposal has been recognised in profit or loss for the current
year.

On 12 January 2015, the Group have acquired 10% equity
interest in First P2P Limited (“First P2P”) at RMB50,000,000.
The transaction was completed on 27 January 2015. It is
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that its fair value cannot be measured reliably as the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant.

The directors of the Group consider the fair value of 10% equity
interest in First P2P is approximately RMB463,099,000 with
reference to valuation carried out by Roma. The fair value of First
P2P was mainly determined based on the market approach by
reference with an one-off share allotment transaction of First P2P
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

At 31 December 2014, the unlisted debt security represented a
12% coupon convertible bond (the “Convertible Bond”) issued
by China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune”)
on 29 December 2011 with principal amount of approximately
HK$40,385,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB33,055,000)
received as the consideration to dispose of 35% of the equity
interest in Measure Up, a joint venture, and an interest-free on-
demand loan of approximately HK$32,308,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB26,334,000) due from Measure Up to the
Group issued during the year ended 31 December 2011. China
Fortune is a public limited company with its shares listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Convertible Bond bore 12% interest per annum with maturity on
28 December 2014. The Group could exercise the conversion
option at anytime from the date of issue up to the maturity
date. The conversion price was HK$0.20 per share (subject to
adjustments). From the day immediately after the expiry of one
year from the issue date, China Fortune may redeem all the
outstanding Convertible Bond in whole at par. Unless previously
redeemed or converted, China Fortune shall redeem the
Convertible Bond at 100% of the principal amount at maturity
date. Upon maturity of the Convertible Bond on 28 December
2014 and at 31 December 2014, China Fortune did not redeem
the Convertible Bond.
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WA 25 E REE S —WMF
t-AST-BLEFER ARERT

B ¥ B Measure Upfk E 2 £ [ 2§l #
2 H#Measure Up International Limited
(IMeasure Up ) R EKI B AR (518 A
[Measure Up&EE | ) 2 82 N 15% A4 AR &
AHEERE ERAFERYIAERRL
A AR #A1,058,0007T & B % R 3R 4 A R 1%
RARREN K- BE_T—AF+=A
=+—RHIEFEHME A& B % Measure
Up&E E 2 2 T15%R 1 REEAARK
1,058,0007T ( Jh 254 Hi & Al B A RURL E 5]
IR REAARE,058,0005T) ° NEE I
N ERAERLD S Wk EE -

RZZ—RAF—A+=B XTEEUARE
50,000,0007C W HE % —P2PER A7) ([8
—P2P ]) 210%KHE - ZRXFER T — j'i
F-A-TtHAZTK ARARAEERR

ﬁ’&iﬁé@’&ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%
AISERHE - MU S BRI A ARUBE T A

s

AEBEZRE 2ERFETZHE"
F—P2PZ10%ME 2 A ELAARE
463,099,0007C ° 5 —P2PZ A FEETE L
EZE— Pwﬂai E—RF+=-_A=1+—
BEFEZ— |$1 LER HIRETS
JREETE ©

RZZFE—WOFE+-_A=+—H ¥FLWE
nm%%ﬁﬁuﬁzﬁxzmqﬂl BeMEDS

ANEl ([FEER )R _FE——F+=
Hf+h5% TZ 7N & B8 #) 540,385,000
BT (SR 4 A R#33,055,0007T) Z
12%Z S8R ES ([ARERES]) 1
AHE—BE &1 EMeasure UpZ35%%
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“t+—BLFEHEERAEEEREE 2
% BIR BN (E R B #32,308,0007% 7T (18
%mmAE%%&mew2ﬁE°¢l
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B S R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

—AFE+ZA=+—HLEFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23. At H&#% & AR ESN
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

(o)

(Continued)

On 25 February 2015, a 12% coupon convertible bond (the
“2015 Convertible Bond”) was issued by China Fortune to Ever
Step with principal amount of approximately HK$40,385,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB31,641,000) for settlement of
the Convertible Bond. A gain on derecognition of the Convertible
Bond of RMB7,595,000 was recognised in other gains during
the year ended 31 December 2015. The 2015 Convertible Bond
bears 12% interest per annum with maturity on 9 February
2016. The Group can exercise the conversion option in whole
or in part on the maturity date. The conversion price is HK$0.13
per share (subject to adjustments). China Fortune may redeem
the 2015 Convertible Bond in whole or in part at anytime from
the date of issue up to the maturity date. Unless previously
redeemed or converted, China Fortune shall redeem the 2015
Convertible Bond at 100% of the principal amount at maturity
date.

On 18 March 2016, the Group and China Fortune entered into
a subscription agreement in respect of the issue of another
convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$40,385,000
due twelve calendar months from the date of issue of such
convertible bond for settlement of the 2015 Convertible Bond.
Details are set out in note 49(c).

The Group has designated the debt components of the
Convertible Bond and the 2015 Convertible Bond as available-
for-sale investments on initial recognition and separately
recognised the derivative components of the Convertible Bond
and the 2015 Convertible Bond as derivative instruments (note
30).

EZWMEIRE @

(%)

ﬁé:%?*ﬁi:ﬂ —+HAB REEMRMAK
1T NS FE 49 540,385,000/ 7T (FHHE R
mAE%m6mowx02m%$ AT R A%
EH ([=ZF— ﬂi?%%ﬁ%h»ﬁﬁ?
BRES - KRIEERAU B ES 2 W
R¥7,605,000tERBE T — £¢+_
A=+T—HLEFEZHEMEZEAER =
T AF A BB EHFIEFENE12%T B8
MR-ZB—RE-ANBRIE - REBATRE
HR1TE 2 Ik H B - HREATR
013 L (Al FHE) HETHHBES
FIEAE 1E - R B 0% Al BE B B B 2 BF sk E 5
ZE-AFABRES - BRIELRIE W ER
gEiR . BAIFEERARE M RRASEE
Z100%HEE —E — A E AR ES o

R-ZT—REF= H+AE AEEHFHE
BEINRBHE ARBRBEE—FSEITA
%BMS%om%ﬁZT%%F% Ek:3
TEBARERESBHET T =EEARE
% NERMZ=F— ﬁiT%kﬁ% FEIEHE
K FE49(c) ©

REBDRVIS ARG AT MRES R =
T-AEABRRES ZEHBDIET AT
HHERE  WEABRREFR T —HF
AR EE 2 ITEBDEBERAITET
B (H$3£30) °
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFEE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23. A1t HE# & TFIRERES N
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN zfﬁi TR @

CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

(o)  (Continued) ) (i
Debt Derivatives
Convertible bond component components Total
AT R & %5 B B fTETEHR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014 —E-mE-A—-HZ
fREE 32,675 (392) 32,283
Interest income credited to profit or loss FTABZZ A BEWA 4,327 - 4,327
Change in fair value - in profit or loss REEZEH-NER - 394 394
Change in fair value - in other NFEEE
comprehensive expense —-REMEEMAY (1,334) - (1,334)
Interest received from China Fortune BRHEER TS (3,839) - (3,839)
Exchange realignment IE W R 168 @) 166
As at 31 December 2014 and R=Z—mF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—-HBK
“E—-h%—H—H 31,997 - 31,997
Settlement of the Convertible Bond BN TRRES (31,997 - (31,997
As at 31 December 2015 RZT—h%
+ZA=+—H - = -
2015 Convertible Bond “E-nEVHREREES
Fair value at the date of issue of the 2015 ﬁé‘?é‘ﬁ:%éfﬁiﬂiﬁﬂﬁ
Convertible Bond EHFEAZATE 31,641 7,951 39,592
Interest income credited to profit or loss qu )\ B2 MEWA 3,459 - 3,459
Change in fair value — in profit or loss ATEEEH-NER = (7,877) (7,877)
Change in fair value — in other EZE
comprehensive expense —-REMEEMAT 2,824 - 2824
Interest receivable from China Fortune g Bl E %2 F A (8,436) - (3,436)
Exchange realignment B 5 2 2,654 120 2,774
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZT—RF
+=-A=+—"H 37,142 194 37,336
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

(o)

(Continued)

The derivative components of the 2015 Convertible Bond was
revalued at 31 December 2015 and 25 February 2015 based on
valuations by Roma Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer,
determined using Black-Scholes option pricing models. The

significant inputs to the models were as follows:

Conversion option

n‘/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

B RSk MY aE

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

AHHERE IRRESN

EZTETIER
) (&)

—E-—RFABRRESFZTELINZ
—RF+-_A=t—-HBER-_Z—HF_A
—+RBRBIGEMESHEFEER
AEIEAA N AR AT e EENET
ZHEERG ZEXNTAZEZHAZEN

T

[LEi:%:
31 December 2015 25 February 2015
—E—5%F —E—-51%F
+=A=+-8 —A-+EA
Aggregate principal amount Wi R HK$40,385,000/ 7  HK$40,385,000/8 7T
Exercise price 118 (E HK$0.137 7T HK$0.1378 7T
Risk free rate 0 B A 2 0.017% 0.176%
Expected volatility TEHAR 18 32.16% 80.12%
Excepted option period 8 HA B A% 4 AT 0.153 year4F 1 years
Call option
R
31 December 2015 25 February 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
+=A=+-8 —A=+%H
Aggregate principal amount R 4258 HK$40,385,00087c  HK$40,385,0007% T
Exercise price fTEfE HK$40,385,0007% 7 HK$40,385,000/% 7T
Risk free rate 2 Ja B ) 2 0.017% 0.176%
Expected volatility TEHAR 18 6.398% 4.571%
Excepted option period & HA i Ak B 0.153 yearfF 1 yeartF
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The fair value of debt component was calculated based on
the present value of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the required yield, which was
determined with reference to the credit rating of the issuer of the
Convertible Bond and the 2015 Convertible Bond and remaining
time to maturity. The effective interest rates of the debt element
of the Convertible Bond and the 2015 Convertible Bond are
9.09% and 12.52% respectively.

The fair value of each of the debt and derivative components of
the Convertible Bond and the 2015 Convertible Bonds on initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting period are determined
by the directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
performed by Roma Appraisals, an independent valuer not
connected with the Group. Details are set out in note 6.

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 23. At H&#% & AR ES N

EZTEIE
) (&)

24. A E

BEBDZAFEDNRBANEEZ AR
BEREBRRTERSRMRZREFE
MAKRBERENEL2E0HKRESE R
T-hFABBREFETAGHATIRAEE
FHAR 2 TRMEETE - Al REF R =T
—RAFEARBRESF 2 BB HD 2 EEF X
2 Bl £9.09% K& 12.52% °

RYITHERE RN E R Z TR R ES
AT -RFRBREFZEBRITET
BEHMEBZAFEVTAARREELES
ZEAREE I EEE 2 B ERMTES
BIRET A ETT 2 MEMEE - AR BN
fft 56 -

ERFRIZER

As at 31 December

w+ZH=+—H
2015 2014
—E—-1f — T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Cost of investment, unlisted AN JELET 57,980 4,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and MG EEE R E 2R
other comprehensive expense 2,377 (8,647)
60,357 868
Amounts due from associates i NI B e 911 =

The amounts due from associates were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2015 and

2014 are as follows:

n‘/T\

RZE-—RFERZ

B RS AR M EE

—HE+-A=+-BIEE
24, NEEE N T Z BE & (@)

—mE+ A=t -
 eRmoREAMRNT

Place of
establishment Class of Percentage of nominal value of Principal
Name of entity Form of entity and operation shares held registered capital held by the Group activity
L EL B BRIRBEWE  HERGER FEARBHMEAEEZAN I TEXH
Directly Indirectly
BE %
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z5-1f Z—T-mE ZF-1f —T-QF
ERRBREERERAR Limited liabity The PRC Registered N/A N/A 40% 40% Investment
(‘LB RE) company capital holding
LBRBREERERAR BRAR HE BaE-v: TER TR 40% 40% RERR
( /@mtt%
FIFBREEEERAR Limited liabity The PRC Registered N/A N/A N/A 40% Investment
(RIVEEE) (Note () company capital holding
HIFEREERERAR BRAR HE FHER TER TER THERB 40% REER
(TRYIVRBE]) (Kist(a)
BOEREREABERERAR Limited liabilty The PRC Registered N/A N/A N/A 40% Investment
(A EE") (Note (@) company capital holding
BOREREBRERAR BRAR HE FMHER TER TER TER 40% REER
(Neoesmg]) (Fis)
BHLEE t* BERE Limited liabilty The PRC Registered N/A N/A 49% N/A Provision of micro
(8RN E") (Note (b)) company capital loan financing
service
BRASBENESRERAR  AR2A HE FMHER TER TER 49% TER RENEER
(Mgmgl )(WI b)) HERK
il ?h EAEEERN Limited liabilty The PRC Registered N/A N/A 40% N/A Provision of P2P
A (LRETE") (Note company capital loan service
m% TEEEEERONARAR BRARF HE HER TER TER 40% TER REEPPER
(NuErREl) (M) 5
HITREEBRBERD A Limited liability The PRC Registered N/A N/A 49% N/A Inactive
(“RITHEE) (Note (c) company capital
HITREERRBEERAR ARAR HE FRER TER TER 49% TER BRK

(TRITRE]) (HiQ)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MF

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

CRErE: T s

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note:

(@)

Wholly-owned subsidiaries of /&%, and together with _E
BRIE, referred as “LIERBSGroup”. RIINERS and O
& were disposed of by _E/&Z&NE of during the year ended
December 2015.

On 20 March 2015, 49% equity interest in B2/ NE was
acquired by the Group at RMB49,000,000 with gain of bargain
purchase of approximately RMB2,388,000 resulted.

IWERINRE and ZIITHE were newly established companies
in the year ended 31 December 2015 with capital injection of
RMB4,000,000 and RMB980,000 by the Group respectively.

All associates are accounted for using the equity method in

(@)

PIARE ARIENLSRA

—AFE+ZA=+—HILEFEE
24. i Ef

P& -

ENEZ R (m)

PEREz2EHB AR ER LERIES
WA LEREEE] RBEE_Z—1F

+ Htirt/imﬂﬁ%ﬂj /mﬂllmﬂﬂ%&/i
M ER g5
RZZ—RF=A=+8 rEEUARE

49,000,0007C B /B R/ NE 2 49% = « BEE
A HEWE R A R %2,388,0007T ©
LWESREREITHEEAREBEE-Z
—AE+-_A=+—BHLEEFERFRILZ
AR AEBEDRIAZMEAREEARE
4,000,0007T & A & #6980,0007T °

B BRRRBER

these consolidated financial statements. EARR o
L8 # B Group: LiERBER:
As at 31 December
w+ZH=+—H
2015 2014
ZE-LfF —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current assets mBNEE 3,253 6,722
Non-current assets EMBEE 4 426
Current liabilities and total liabilities nREBEELREEESE (1,914) (6,265)
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-H=+—HILEE
2015 2014
~F-If —E-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Revenue A - -
Profit (loss) for the year FEwMN (EE) 460 (1,680)
Other comprehensive income FEHEHME2EBA
for the year = =
Total comprehensive income (expense) FE 2 WA (B ) 4%
for the year 460 (1,680)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZ_-_Z—HF+-_A=+—HLFE ;‘1
24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24, REFENT Z W (@) w g
iR W& Group: (Continued) bimEmeEE: (8) %ﬁ

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interests in the associates
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

LTS E R B E N AR A M SRR AR
ZHE N R RE S BRI

As at 31 December

R+=ZBA=+—8
2015 2014
—e-1% —F-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETF T ARET T
Net assets of the associates B N A FEE 1,343 883
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& BB E A 7
interests in the associates Fr Rz 2 Ll 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBERNRZ
interests in the associates g T et 537 353
BRADE: BRANE:
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—8H
2015 2014
—F—EfF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T ARET T
Current assets MEEE 118,718 N/A i@ A
Non-current assets ERBEE 37 N/A 3@
Current liabilities and total liabilities mBEELRBERRE (6,526) N/A T~ iE A
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
R/ E: (Continued)

wENE: (B)

24, NEEE N T Z B & (@)

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—HILEE

231

2015 2014
—F-afF — g4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Revenue A 10,620 N/A i@ A
Profit for the year F A 7,355 N/A 38
Other comprehensive income FREHEMEEEKA
for the year - N/A i@ A
Total comprehensive income FEEFERKRALEE
for the year 7,355 N/A 1~ A
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to it B R E R B E NG A B IR R R AR
the carrying amount of the interests in the associate recognised ZH SN T REREmM S NN
in the consolidated financial statements:
As at 31 December
R+-—A=+—H
2015 2014
—EF-AfF — g4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFT
Net assets of the associate BN R FEE 112,229 N/A A& B
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N5 B A B & A 7] Fr A 1
interests in the associate A Al 49% N/A 73 A
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBERNAZ
interests in the associate Em R e 54,992 N/A 73 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra B IS R AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

24, T Ef

BT Z R (m)

LEN=EE: LEREg:
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—AF —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Current assets mEEE 10,888 N/A i@ A
Non-current assets ERBEE 42 N/A 3@
Current liabilities and total liabilities neYBERBEES (1,032) N/A i A
For the year ended 31 December
BHE+-_H=+—HLEE
2015 2014
—E—RfF —EF—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Revenue A 1,552 N/A & A
Loss for the year FEBE (102) N/A 38 B
Other comprehensive income FEHEMEEEA
for the year - N/A 3 A
Total comprehensive expense FEEHEMATRE
for the year (102 N/A 138 A
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

W R = &: (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interests in the associate recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

24, &N T ZRE & (@)
WER=E: (&)
PR ER B RN A BB E R
THAARIERERSEYENT

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—AF — PO
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETF T ARET T
Net assets of the associate B N A FEE 9,898 N/A i@ A
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NS BB E A 7
interests in the associate FrE i e 2 LL I 40% N/A 3@ A
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBENRZ
interests in the associate s RHE SR 3,959 N/A T~ iE A
FINHEE: FINHHEE:
As at 31 December
mR+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-hfF —HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T ARET T
Current assets MEEE 1,767 N/A i@ A
Non-current assets ERBEE 6 N/A 3@
Current liabilities and total liabilities mBEERBERRE - N/A 3@
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24, NEEE N T Z BE & (@)
# I T 48 % (Continued) RINTHHEE: (B)

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-H=1+—HILEE

2015 2014

—E-IfF —T-mEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F AR T T

Revenue WA 62 N/A 138 A

Loss for the year FEEE (228) N/A 78 A
Other comprehensive income FREHEMEEEKA

for the year - N/A i@ A
Total comprehensive expense FEXEALAE

for the year (228) N/A i B

Recondiliation of the above summarised financial information to LB E R E N A SRR AR
the carrying amount of the interests in the associate recognised ZHENREERESEERIT
in the consolidated financial statements:

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H

2015 2014

—FE—IfF —ZE—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR T T

Net assets of the associate &N R FEE 1,773 N/A 3@ A

Proportion of the Group’s ownership NS BB & A 7

interests in the associate F B HERE % 2 Lh 49% N/A T~
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBPRBE RG] Z

interests in the associate R E R 869 N/A i A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REELEZHER
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—Af —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTTT
Cost of unlisted investments in MG &2 I EMIRE 2 KA
joint ventures 7,936 7,936
Share of post-acquisition loss and MG EE R EMEE S
other comprehensive expenses (7,936) (1,706)
- 6,230
Amounts due from joint ventures JEU & &2 2 FKIE 13,251 5,196
The amounts due from (to) joint ventures are unsecured, EW () EERECHBRERR 28K
interest-free and repayable on demand. AR ENKEE-
Detalils of the joint ventures as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 RZE—RAFER T —NF+_H=+—H
are as follows: Zé B ZZD T
Place of
incorporations Percentage of nominal
establishment  Class of value of issued capital Principal
Name of entity Form of entity and operation  shares held held by the Group activities
ML R AEEMFERITRE
ERean ERERX g piik PR 4 S B EEZADE FTEXH
2015 2014
—F5-1f C—ZQmF
Measure Up (Note (c)) Limited liability The BVI Ordinary shares - - Investment holding
company
Measure Up ( Fif3E (c)) BRAR RBELHS L@k REZR
*Lucky Target Property Agency Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - Investment holding
(Note (c)) company
H&‘ME REBERAA (K ) BRAA B EER BRAEER
HANETRE (L8)ERAH Limited liability The PRC Registered share - - Provision of finance
(Note (c)) company capital lease service
RBREHE (LB BRAA BRAA HE AR REMERERY
(M ()
Absolute Wise (Note (a)) Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares 51% 51% Investment holding
company
B (s (@) BRRA B LER REER
Zither Clubhouse Limited (“Zither”) Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares 50% 50% Clubhouse and
(Note (b)) company restaurant
business
HEEMERAR ([HE]) BRAT B EER SRRERER
(B (o)
* Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Measure Up, and together with & Measure Upz 2 & Kf B A 38 [5] Measure
Measure Up, referred to as Measure Up Group. Up#t i A Measure Up%e @
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZEZZ—HF+-B=+—HILLEFE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the unlisted investments
in joint ventures represented the 51% equity interest in
Absolute Wise and 50% equity interest in Zither.

Notes:

(@) On 23 October 2013, following the deemed disposal of 49%
equity interests in Absolute Wise, the casting vote of the
chairman of the board of directors of Absolute Wise appointed
by the Group was removed and the Group maintained 50%
voting rights in the board of directors of Absolute Wise.
However, since at least 51% of the voting rights are required
to make decisions about the relevant activities, the directors
of the Company considered the joint control arrangement has
been established because decisions about the relevant activities
cannot be made without both parties agreeing. Absolute Wise
became a joint venture of the Group.

(b)  On 7 October 2014, Standhill Holdings Limited (“Standhill”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with another venturer. Pursuant to the agreement,
Standhill and another venturer each were required to contribute
HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,923,000)
for 5,000 shares in Zither. On 27 October, 2014, Zither was
established. The Group holds 50% of the ordinary shares of
Zither and controls 50% of the voting power in the general
meeting. The decisions about the relevant activities of Zither
should be unanimously approved by Standhill and another
venturer. Therefore, Zither is regarded as a joint venture of the
Group.

(c) In prior years, the Group held 35% of the ordinary shares of
Measure Up and controlled 35% of the voting power in the
general meeting. However, under a shareholders’ agreement,
the relevant activities of Measure Up should be unanimously
approved by the Group and another venturer. Therefore,
Measure Up Group was regarded as a joint venture of the
Group. Pursuant to an agreement dated 23 December 2014
signed between Ever Step and an independent third party,
Ever Step disposed of 20% equity interests in Measure Up at
approximately RMB1,450,000 and amount due from Measure
Up to Ever Step of approximately RMB59,248,000 (the “Sale
Loan”) at approximately RMB59,248,000 (the “Measure Up
Group Disposal”). The Measure Up Group Disposal was
completed on 29 December 2014 and the equity interests
in Measure Up Group have been reduced from 35% to 15%
accordingly. Subsequent to partial disposal of equity interests
in Measure Up Group, the Group ceased to have joint control
over Measure Up Group and the remaining 15% equity interests
is accounted for as an available-for-sale investment which was
disposed of during the year as set out in note 23.

25. i}

TEZED @

W_R-—MER-F—AF+=A=+—
S RAEDRHLMRABEM IO
G R 5 2 2 509 -

=z

G2

@ R-T—=FtA_+=R ZEBERIELE
RIS Z49% B8R AAKER T REE
FEEFEIRERBBE  MAKBEDAR
BRREE 2 EFE0% 2 KERE - AT &
RERBAERHELEREFTEELIBRE
# BARREERAERRETHNET R
gZﬁRTT“WﬁtﬁH@EQZRE

W&iﬁﬂﬁﬁ RECKARERZ

) RZZFE—HNF+AEBR ARAZE
& [ff B A & Standhill Holdings Limited
([Standhill |) 8255 —4& & 75 5] 32— 15 #pass
BIEZ W Standhilk 2 —& L &8 A
% & 2 2 5,0000% f% 19 7E & 10,000,000 7T
(FBERHOAREET,923,0007T) c HER —
T—E+A-++EAKT ZK%ltTﬁét
B 750% % mA% I AR R 21 H1150%1%
o Egzmﬁéﬁﬁﬁmmﬁde&ﬁ
—AEF—BHLER  FREE R &
EWEANEBEEDE-

() PBEFE  RNEEFEMeasure Up235%
T3 AR 0 A AR B K & 1 H35% 1 A o A
i RIE— 7 IR E 7% - Measure UpZ 1H 78
EENRRERAEER S —AE Bt
& FAI{EE o E It - Measure Upfs B4
REBAEEZEERE - BEKEE—FE
VEZARZ_Z—NF+_A=-+=8%

B 2 Bk - kP& AR A R #51,450,0007T H
& A Measure UpZZO%H&tELT’EL‘/{%’U/\E?ﬁ?
59 248,0007T it & Measure Up#t K 7k fE 2

FIEH AN R #59,248,0007T ([HEEZR])
(FMeasure Up& B HEEIE]) - Measure

EEXEEHEER=T—HWFE+=A
~—+hB5K &Measure Upf B 2 I HEHE
FE B35%8 £15% ° MMeasure Up% B 2
AEAEER 1 H & 18 - AN FE23FT H 0 AN
TE ¥ Measure Up% B A £ R 42 Hil# LA
KT 15% R AREATHDERE (K
RERBEHE) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REEEEZHER @

(Continued)

() TEAEEFRZIMBERE

(i) Summarised financial information of

material joint ventures =

Zither: &EE

The summary financial information in respect of the EHASECEFERERLE HEEHM
Group’s material joint ventures, Zither Clubhouse Limited, ERARZHBERE (HAERE
which are accounted for using the equity method is set ABR) &I -

out below:

As at 31 December

m+—_BA=+—H

2015 2014

“E-LfF —E—mEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#BET T ARETIT

Current assets mEEE 5,602 9,448
Non-current assets EREBEE 14,379 12,731
Total assets EEMTE 19,981 22179
Current liabilities mEAE (19,996) (9,749)
Non-current liabilities EREEE - =
Total liabilities B 5B (19,996) (9,749)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the
following:

NEBERABEEATSRE:

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
~F-If —ZE-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBFT
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MBS EHEIER 3,534 8,670

Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other
payables and provisions)

HERMARELEE)

nBEREE(TEEESR

Non-current financial liabilities FnBEMEE
(excluding trade and other (TEREEZR
payables and provisions) HuBEMARERERS) - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

25. REECEZHERE (&)

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

(i) Summarised financial information of
material joint ventures (Continued)

Zither: (Continued)

(i)

EEEEXZHMBERE
Eﬁ)

=E (&%)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014

ZE—RF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR T T

Revenue A 13,954 =

Loss for the year FNEE (12,446) (3,415)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ F A2 E X H & 48

for the year (12,446) -

The Group’s share of results AEEDIG 2 HE (6,215) (1,708)

The above loss for the year includes the following income

AEFARBBEBEFEATERA (XH) :

(expenses):
For the year ended 31 December

BE+_-_A=+—HLEE
2015 2014
“F-IfF —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREEF T
Depreciation e (3,222) =
Interest income BB A - -
Interest expenses FEZH = -
Income tax expenses FriS i h = =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25.

(Continued)

() Summarised financial information of
material joint ventures (Continued)

Zither: (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in the
joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

(i)

NEECEZHEELT @)

FEEELEZHMBERE
CNE )

EHE (8

iL%ﬁéﬂﬁ% RiE& B s HR%
NERZ S EEXEMLBEYHE
FUBNE

As at 31 December

R+ZRA=+—H

Net (iiabilities) assets of BECER(AR)EE

the joint venture (15) 12,430
Proportion of the Group’s AEEREGELEL

ownership interest in Fr B Rzt

the joint venture 50% 50%

®) 6,215

Unrecognised share of losses and  FRARER DG H & B

other comprehensive expenses 518 K E b & [ 57 H

of the joint venture for the year 8 -

Carrying amount of the Group’s A%
interest in the joint venture Eam

B M
il

EMD

REREL
i

- 6,215

239 CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. i}

(Continued)

(i) Summarised financial information of
material joint ventures (Continued)

Zither: (Continued)

The Group has stopped recognising its share of losses of
the joint venture when applying the equity method. The
unrecognised share of losses of the joint venture, both for
the year and cumulatively, are set out below:

—~HE+-A=t-ALEE
TR ZE = (&)

TEAELEZMBERE
= (#)

EE(4#)

ZKE@EEAJE%*é /jﬂ_féfﬁuiﬁguu/\

DMEBRELFRZEE - AFERRR
EROEEERRERIIEIT :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—_E—-af —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Unrecognised share of losses and FRARER DG E & B
other comprehensive expenses  E518 R H {th 2 E 57
of joint venture for the year 8 -

For the year ended 31 December
BEt+ZA=+—HILEE

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AR®T T
Accumulated unrecognised share ZitRERDHAEDE
of losses and other BEEREMEEE T
comprehensive expenses of
the joint venture 8 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

25. NEE b ZHE@m (&)

(Continued)
() Summarised financial information of () ETEEGEEEZMBHFERE
material joint ventures (Continued) = (@)

Measure Up Group:

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint ventures, Measure Up Group,

Measure Up £ H :

which are accounted for using the equity method is set JKEE)%Z’J"J LUl

out below:

BERAAEE 2 EESE D% Measure
UpSE Bz BERBE (KRR E

At 31 December

2014
MZZT—mF
+-A=+—H
RMB’000
ARET T
Current assets mENEE N/A 38
Non-current assets EmBNE E N/A 38 FR
Total assets BEBTE N/A 73 A
Current liabilities mEN A E N/A 738 B
Non-current liabilities EmBEE N/A 38
Total liabilities BfERR N/A i A
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the NEEERBEBIENUTSHE:
following:
At 31 December
2014
RZZE—EF
+-—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEIEE N/A 73 A
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade B BB & (TEEE S &
and other payables and provisions) HE R RIE L) N/A 3@ A
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding JERBESEMEBE (TEEES &
trade and other payables and He R RIE L)
provisions) N/A 3 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE S

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REELEZHEDT @)
(Continued)
() Summarised financial information of () ETEGELEZMBHFERE
material joint ventures (Continued) = (@)
Measure Up Group: (Continued) Measure Up%£ E . (%)
1 January
2014 to
29 December
2014
—T-F
—A—B=
—T-F
+ZAZ=+1H
RMB’000
ARET T
Revenue WA 7,636
Loss for the year FANEE (618)
The Group’s share of results AEE DG 2 EE (220)
The above loss for the year includes the following NEFABBEEEATERA (X
income/(expenses): ) -
1 January
2014 to
29 December
2014
—T-F
—HA—HBE
—T-WF
+TZA=+ANH
RMB’000
ARET T
Depreciation e (540)
Interest income FE WA 65
Interest expenses B (2,428)
Income tax expenses PS8 (1)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE
25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REELEZEE @
(Continued)
() Summarised financial information of (i) TESELEZMBERE
material joint ventures (Continued) = (#)
Measure Up Group: (Continued) Measure Up£ & - (&)
Regarding to the Measure Up Group disposal, the Group FMeasure UpSEBIHEFHEME @+ A
accounted for the remaining 15% equity interest as an SBE A58 T15%HE ARIEAA #
available-for-sale investment whose fair value at the date HERE HRESAHZATFERA
of disposal was RMB1,058,000 which was determined R #1,058,0007T ' WA ER =T —IY
by reference to an exit price under negotiation with FH+_A=Z+—HHEEZEHT15%
an independent third party to sell this remaining 15% R —2B T E=SEERCER
equity interest at 31 December 2014. This transaction BMEE - ZBERZPERIBRNERS
has resulted in the recognition of a loss in profit or loss, BB FrEAT
calculated as follows:
RMB’000
ARBTT
Total consideration of disposal HEZBRE 60,698
Plus: fair value of investment s (15%)RBEE 2 AFE
retained (15%) 1,058
Less: carrying amount of RN REAERIZEGIRE AR ECEREED R
the investment on the
date of loss of joint control (2,564)
carrying amount of Measure Up%s [ & {1 2N &£ B 5718 < BRE B
amount due from
Measure Up Group
to the Group (569,248)
Loss on disposal of joint ventures H&& &% 2 EE (56)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. i} TERZEZR @

(Continued)

(i) Summarised financial information of (i) FETESELEZHMBFERN
immaterial joint ventures =
Measure Up Group: (Continued) Measure Up%£ E : (%)
The financial information and carrying amount, in NEBEERIFEE RN ERA = EAR
aggregate, of the Group’s interests that are not 2w BTG ER R ARE SRR
individually material and are accounted for using the FaA

equity method is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014

—_E—-af —E -

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

The Group’s share of loss AEE G EE 15 17
The Group’s share of other REEEGE AR E A

comprehensive income - -
The Group’s share of total AEBEGEA HBE

comprehensive expenses 15 17

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—F-Af i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTTT
Carrying amount of the Group’s ARNEBERIFEASEDEZ
interests in immaterial B2 RES R
joint ventures - 15
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

(ii) Summarised financial information of
immaterial joint ventures (Continued)

Measure Up Group: (Continued)

The Group has stopped recognising its share of losses of
the joint venture when applying the equity method. The
unrecognised share of the joint venture, both for the year

and cumulatively, are set out below:

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE
25.

NEECEZHEELT @)

(i) FESSBEEIHMBARN
H]E ()
Measure Up££ B : (%)

ZL"*IEE’\F‘%%\ ERIF ILRERE
DMERELRZEE - AFERRR
ROERLELEHINIT:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—F-1F —Z 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Unrecognised share of losses and  FRARER DG E & B
other comprehensive expenses EEREMEES
of joint venture for the year 139 -

For the year ended 31 December
BEt+ZA=+—HILEE

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AR®T T
Accumulated unrecognised share 2t RERDHA B E
of losses and other BEEREMEEE T
comprehensive expenses of
the joint venture 139 -

245 CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

= 7t 7% R 7= M 5

—HET=A=t+-ALEE
26. & 5 B YK

As at 31 December

w+=—H=+—H
2015 2014
—E—EF —ME
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Trade receivables E 5 UK 38,753 17,793
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERBE (2,984) =
35,769 17,793

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 to 180
days to its trade customers. Other than trade receivables of
approximately RMB12,470,000 and RMBS3,712,000 which
are secured by collaterals or are guaranteed respectively, the
Group does not hold any collateral over the remaining trade
receivables. The values of collaterals for trade receivables are
set out in note 27. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date for financial consultancy
service income, and P2P loan service income and date of
providing services for interest income and online third party
payment service income, which approximates the respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of each reporting period
and as follows:

AEBETHE S EFOE180R 2 FHE
EH-BRE 5 EUGRA AR ®12,470,0007T
N AR #3,712,0007T 4 DA 48 & 1B 3 3 =k
REERIN REEWEFER T E H R UK
BETAEKER B 5 RER 2K RER
B E27 - B S REUGR (KR ERERE)
2R D ITIR S HME R 2 B 75 w5 s AR % UL
ANPPEF RIS WA 2 22 H B A R BEF
BUWARE EE=H I AIREBARESF
R BE (REBEKARRBHESE)
EX i

As at 31 December

R+-RA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-4fF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
0 - 90 days 0-90H 32,363 9,243
91 — 180 days 91 - 180H 3,406 8,550
35,769 17,793
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors REE B HRBGRESRBIER R EERE

with aggregate carrying amount of RMB22,837,000 (2014:
nil) which are past due as at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
because there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and they are still considered as recoverable. Included in
the past due but not impaired balances there are approximately
RMB12,324,000 and RMB3,711,000 which are secured by
collaterals or are guaranteed respectively. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

1 5 2 AR A A A R #22,837,0007T (=
T—POF ) ZEWHIE - BNMEEE =1
EERNEFHRNABEAUE - AN E B W&
REBEREE CABERAEZEHRE
59 B LA 3R @I IR S R IE R 2 AR
#12,324,0007C & A R #3,711,0007T ° A&
B3 St SRS RS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. B 5 BEWHK (@)

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but BB RORE 2 B 5 KGR 2 SRR D AT (51
not impaired is set out below: W

As at 31 December
R+Z-HA=+—H

2015
—2-1n%
RMB’000
ARBF T

2014
—F—mF
RMB’000
ARBTT

0 - 90 days
91 — 180 days

0—90H
91—180H

19,431
3,406

Total

At

22,837

S RIGR O RERBESHEIINT :

The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is set out below:

As at 31 December

W+-HR=+—H

2015 2014

—FE—EfF —ZE—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

At 1 January n—H—H - -
Impairment losses recognised on Z 5 RNz B ERREEE

trade receivables 2,984 -

At 31 December W+=—B=+—8 2,984 =

BORBAZRERBREEANREZE
SEWHF (EHAEREEXERETK
&) @ik A ARK2084,000T (= F
—HEFE) -

Included in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of RMB2,984,000 (2014: nil) which have either been
placed under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
27. LOAN RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. BEINEF FEMRAREME
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES IR
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
ZE—RF —T—-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T AR T T
Loan receivables EYRE
Secured loans BEFER
Pawn loans to customers HPEHMEER 5,800 5,800
Real estate-backed loans to BEFEEHEEMBER
customers 339,228 -
Entrusted loans to customers EEZLZTER 661,430 485,190
Other loans to customers EEEMER 552,188 168,904
1,558,646 659,894
Unsecured loans AR E
Entrusted loans to customers RERFTER 429,083 136,827
Other loans to customers XEEHEMER 261,376 39,903
Micro loans to customers HE/NFEER 18,353 30,121
Less: Allowance for unsecured W EBUEE R E SRS
loan receivables (19,465) (3,903)
2,247,993 862,842
Prepayments and other receivables 7 {183t & & fit fEY% 76 15
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT BR 30 I H Ath FE U RIR 268,483 183,536
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. B &R FEITERF R H 1 fE

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Loan receivables

The pawn loans to customers arising under the Group’s pawn
loans business had an average loan period of 90 days (2014:
90 days). The real estate-backed loans had an average loan
period of 60 days to 270 days (2014: 90 days to 1 year). The
secured and unsecured entrusted loans to customers arising
from the Group’s entrusted loan business had an average loan
period of 30 days to 1 year (2014: 30 days to 1 year). The
secured and unsecured other loans to customers arising from
the Group’s other loans business had an average loan period
of 30 days to 2 year (2014: 1 year). The unsecured micro loans
to customers arising from the Group’s microfinance business
had an average loan period of 1 year (2014: 1 year). The loans
provided to customers bore fixed interest rate ranging from
0.5% to 2.1% per month (2014: 0.5% to 2.5% per month) and
were repayable according to the loan agreements.

Included in the secured loan balances are loans of
approximately RMB789,459,000 (2014: RMB420,991,000)
secured by real estates in the PRC, RMB296,151,000 (2014:
RMB165,075,000) and RMB75,256,000 (2014: nil) secured
by other assets including equities in private entities and listed
shares respectively, RMB130,875,000 (2014: RMB73,828,000)
secured by real estate in the PRC and the Company’s shares
and RMB266,905,000 (2014: nil) secured by the Company’s
shares.

Included in the unsecured loan balances are loans of
approximately RMB600,712,000 (2014: RMB169,974,000)
guaranteed by guarantors.

Included in the loan receivables there were balances of
approximately RMB1,090,513,000 (2014: RMB622,017,000)
which represented entrusted loans to customers through
licensed banks in the PRC. In addition, loan receivables of
approximately RMB72,000,000 (2014: nil) were pledged under
factoring agreements with recourse for obtaining other loans of
approximately RMB16,550,000 (2014: nil).
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EREBEENEPAERAREERERE
R FHEFAARIOREIF (ZT—4F:
SOKRZENF) - AEERHEMEREBHEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. B E R BRI R HEthIE

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) W ERTE (@)

Loan receivables (Continued) FEW S =X (&)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held collaterals RZE—RAF+_A=+—H AEEHIR

with value of approximately RMB3,619,839,000 (2014: HFEFNITBRTEEIREMEEATH

RMB2,687,591,000) in total over the financing advances to AR #3,619,839,0007T (ZZE—MF: AR

customers. #2 687,591,0007T ) °

(a) Ageing analysis (a) ARE ST

As at 31 December

w+ZH=+—H
2015 2014
—F-RF —ZT—MEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Within 90 days COFNA 855,334 510,560
91 to 180 days 912180k 120,000 39,565
181 to 365 days 181E365K 666,046 85,579
Over 365 days B iE365K 606,613 227,138
2,247,993 862,842
The above ageing analysis is presented based on the FHBER ST DRBEREFPEEHER
date of loans granted to customers. HEAZ%I o
The Group's financing advances to customers included in AREEREFAEMEANFERRGTA
the loan receivables are due as of the due date specified FRERF TR EBER BETIEE
in respective loan agreements. K EIHA H 2 A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. BB FEMRAREME
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) TSR IE (@)
Loan receivables (Continued) FEUW & X (40
(b) Loan receivables that are not impaired (b) 1B R EWK & 7

Included in the Group’s loan receivable balances
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB784,844,000 (2014: RMB249,876,000) which were
past due as at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. For the amount
of RMB772,5626,000 (2014: RMB249,876,000), the
Group holds collaterals amounting to approximately
RMB2,349,772,000 (2014: RMB2,060,600,000) in
respect of such loan receivables as at 31 December
2015. The remaining balances are unsecured.

The ageing of loan receivables which were past due but

AEERKEREHBIERHRE A H
B AR BRI E A A R 784,844,000
T (ZZE—N4F: AR #249,876,000
) (AEBYEREEHRERSE
BiE) - phem ARKT72,526,000
L (ZZF— 4« AR 249,876,000
T)ME AEER-_T—AF+_A
—t+t—HREBERURERBEEHAR
#£2,349,772,0007T (= —M0F : AR
#&2,060,600,0007T ) KR - #R%E &
AL

BB HERBE 2 R E KRR

W :

not impaired is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=ZH=+—H
2015 2014
ZE—RfE —F—mOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Not yet past due 14 A< 481 HA

Current & 1,463,149 612,966

Past due but not impaired B 8 B KRE
Within 90 days 90K A 251,280 =
91 to 180 days 91ZE180k 935 49,585
181 to 365 days 181K =365k 192,199 59,208
Over 365 days B #B365K 340,430 141,083
784,844 249,876
2,247,993 862,842
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE
27. LOAN RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. B E R BRI R HEthIE
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) WK IE (@)
Loan receivables (Continued) B E K (@)
(b) Loan receivables that are not impaired (b) XABERIEKE (&)
(Continued)
Movement in the allowance for loan receivables FERE R 2 &
As at 31 December
WR+Z-HRA=+—H
2015 2014
—_F-AfF — T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
At 1 January Kn—H—H 3,903 -
Impairment losses recognised EWEH 2 ERRREEE
on loan receivables 15,562 29,046
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE A A - (25,143)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 19,465 3,903
The Group’s neither past due nor impaired loan AEBXRBEMARRERRKERE
receivables mainly represented loans granted to BB T I T HAHE R aﬂﬁﬁ’\]t%'f‘f’%fﬁ
creditworthy customers for whom there was no recent RITMEFRER - WIAKIEY) (HE
history of default, and secured by the collaterals which ERERERZERAES )T
value were higher than the carrying value of the loan
receivables.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group BE_ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLF
had successfully auctioned the collateral of one real- B -AEBEEXRNAERAEARE
estate backed loan defaulted in 2012 with carrying value 49,500,0007c 2 =& —:i—ﬁfﬂ
of RMB49,500,000. Further to the principal recovered FEHERRER 2 ERY - BRREZE
through auction during the year ended 31 December Z—MOFE+-_HA=+—H M:ﬁEWL
2014, interests and related penalties of approximately BIRBESAMB 2R FE K
RMB6,136,000 was received during the year ended 31 S 4 AR %6,136,000 T A E = =
December 2015. E—AF+-_A=+—HIFEERK
HY o
For the above past due but not impaired loan receivables Bt i g8 AR ME A R ORUE 2 B E K
with amount of approximately RMB482,373,000 (2014: S B AR #482,373,0000 (= F
RMB235,291,000), the Group had taken legal action to —PO4F : AR#235,291,00070) M= °
auction the properties under collateral. AEBDRIVEZTHUAREZSE
eiikE g
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. B &R FEITERF R H 1 fE

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Prepayments and other receivables

As at 31 December 2015, included in the amounts there
is RMB160,000,000 paid for the acquisition of 10% equity
interests in Genesis Business Holdings Limited ( &l I 2= i% 5 BR

A 7)) (“Genesis Business”) together with the right to acquire
further interests in Genesis Business at the Group’s discretion
(the “Genesis Business Acquisition”). The Genesis Business
Acquisition has not yet been completed at 31 December 2015
and the payment is accounted for as a deposit accordingly in
the consolidated financial statement. On 24 February 2016, the
10% equity interests in Genesis Business has been transferred
to the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, included in the amounts there is
consideration receivable of approximately RMB73,445,000
for the disposal of China Runking Financing Group Holdings
Limited (“China Runking”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company which was disposed of during the last year as set
out in note 44. In addition, after the disposal of China Runking
and Measure Up Group, amounts due from China Runking and
its subsidiaries of approximately RMB24,849,000 and Measure
Up Group of approximately RMB59,017,000 were included in
other receivables as at 31 December 2014. The amount have
been fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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WK IE ()

TETER A B H b FEUR FX IR
R_ZE—RAE+-_A=+—0 A AZ5%
R 2 AR#160,000,0007CE X1+ - AU
BlEER AR AT (A ]) 10%/% # & [
BEAEERBRBEIE & —PiEm o
F([AEWBERE])ZHKE-R=F—h
F+ZA=1+—8 AlEWEEE SR TK
REZNRRGE B mEPIEEANRS A
e R_E—XR"F_A-+WMHA HEZ
10%RECEZETAREEH-

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 st A\ZE5%
BHHRZEEARRFZENBARITREES
NEERBRAT ([FEER] EREF
WE L E) KRR ELDARYTS,445,0007T
(AP TH44FTE) o Lo REEFRBES
FMeasure Up&EBEIE AT — @i‘i— H
=+—H BRTIFBRESRENBA
49 AR #24,849,0007T & f& HﬂZMeasure pr
B EH A R¥59,017,0007T B 5t A H b fE
WHIB - Z R EERBE_T—RF+=A
=t+—BHIEFEABEEN-



28.

29.

30.

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED  28. FEUX (FE{T) BAE 2 R FKIE
COMPANIES

The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEFEAEERR £ ERARERKE
demand. = o
AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) 29. BN (FE1T) IEE R B R X 1R
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEFEAEER £ERARERKE
demand. Eo
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 30. iTEEMIA
INSTRUMENTS
2015 2014
—ZE—AE —E—EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARET T
Financial assets EHMEE
Derivative not under hedge accounting: 3FIRIR ¥ m &5t ERIE ~
PTETA:
Derivative embedded in convertible AR ESANSZITELTR
bond, at fair value (note 23) B AFE (M3E23) 194 =
Futures (note) S (M) 33 =
227 -
Note: The Group has purchased futures for China Securities Index 300 MiZ: RBEZZT—hF+-A=+—HILEFE
with a financial institution during the year ended 31 December A $%l B B — [ & R 3L B R300%
2015. The amount was stated at fair value based on quoted HEEHNE ZeBREBEMSREZRAT
market prices. =R

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 3. HEEFHRE

2015 2014

—E-If —T-MF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBTT

Equity securities listed in the PRC R EH 2 RARS 9,018 =
The amount was stated at fair value based on quoted market ZEeBEREMSMERATFEYK-

prices.

30015« hEEEREERAT 204




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R R M 5T

n\/j_\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
32. BANK BALANCE - TRUST ACCOUNT/ 32. R{T#4& % — (S &th EF‘/%FH '

33.

FUNDS PAYABLES AND AMOUNTS
DUE TO CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains a segregated trust account with a
licensed bank to hold customers’ monies arising from its online
third party payment service business. The Group has classified
the customers’ monies as bank balance - trust account
under the current assets of the consolidated statement of
financial position and recognised the corresponding payables
to respective customers as funds payable to customers.
The Group entitles to interests generated by the bank but is
restricted to use the customers’ monies to settle customers’
own obligations.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.750% (2014:
0.01% to 0.385%) per annum.

At 31 December 2014, pledged bank deposits represented
deposits pledged to banks to secure the short-term bank
borrowings and were therefore classified as current assets.
As at 31 December 2015, the pledged bank deposits were
released as the short-term bank borrowings were matured and
fully repaid during the year.

The Group’s bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits denominated in currencies other than functional

BAREREMNE PR

AREER —EFF R RITHRB RPN
FEREREE=TXNREEBELZE
FRE - AKBEHBEFPRAE/RITE

HR-EAMBRRARZRBDEER T 2157
RP LHERENEEEF ZHEEFASE
NEFES AKEARZFAERITELZF
B HEXRIEAEFPHRBAZKEEFLATE
Fo

33. RITHEBRE S CIRHERT
=&

RITEBNIES NEBBETFEIEN TR
FF0.01%21.750% (ZZF —MF:0.01%
£0.385% ) Z G F| RET B o

RZE—WF+_F=+—H" ' B#EHRT
TFRIEER T IRIT 2 F R ARG E RRITE
ERARSERERDEE-R_T—NLF
TZA=+T—R EEREHRITERER
Z B EMRITIFRE BN AW FABBE
B

AEBENFHEEERBNREEBIAINZER
AHEZSRITREBR MRS R B ERIRITIF RN

currency of the relevant group entities are set out as follows: ™
As at 31 December

mR+-A=+—H
2015 2014
—E-IfF —T—-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR®T T
HKS$ BT 18,036 32
RMB AR 499 205
us$ ET 14,315 7,371
32,850 7,608
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

34. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

34. fEst & A R H BT IR

As at 31 December

n+-A=+—H
2015 2014
—FE-I1fF —ZE—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T AREET T
Other payables and accrued expenses £ i {~f k18 K7 fE 5t &
(note (a)) (FFzE@)) 68,928 142,138
Consideration payable for acquisition of YR —M K E A 72
remaining interests in a subsidiary BT ZEMNRE 4,251 6,992
73,179 149,130
Financing service income receipts A& RS WA TEU R IE
in advance (note (b)) (MIE®D)) 18,730 11,946
91,909 161,076
Notes: B &

As at 31 December 2014, included in the balances there is an
advance of RMB82,000,000 from an independent third party,
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amount was subsequently repaid on 6 January 2015.

Financing service income receipts in advance represents
the deferred income arose from the difference between loan
receivables and the actual fund transferred to the customers at
the inception of loan granted in accordance with the respective
loan agreements and the deferred income will be recognised as
interest income over the loan period.

RZZ-—WFE+-A=+—0 Z&EHBHE
_iﬁi% 7 2 B3R K #82,000,000
TO BB R B MAREREER-
ZRBEARER_ZE—RF—ANHEE-

BB RIS U A TR UL FRIR $5 i I B SR B AR
BREERBEREERFRESFEEN
EREE 2MNEHEEMELERA - E
FER AR T E TR AR TR A A B
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
35. BORROWINGS 35. & &
As at 31 December
R+=ZRA=+—H
2015 2014
—_E—af — g4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT
Secured bank loans (note (a)) BEIPRITER (HH3E@)) 140,000 211,845
Secured other loans (notes (a) and (b)) B EMEAMEF (M E@) (b)) 109,096
Unsecured bank loans LR ITER 25,000 67,800
Unsecured other loans IR E i B3R 215,000 8,734
Unsecured entrusted loans EIRIRETE R 354,520 =
843,616 288,379
Carrying amount repayable*: JEEERMEE" -
On demand HER 92,546 =
Within one year —F A 475,070 288,379
After one year but within two years —F A ETHBBRE 139,000 =
After two years but within five years MFEA EETBRRF 67,000 -
After five years FEFEE 70,000 =
843,616 288,379
Carrying amount of bank loans that WIER 5 AR B ET
are not repayable within one year —FREZEBEHBEAER
from the end of the reporting period EREBIERZBITERZ
but contain a repayment on demand FEE(VRARBEEET)
clause (shown under current liabilities) (126,000) -
717,616 288,379
Less: amounts repayable on demand i 12 BREE S HI DR
or due within one year shown BEETNZ—FA
under current liabilities S| Bk ER (567,616) (288,379)
Amounts show under non-current FIRIERBIBIEIR T 2 558
liabilities 150,000 -

*

out in the loan agreements.

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
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35. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

@)

As at 31 December 2015, secured bank loans of
RMB140,000,000 (2014: nil) and secured other loans of
approximately RMB92,546,000 (2014: nil) were secured by the
investment property held by the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, secured bank loans of
RMB211,845,000 (2015: nil) were secured by the pledged
bank deposits (note 33) and guarantee provided by the Bank of
Ningbo.

As at 31 December 2015, secured other loans of approximately
RMB16,550,000 (2014: nil) were secured by certain loan
receivables as disclosed in note 27.

The loans of approximately RMB703,616,000 (2014:
RMB76,534,000) are at fixed rates of 7% to 16.8% (2014: 9%
to 12%) per annum. Another loan of RMB140,000,000 (2014:
nil) are at variable rate of 43% on top of over-five-years RMB
benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s Bank of China.

The effective interest rates of borrowings at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

MF
For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

35. {8 & (@)

P &E -

@)

R-ZE—FF+-A=+—B AR
140,000,0007T ( == — P04 : ) 2 F K7
RITEF &z’t/\Etﬁgzts%oooTc(_?
—OF &) 2 EMEERBERTIARER
BE 2B EERF -

RZE—NmWFE+-_A=+—HB AR
211,845,000t ( =T — A4 : ) 2 5 K iF
SRITERTYAC M RITER (H:E33) &
B IRITIRME 2 EREE A -

R-ZE—RFE+_A=+—H HAREK
16,550,00070 (= F — MO 4 : £ ) 7 A & 1§
HBERTYAE T RKERIERR (R
FE27FTIEER)

#“ AN R#703,616,0007T (ZZ— P4 : A
R #¥76,534,0007T ) 2 EFIZE EF R FF
7%ZE16.8% (ZZF —UF :9%E12% ) &t
B o AR#140,000,0007F (= ZF — P04 :
) 7 B—IEER IR ENR RA43% N
ARBRITEMZBBRAFHARELER

K38 -

RBERREEZERNRNAT

As at 31 December

W+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—-FE —T P
Bank and other loans RITREMER 12.8% 7.6%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
36. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 36. B EFHE RIE
LEASES
2015 2014
—E—RF —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEFREMITLT :
Current liabilities mE A& 2,203 =
Non-current liabilities EmBBEE = -
2,203 -

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and
equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is 1.5
years (2014: nil). Interest rates underlying all obligations under

finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging
from 8% to 10% (2014: nil) per annum. These leases have no
terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses.

AEBZBRAREREREHNESTESE
B - FHHRERAR1F (ZT—WF:
) c TBREHERERA LN ERSEL
HEREE N TFREBF8%E10% (ZZF—I
FE) ZEMEVEBENERKEEREZ
R BB TR

Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
RIEHERR REHERZRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-If —mE ZE-If —mF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Amounts payable under EftFHEHENE
finance leases
Within one year —FR 2,420 - 2,203 -
After one year but within -~ —%FJA HETRBBME
two years - - - -
After two years but within -~ B JA HERBBRE
five years = = = -
After five years AENRE = - - -
2,420 - 2,203 -
Less: future finance charges i : KK a & & H (217) = N/A 7 & A N/A i
Present value of lease HERERE
obligations 2,203 - 2,203 -
Less: Amount due for Rt ZEARNEE 2
settlement within ZIEFRIE (5
12 months (shown MEBEEET)
under current
liabilities) (2,203) -
Amount due for settlement A+ —{AR%&EE
after 12 months HEEE - =
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE
LEASES (Continued)

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as
follows:

36.

37.

ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ

n\/-_l_\

—hFE+ZBA=+—HILEE
Al & fH B AR IE (@)
AEF v RMEREREDALEAAHHES
ERE 2R IEER-

EEBRERRE
RAFE BEHERERDOT

Withholding tax Fair value
on undistributed adjustment
profit of Revaluation of arising from
subsidiaries in investment acquisition of
the PRC property subsidiaries Total
el PG| W B it /B
HK 9 iR Eff ACIELE: &4
it ¥ L REYE NTERE k)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARETT ARBFT
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME—H—H 6,457 33,812 33,959 74,228
Charged to profit or loss MBIk 1,236 3,200 = 4,436
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B A &
(Note 44) (Fi¥a4) (470) - - (470)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—ME
+ZA=t—-R 7,223 87,012 33,959 78,194
Charged (credited) to profit (5 ARz ) MR INHK
or loss 1,938 - (955) 983
Acquisition of a subsidiary 428 — KB A Al
(Note 43) (Fi3¥43) - - 10,032 10,032
At 31 December 2015 R-E—-RE
+ZA=+—"H 9,161 37,012 43,036 89,209

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB112,452,000 (2014: RMB69,598,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax loss (2014: nil)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
RMB3,541,000 (2014: RMB1,217,000) that will expire after five
years from the year of assessment to which they relate to. The
remaining tax loss may be carried forward indefinitely.

*Elt E‘JEPIMTJ% TE&’%HXZ/mt‘Jﬁﬁ:/TE
Z BB BBMTEM

NZE—RAE+ZA=+—H KEEHK
A IBEEREHARE112,452,0007T (=
T4 : A R#69,598,0007T ) A (K 5k

Pk ) o B A AR SO A SRR S AT FE R - SR
Ef%RIEEﬁTEﬁERU ﬁﬁ@\;ﬁg{t(:gfﬂ

¢ ) RERMIBEEIERER N B A HE
Bt FEREA AERERZEBBEOARE
3,541,0007T ( ZZ—M 4 : AK%1,217,000
JL) o #& N EIEE 18 AT R AR 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

B R R M 5T

38. CORPORATE BONDS

2601

~AE+-A=t-ALEE
38. AAIES

As at 31 December

wR+-RA=+—H
2015 2014
—FE-I1fF —E—gF
2-year 9.5% fixed rate bonds 2 HI9.5%E BEH 173,719 161,873
7.5-year 5.5% fixed rate bonds 7 5F HI5 5% F B & H 60,044 41,945
233,763 203,818
Represented by: Bl
Non-current portion JEREN B (D 60,044 203,818
Current portion mEN D 173,719 =
233,763 203,818
Notes: Bt 5 -
As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the balances represented the R NFER_ZT—AF+_A=+—
following corporate bonds: ﬁﬁa LAT Tﬁ% :
() principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (2014: HK$200,000,000) () 7% %8 5200,000,000/ 7T (=B — P04 :
which is due on 8 July 2016, carries interest at a fixed rate of 200,000,000/7T) * HER =T —"Ft A

(i)

9.5% with interest payable semi-annually in arrears on 8 January
and 8 July of each year. The corporate bonds are unsecured
and discounted at an effective interest rate of 11.3% per annum.

principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (2014: HK$60,000,000)
which is due on 24 April 2022, carries interest at a fixed rate
of 5.5% with interest payable semi-annually in arrears on
24 April and 24 October of each year. The corporate bonds
are unsecured and discounted at an effective interest rate of
7.7% per annum for HK$50,000,000, 8.8% per annum for
HK$10,000,000, 8.0% (2014: nil) per annum for HK$10,000,000
and 7.8% (2014: nil) per annum for HK$10,000,000.
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(i)

NB2H - IREE N E9.6%: 8 - A ER
BE-ANBREANBEFERN—Re
RAEFREERARIRERNEGF11.3%
B3R -

7K 4 %8 /580,000,000 7T ( — & — PO £
60,000,000 7T) " H#R T = —F Y
AZ=-+mMAF - %EE M E55% 8
mAiEREENA-+HBER+A-+MW
AFEEIN—R-RAEHFAEERRE
50,000,000 TTIZ BB FI R & F7.7%84
7 + 10,000,000 T i B B F R & 8.8%8f
IR + 10,000,000/ T 12 B B2 F) & & 48.0%
— TN E: ?ﬁ)ﬁaiﬁwooooooo,‘%ﬁ
REBRFEEFF7.8% — P4 )AL
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

39. CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 15 June 2015, the Company issued 6% convertible bond
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB236,419,000) (the “6%
Convertible Bond”). The Convertible Bond is denominated
in HK$ and entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time between the fortieth day
from the issue date of 10 May 2015 to the tenth day prior to
the maturity date of 9 May 2018 at an initial conversion price
of HK$2.6, subject to adjustments pursuant to the terms and

= 7t 7% R 7= M 5

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

39. A& IR E &

R_ZE—RAFENA+AHB  ARQRETEAE
42 %8 /300,000,000 7T (FHERHARE
236,419,0007T ) 2 6% A % &% ([6% AT
ESH]) - AR ESF S TEHE BT
EAEFAR -_ZE—RAFREA+BZTAS

BEFEON+EE_T—N\FRANBRHH
RIS+ B IEBARPE R IR M IR SR (B2.68 7T
(AIARIR PTIARRE S 2 IR R AR T LA )
AR EAFE IR A AN R @A - 1A R

P A 25 I AR B AT HA AR A& 25 2 IR TR M iR 1 78
kgD EIJﬁitﬁAéJHHEIt 1RE AR ME
BRASFEED - A MRESFBSMERD —
BERERED - AE E‘Bﬁz,\ﬁ’“ttﬂ%t
Convertible Bond contains two components, liability and F13.6% °

equity components. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 13.6% per annum.

conditions of the Convertible Bond. If the Convertible Bond has
not been converted or redeemed in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Convertible Bond, it will be redeemed
on maturity date at their outstanding principal amount. The

The movement of the liability and derivative components of the AR ESFZBEMITETEISD 2 B8,

Convertible Bond is set out below: 2R CNE
Liability Derivative
Component Component Total
BEHSY HTEIEDS warm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFTT AREFIT ARBEFIT
Issue of convertible bond FRBETURRES
during the year 213,213 23,206 236,419
Transaction costs R A (1,066) - (1,066)
Effective interest expenses ERFEZ T 16,129 = 16,129
Interest payables FEAFFI 2 (7,885) — (7,885)
Exchange realignment TE 7 A% 13,707 = 13,707
At 31 December 2015 RZE—hHF
+=-—HA=+—8H 234,098 23,206 257,304
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n‘/j_\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. Bz 7~
Number of
shares Share capital
B &R B A&
Presented as
AR 275
000 HK$’'000 RMB’000
T FABT ARET T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each S E{EO0.1i#&TH
L@
Authorised ZEE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December R-Z—MNFE—HF—H -
2014, 1 January 2015 and —E—mF
31 December 2015 +=—A=+—H"
—T—hF—H—H
NM=—F—HF
+=—H=+—8§ 20,000,000 2,000,000 N/A i A
Issued and fully paid EZEITRHE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—HF—H—H 2,943,600 294,360 245,773
Issue of shares upon placing R BE & R B TR D
(Note a) (MfzEa) 200,000 20,000 15,890
Exercise of share options (Note b) 7T R A% 4E (KizEb) 77,556 7,755 6,073
At 31 December 2014 and MNZT—PE
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—8Xk
T—hHF—H—H 3,221,156 322,115 267,736
Issue of shares upon placing R BEC & R B 1TAR D
(Note c) (FfzEC) 639,564 63,956 52,765
Exercise of share option (Note d) TR AR AE (BY5Ed) 14,490 1,449 1,141
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AF
+=—A=+—8H 3,875,210 387,520 321,642
Notes: BT 5E -
(@)  On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into a subscription @ R=ZZTE—NE—A=-+—H A2rFHE

agreement with Zeleste International Limited (“Zeleste”) pursuant
to which Zeleste has conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
100,000,000 shares at the subscription price of HK$0.80
per subscription share. On 14 February 2014, the Company
entered into a subscription agreement with Grandaccum
Limited (“Grandaccum”) pursuant to which Grandaccum has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 100,000,000 shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.80 per subscription share. The above
subscription agreements were completed and 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued and allotted on
21 March 2014 for a total consideration of HK$160,000,000
(equivalent to approximately of RMB127,120,000).
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Zeleste International Limited ([Zeleste | ) 5]
T RERE B ZelesteB (G HERE R
B mAQAREKEREERREESRR
i A% 150.807% 7T Iid 3% & % 17100,000,0008%
R -R_FT—NF-_A+NA KAAFH
EER2RBSERAA ([F2wl)F]
VYREHZE B R EKRERER
BmAR 7ﬁ1wm¢ﬂi‘ﬁ£ BESRKRR
B % 150.807% T It % % %% 97100,000,000/%
B 17 o L aft 52 B 17 2% B 52 5% 5.200,000,000
BEREECIOE T ZEBREN -F
fﬂifﬁ;+ BT RES B
{8 £160,000,000/8 ¢ (FHER AR
127,120,0007T ) °
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40. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 12,660,000 and
64,896,000 share options had been exercised by certain
directors, employee and business associates of the Company at
two subscription prices of HK$0.74 and HK$1.005 per share for
directors and three subscription prices of HK$0.475, HK$0.74
and HK$1.005 per share for employee and business associates
for a total consideration of approximately HK$65,253,000
(equivalent to approximately of RMB51,025,000), resulting in an
issue of 77,556,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. The
new share rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respect.

On 9 July 2015, the Company have allotted and issued
94,112,000 shares to Tandellen Group Limited and Mr. Zhao
Chengfu, independent third parties to the Group, at the
subscription price of HK$1.70 per subscription share.

On 22 October 2015, the Company have allotted and issued
265,128,000 shares to China Dragon Asia Champion Fund
Series SPC and Sheng Yuan Global High Growth Industries
Fund Series SPC, independent third parties to the Group, at the
subscription price of HK$1.95 per subscription share.

On 2 December 2015, the Company have allotted and issued
280,324,000 shares to not less than six placees, at the
subscription price of HK$2.10 per subscription share.

The above subscription agreements were completed and
639,564,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
and allotted for a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,265,670,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,045,290,000) before share issue expenses of
HK$17,924,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB14,774,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 14,490,000
share options had been exercised by a former director of the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.74 per share for a
total consideration of approximately HK$10,723,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB8,441,000), resulting in an issue of
14,490,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. The new share
rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respect.

n‘/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

B R WAk M EE

—AFE+ZA=+—HLFE

40. Bz 7~ (@)

PisE: (48)

(o)

HE-_ZT-—NE+-_A=+—HILEE
IR NN TZ%??% EEREBKBHE
B 1% /@ 852 ﬁ%tﬁtﬁxo 74,%75&1 00578 7T
(MEZMS) A R=AREE0.4755 T
0.747% 7T &1 .005,%-571 (E‘MEE M EEBH
M=) % Bl1T1#12,660,00015 K64,896,000
DB R - AR (B4 565,253,000 7T (48
%J‘E@%’J/\E%&,O%,OOOE) %iﬂéﬁ
77,556,00008 & IR EE0.1B T 2 ¥ &

f% o %ﬁﬂxt‘éﬁiﬁﬁﬂxtﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁm

iz

R-Z—RFLANB RAREAAEE
Z J87 % = 5 Tandellen Group Limited & &
HAR R EGRABBIRG1.70/8 T 2 REE
B AL 3% 1 3£1794,112,0008% B 17

RZZE—RAFTAZ+=ZH ARAIEM
AN B 2 %3 % = 5 China Dragon Asia
Champion Fund Series SPC&E%/J?EITM
BRTERINESBIKRERE RFERE

IR 3R BE AR 101 95}%732%!@\%{?@3??&?5‘{7
265 128,0008% & 15 ©

R-ZB-—RF+-A=H ARFCEKEE
B R 02.10/8 70 2 REEE R T DN
% B A e 3% 1 3 17280,324,0008 B 47 ©

LA EREHFHE T - AR R BT RE
%%639,564,000% & IR F1EHO0. 10/ 7T 2 & i@
R% » $0 B B9 2 17 59 52 17,924,000/ 7T (48
LR AR ME14,774,0007T) B 2 KB
£ #91,265,670,000% 7T (FEER O AR
1,045,290,0007T ) °

BE-_Z—AE+-_A=+—BILtEE
W ANQRE 2 —BAEEBIEFR.74%
TC 2 REBITE14,490,000170 B AL HE - 484K
fB#) 410,723,000/ 7T (FBE RO AR K
8,441,0007T) * EBE1714,490,0000% &%
EEO.1E T 2 & BA% - FT A% 15 B IR A A%
HREFEZERFHAL
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

41.

BB MEE

COMMITMENT

Operating lease arrangement

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its staff quarters and offices under
operating lease arrangements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of three months to three years. Lease payments
are usually increased annually to reflect market rentals.
No provision for contingent rent and terms of renewal was
established in the leases.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

—EF+ZA=+—-BLEE
41.

AR

REHERH

AEEEBABEN
AEBRECEAHERHAESTEIES
AR -ZEHE— RS EH=MB@AZ
=F-HEMNFBEETFEM URERT
LR HAEYEFMAATSREEFH
3

RETAHELEHEE
FIAFRFRIAT

SARMNARKERE

As at 31 December

wR+—A=+—H
2015 2014
—E—EfF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Within one year —F K 22,809 14,684
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERAFNA
(BRREEEME) 10,416 13,466
33,225 28,150
Capital expenditure commitment BARRZAE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

RB|ERR AEEBE A TEAREKRE

As at 31 December

R+-ZA=+—H
2015 2014
ZE—RF —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR T T
Capital expenditure contracted for but  BRA TN & B ZEF 4
not provided for in respect of: BAREHB2ERNRS
Acquisition of plant and equipment W& E K 55 5 4,011 5,771
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2014: HK$1,500) and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2014:
HK$1,250 prior to June 2014) (the “Mandatory Contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65,
death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by
the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make
the required contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset
employers’ contributions for the year. The employers’
contributions which have been dealt with in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and comprehensive income were as
follows:

ﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

—~HE+-A=t-ALEE
42. B & F &

AEBERBEF BRI IEE S FRAIR
ERERRFIMEAEEE (BB

n‘/T\

2l]) e tﬁtfz%ﬁta@atit EEBAZEAFH 2
5%8K Fx 1,500/ 7T ( Z & — U 4 : 1,500

To)ER SR RS AR B ME L B IMIEFR o
EBEZBAERNIZEE AFHF25%H &S
1,500 (ZE—WF : R=ZZE—WF <A
A1 21,2507 7o) 5T & ([& 6l ft5k]) - 8
BR65RRRIN - Bk SER TR TIEEE N
ZE100%.2 18 % 58 Fll 1 gL -

TFEMBARNEESRTEBFEENE
LRAGENKE -ZEMBARARESR
FMeE T B LR IRE 8 R AEE
BRAZA B ME— B ERFEHRENHRK-

R 2 [ 34 3R M T SR S R E A
EREGA BR R EREREEHEEHRT
-

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—_E—af — g4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBEFIT
Employers’ contributions charged to RérGiEEREMEEmKER
the consolidated statements of profit or ~ FORk A8 = =X
loss and other comprehensive income 5,985 5,176
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, there was RZE—RAFTZA=T—HBERZZT—NF
no forfeited contribution available to reduce the contributions +ZA=+—H WESZUHERA HRIE
payable in the future years. REREEH B LR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ 43. WEEMI B~ B, W EE — M B

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Acquisition of it 5 Bl /&l

On 28 January 2015, the Group through a structured
contract arrangement, acquired 100% equity interest in
the registered capital of 1t 7 [Bl/El, at a consideration of
RMB50,000,000 which was satisfied by cash. This acquisition
has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
RMB12,027,000. it X [El/E is engaged in the provision of
online P2P platform service.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of 1t 5Bl /&l because the cost
of the combination included a control premium. In addition,
the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefit to allow the Group to
leverage the P2P loan services in the PRC. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

NEZHEIER

BEz_F-AF+-A=+—H
IEFE

WL = B
R-ZZE—RFE—A-+N\B AEEFEBLE
& DL AR (E A R #50,000,0007T 42
BBt R B B A A H100% 054 - BN (E
THAIR S A o W B IR M A A BR - A IR
BEAZHE A ARY12,027,0007T ° 16 R
BEH ERHE EPPT & RS

Wt RERELRETIRE HRARNEE
HIREEE LN AT NREBERERE
SAEE RN A EPPEFRK M2 18
A SENERTNTA A B ETLEE
HER IR MR B R BB LR -

AW B EE A 2 P B TR HARE S R E R S AR

Consideration transferred EENRE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash Hé 50,000

Minimal acquisition-related cost of the transaction is incurred
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and recognised in
administrative expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)
Acquisition of it 5 /Bl Bl (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

43. WEEHM B 2 R —

iR B B B HRaR Y A

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

=1 Bt /B
NE)ZEINEE ()

BE_F—hHF+=-A=+—H
IEFEE (@)

WEIL = EE (&)

R A A SEREREEWT

RMB’000

ARET T

Intangible assets | EE 40,127
Other receivables H b e W sk TE 1,706
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EHEIER 9,017
Other payables H b &~ HOE (2,796)
Tax payable FEAS I8 (49)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEE G (10,032)
Net assets identified Bi#plzEEFE 37,973

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB1,706,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those other receivables acquired amounted to
RMB1,706,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to
be collected amounted to nil.

RIS B E BRI 2 A FEZEARR
1,706,000t - N EE B Y X FE B 2 H
b FEURIR 2 86 K& #8iE AR 1,706,000
Lo NI R BB RRE 25 HORESR
BZRERFRE-

Goodwill arising on acquisition: W EE 2 mE:
RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration transferred BEER(E 50,000
Less: Net assets identified BB EESE (37,973
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EE 2 HE 12,027
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

43.

BB MEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of 1t 5 /&l &

—~EE+-ASt-ALEE
43. WEKMB AR, WE—

[ Bt /B
NE)ZEINEE ()

B8EZE-_FT—h15+=-BA=+—H
IEEE (®)
WEEIL ZEE Z 5 £ FHE

RMB’000

ARBTT

Cash consideration paid BENRERE 50,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent B BAZREe R EMEIER S

balances acquired (9,017)

40,983

Included in the profit for the year is approximately
RMB5,889,000 profit attributable to the additional business
generated by 1t 7 Bl/El. Revenue for the year includes
approximately RMB33,245,000 generated from 1t 5Bl /2.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, the
total amount of revenue of the Group for the year would have
been RMB430,172,000, and net profit for the year would
have been RMB80,255,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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FRE M BRI BB K 2 BSN E TS
E 2 #) N\ R ¥5,889,0007T 2 i A - F A
ZHEBREHLERBEEEZHARRK
33,245,0007T °

WEER=—E—RAF—A—HA%TK FR&E
BB A & AR 430,172,0007T * MERN
5 I B 5 A A R #580,255,0007T < £ &
BHEEFH A2 A MAVREREBRZUWER
—E-AF—A—HEXNERTAEER]
BERESHEERMARESE  TTIRERE
BB EFERTEA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of #f ;T &% 4

On 27 May 2015, the Group acquired 51% equity interest
in the registered capital of # /L&A 4, at a consideration of
RMB18,000,000 which was satisfied by cash. This acquisition
has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
RMB6,943,000. )T @4 is engaged in the provision of online
P2P platform service.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of #,T g4 because the cost
of the combination included a control premium. In addition,
the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefit to allow the Group to
leverage the P2P loan services in the PRC. These benefits are
not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

e B S AR Y

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

43. W BRI A R W — R B

AR ZHEIMER (@

B8zZ2"_F—hfF+°"RH=+—H
IEF & ()

Y58 T
MN-ZE—hERA-++H AEBURE
A R #18,000,0007T U BT @b 4 5 i A% -
BI51%AEHE - BERARE AR S - Wi
BRKREEAR ARBEEZAHEAEAR
#6,943,0007T ° AT T @At EHR 4L 4R _EP2P
F &R -

WM IRTEE 2BmEDRAHKRANS

EHIERE - UL BN EERE
B2 N5 B AT B A P2PE SRR 5 Fl 55 2 A6 A
T ZENEANT A BB B B ER
RGR 1 T  oK £ B S FERR o

ZEWBELE CBERRM A ERBEH
R ©

Consideration transferred HEEME
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash Bne 18,000

Minimal acquisition-related cost of the transaction is incurred
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and recognised in
administrative expenses.

REE_Z—HAF+_A=+—HLFER
RBEEDVHFWRIERBK AN ERTTHAX
Wﬁgﬁ/m
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43.

271

BB MEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of # ;L& 4 (Continued)
Consideration transferred (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

—~EE+-ASt-ALEE
43. WEKMB AR, WE—

[ Bt /B
NE)ZEINEE ()

8z2"_F—-1f+"H=+—H
134 )

WAL ()

BEEAE )

MU BB ASERERAENT -

RMB’000

AREF T

Plant and equipment ] 20
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT SR I8 B H th fE R IR 45,307
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEIEE 54
Accruals and other payables FEET B A & H b B 5108 (23,695)
Tax payable FEIFL IR (6)
Net assets identified @Bl EEFE (21,680)

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amount to RMB45,296,000. The gross contractual amounts of
those other receivables acquired amounted to RMB45,296,000
at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date
of the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to nil.

REERBHEMERRIECATEEAR
145,296,000 R R B ZFE K
BreHMERFRB BEHNSHREARRE
45,296,0007T © 7AW i B BATE 8RS AT Y=l 2
EHHeREZREGBT RS

Goodwill arising on acquisition: BB E A 2 e
RMB’000
AR T T
Consideration transferred BEER(E 18,000
Less: Net assets identified BBz EESE (21,680)
Add: 49% non-controlling interests In - 49%3F 12 e 2 10,623
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEE EHE 6,943
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Continued)

Acquisition of # ;L& 4 (Continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of # ;I & 4

e BRI

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

43. W BRI A R W — R B

NEZEEIMREZ (m)

B8z_F—hF+=H=+—H
IEFE (@)

WEHTHF (%)
WENIMEZES G FE

RMB’000

ARBT T

Cash consideration paid BENRERE 18,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent B BAZREe MRS EIER &8

balances acquired (54)

17,946

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date
were measured by reference to the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net liabilities.

Included in the profit for the year is approximately
RMB5,992,000 loss attributable to the additional business
generated by J#7)T @ 4. Revenue for the year includes
approximately RMB1,307,000 generated from #7/T @ 4.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015,
the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year would
have been RMB430,898,000 and net profit for the year would
have been RMB98,169,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

FFEERR 2
RUEE B HIER 2 IRt s T 2 & JRIE IR

SN T 2 AR B EFBEATE 2L
WJ n‘l—i

F R F B IEIT g A7 2K 2 REINETG AT EE
H 7 #H AN R #5,092 00070 2 518 » F IR 2 Uk
SR EFE BT B E A 2 # AR 1,307,000

ﬁo

WKBR —_Z—AF—A—B%K FRE
E U A& A A RE430,898,0007T © MER
Fom F Bl 45 A A R #598,169,0007T « B & &
FHEESRBA 2 A WIERRERRZWEN =
T-RAF-—A—BERNBATASEE
BRESHKEEWMARES TTREAER
H#&EERTER -
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e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ 43. WEEMI B~ B, W EE — M B

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Acquisition of _L %2 T

On 6 May 2014, the Group acquired 80% equity interest in
the registered capital of _£/88% 277, at a consideration of
RMB5,000,000 which was satisfied by cash. This acquisition
has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
RMB5,394,000. /5382217 is engaged in the development
and operation of automobile financing products.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of i&%% 2 7T because
the cost of the combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit to allow the Group
to leverage the automobile financing products and services in
the PRC. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.
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Bz_F—NFE+="H=+—H
IEEE

WEFGEZEZIT
R-ZZE—NERANE REBURBAR
#5,000,0007T Y B8 £)8 82 2 1T M AR AN A
80%MHE  ENRENUNBES T WEE
BWEEAR AWBELEZEBEAARE
5,394,0007T ° /B8R 21T B REE R
B EEMR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & ZE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Continued)

43. WEEHM B 2 R —

e BRI

—FHE+-A=+-HLEE
= M B
NEZEEIMREE (@)

BE_F—NFE+"HA=+—H
IEEE (@)

Acaquisition of _L /5 %£ 2 {T (Continued) W EBEZIT (&
Consideration transferred EEAE
RMB’000
AREF T
Cash BHe 5,000

No acquisition-related cost of the transaction is incurred during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

RBE-_T-—OFt+t-_A=1T—HLEFER
RHMEEEWERBERA -

REEERBAEERERAGMT

RMB’000

ARBTT

Plant and equipment BB & 5% A 691
Intangible assets mREE 475
Prepayments and other receivables T8 AT BR R B EL i JE WK 6,344

Amount due from non-controlling JE W S 2 R AR 3R R IR

shareholders 1,250
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEEE 5,103
Accruals and other payables FEST B A B H fth B 5 5RIR (14,356)
Net liabilities identified @bl aEFE (493)

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amount to RMB5,992,000. The gross contractual amounts of
those other receivables acquired amounted to RMB5,992,000
at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date
of the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to nil.

RIS B S e BUGR A 2 A FHEEARE
5,992,000 - R FE A - 2 FE B 2 &
MR 2 A K8 E AR %5,992,000
T MRS B BRI AT E 2 SRS R
EZREBFAT-

Goodwill arising on acquisition: W EE 2 s
RMB’000
ARBET T
Consideration transferred BEEA(E 5,000
Add: Net liabilities identified m:-B#EszaEH5 493
Less: 20% non-controlling interests R 20% FE 1R A HE 2 (99)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EE 2 HE 5,394
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ 43. WEEMI B~ B, W EE — M B

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Continued)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of _L;/G#£2Z T

AR ZHEIMER (@

Bz_F—NFE+="H=+—H
IEEE (@)
W FGHEZITZHE TN FH

RMB’000
ARBTT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (5,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalent B BAZREe R EMEIER S
balances acquired 5,103
103

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date
were measured by reference to the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net liabilities.

Included in the profit for the year is approximately
RMB10,472,000 loss attributable to the additional business
generated by /88 2 77. Revenue for the year includes
approximately RMB8,115,000 generated from /&8 2 77.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2014, the
total amount of revenue of the Group for the year would have
been RMB375,141,000, and net profit for the year would
have been RMB59,505,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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FREMNEE LGB ZITERZBEINER
FrEE 4 2 #) A R #10,472,0007T 2 E518 °
N2 WmBER BB ITEEZHARE
8,115,0007T °

W ER =T —NF—A—HTK  FRE
BB AR5 ARES75,141,0007T * MERN
Fom F Bl 45 A& A R #659,505,0007T © £ &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Continued)

Acquisition of additional interest in Leading
Finance Services Holdings Limited (“Leading
Finance”)

On 20 February 2014, Leading Finance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Silver Faith Holdings Limited (“Silver Faith”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, allotted
additional shares to two independent third parties and the
Group’s interests in Leading Finance was diluted.

In March 2014 and October 2014, the Group entered into
various agreements to effectively acquire additional interests in
Leading Finance in steps. By completion of such transactions,
the Group effectively holds 100% equity interest in aggregate in
Leading Finance.

The above transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions and resulted in capital injection from non-
controlling interests amounted to approximately RMB6,968,000
and consideration paid by the Group for additional interests in
Leading Finance of approximately RMB6,968,000.

e B S AR Y

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

43. W BRI A R W — R B

AR ZHEIMER (@

Bz F—NFE+="H=+—H
IEEE (@)

Y fELeading Finance Services
Holdings Limited ([ Leading
Finance |) Z 85/ & 7
R_E—NFE-_A-+H - ARAMEEE
MEBARREERERAR ([RE]) 22
&t B A FlLeading FinancelA] M & 87 56 =
77 Bl 38 FEHNR (9 K2 7N 5= B 7 Leading Finance
L o

RZZE—MOF=AR=_FT—WOF+AH K&
luT_Lytﬂ ek LAK ?*F* mﬂﬁlﬁ%b’/‘Leadmg
FinanceZ BIME# - RTEHZER 51 K
EEEB S 455 Leading FinanceZ 100%
AR AE

Ll 5 ANBRIVERR AR RZ 5 KRB BUEE R 4
T B E N A R 16,968,0007T & B A & E
LA Leading Finance 2 B8AMEz= 2 B 49
A R #6,968,0007T °
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BB MEE

n‘/j_\
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE
44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 44. HEMW B A 7
For the year ended 31 December 2015 8z"F—aF+=-HA=+—H
I E
On 3 June 2015, the Group entered into a sales agreement RZE—RFENA=ZH AEEFTLHEE
to dispose of its 66.25% equity interest in /&% ~ 1T, WE RMBUF=FEHEERLEEEZ
to an independent third party for a total consideration of T266.25%BR A BREAARK
RMB44,000,000. 44,000,0007T °
The aggregate net assets of the subsidiary disposed of at the ZELEMBRARNEERRA EEFER
date of disposal were as follows: B
RMB’000
AREF T
Plant and equipment ] 1,514
Intangible assets BmREE 475
Loan receivables e E =K 24,800
Trade receivables = A 401
Prepayment and other receivables TEAS 3008 & H Ath B W SR8 7,855
Amount due from a related company & U — fE B E R 7] 5KI8 175
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 9,298
Accruals and other payables FEET B A & H b B < 5108 (3,380)
Amounts due to related companies FE{ST R R R FIA (18,909)
Borrowing B (24,000)
Income tax payables FETER 1S #R (159)
Net liabilities disposed of HESEFEAE (1,930)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBMBAR Z K&
Consideration received and receivable & & FE WA B 44,000
Net liabilities disposed of HE &8 ERE 1,930
Goodwill EES (5,394)
Fair value of interest retained RAHHEREREER 2 AFE
in available-for-sale investment 1,941
Non-controlling interests FE12 e e 2 (386)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary kel S [ EE NG gy 42,091
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZHERHEHE
Cash consideration received BUYIRESR(E 44,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of ~ HERITAHR LIRS (9,2998)
34,702
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

On 29 May 2014, the Group entered into a sales agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in three inactive
subsidiaries, to an independent third party for a total
consideration of US$1 (equivalent to approximately RMB6).
The subsidiaries disposed of were Sun Champion Limited,
Champion Day Holdings Limited and Ever Crescent Limited.

The aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of at the
date of disposal were as follows:

= 7t 7% R 7= M 5

—AF+ZA=+—-HLFE

44. HEM B Al (@)

B#Ez_F—ME+_A=+—H
ITag: ;3

RZZE—MOFRAA T NAAE RNEBFTZH
EmE MBYFEF =T HEE =ML EXE
ZHBRE 2 2E AR BRERIET
(HERHARKET) ZEEHEMBR
7] A&Sun Champion Limited * Champion Day
Holdings Limited 5z Ever Crescent Limited °

ZECHEMBARNEERMZEEFE
BEmT

RMB’000

ARBFT

Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 7

Other payables H b & < 50E (71)

Net liabilities disposed of e 8 RFE 64)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR ZWzE 64

Total cash consideration HeRERTE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEE RS ML FE

Cash consideration received BWRERE =

Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEBRAS (7)

7

The subsidiaries disposed of had no significant impact on the
results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

On 26 October 2014, the Group accepted an offer letter dated
24 October 2014 to dispose of all of its 60.3% equity interest
in China Runking to an independent third party, for a total
consideration of HK$192,698,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB152,675,000). There are total 15 subsidiaries held by
China Runking directly or indirectly. The disposal transaction
was completed on 18 December 2014.

HEMBARUAREHE _T—HNF+—

A=t BLFEZRERRERELES
£,

=

&

St
& |

iy

R_Z—NF+A=-+"B A5EEEEH
Hﬁ?%_;fm¢+ﬂ +mB 2z B4R
MBYE=FHEERFTEBEL60.3%2E
B - 48R (B 5192,698,00078 7T (RS R4
A E#152,675,0007T ) © F1 Bl 5 A # 5k H
EEHBEB1SEMB AR -HERXZERZ
T-MOFE+—A+NBEK-
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e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  44. H €Mt B 2 7 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 gz"_F—NE+=-/A=+—H
(Continued) It E ()
The aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of at the ERHENBATRNEERRZEEEHE
date of disposal were as follows: Fet-h N
RMB’000

ARET T
Plant and equipment iR 5= K 5% 1 7,796
Loan receivables FE W E K 214,257
Prepayment and other receivables TR BIE N H e W RIE 9,081
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 93,269
Accruals and other payables J?'éf\?r%ﬁﬁ Ko E th A< SRR (34,640)
Receipt in advance FEU KT (1,470)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FERS 3ET Hxﬂx% KIE (©)
Borrowing BE (19,756)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreement REDBERRLEZE/MERE (20,781)
Income tax payables B FTERE (3,6898)
Deferred tax liabilities REMIBE G (470)
Net asset disposed of HEEEFE 243,595
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H M 8 2 Al 2 W
Consideration received and receivable B R R AE 152,675
Net assets disposed of HEEEFHE (243,595)

Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net B KB AR 2 & EFERE K EHE
assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from equity to ~ A RIIEFIEM B EREFHES

profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiaries BmZ BFflER =5 217
Non-controlling interests FEE i 96,707
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHNB ARz Wz 6,004
Consideration received and receivable 2R R ERKE
Cash received BUGE & 79,230
Deferred cash consideration FEERSRE (G AEMEWFIE)

(included in other receivable) (note 27) (Ff=E27) 73,445
Total cash consideration @I RE 152,675
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEEZRAERUFHR 79,230
Cash consideration received BWIRESKE (93,269)
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEBRAS (14,039)
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e MR RAR A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45. AEBEALT R

In addition to those related party information disclosed RAEEFEA - BRERE B 5 HR R B A t’\ETBZ
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BoZEREALTERIN ERBEA
following is a summary significant related parties transactions: SBMEWT
(a) Significant transactions with related (a) HEABATETZEXRS
parties
2015 2014
e —E—YEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR®F T ARBTTT
Rental expenses paid to BENHSRAX ()
LERBRERRER AT LERBREER
(“‘LgiRm") BRAHA
(T EBHRH]) - 345
It REEEmBRGEERA A b R % K i 7% AR 75 (ii)
BRAQF] - 2,453
s CORY) BNz BE ORY) B (ii)
BRAA ZHEAERAA 337 319
China UCF Group Co. Limited ~ A B/ $8 % @l E (ii)
(“China UCF Group”) BRAE ([
FETRER]) 4,545 831
Interest expenses paid to B ERZ (i)
First Pay Limited F—XNBERRQE - 214
Consultancy fee paid to BRI LR ESE (ii)
RYEREXTRER TRERER
BRAH REZEME 997 =
Notes: B o
() Mr. Shi Zhi Jun, a former director of the Company up to ) ARANEFR(EE_FT-HF=A
17 March 2014, has beneficial interests in 58245, TEBIE) AEELEEHES LFRS

ot g ar
K E = m

(i)  These companies are owned by Mr. Zhang Zhenxin, a (i) ZEAFAARFEZRIRKRE
substantial shareholder of the Company. A -

(i) First Pay Limited is one of the substantial shareholders of (i) SB—XNERRAF/ARFTEZRE
the Company. 2o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZZE—HF+-B=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45. FEANLT X 5 (@)

(Continued)

(@) Significant transactions with related (a) HEAEATEITZEXRS
parties (Continued) (4)
Notes: (Continued) Btak: (48)
(v)  The above transactions were conducted with terms vy EARSGIIRIEFIEZRRIZS LR
mutually agreed with the contracting parties pursuant to 77 BB E 2 EFREST

signed agreements.

(b) Significant balances with related (b) HEAEATZEXE SR
parties

2015 2014

—E—%F —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Name of related companies HENRZE AR#T T ARET T

Vast Well International Limited EEBIRE AR AR 189,494 186,311
FEEMAXREEREBLE /i%ﬂ%ﬂ%&ﬁ BEELE

(BEREE) (“LEEm) (BR&%) ([LE&R]) 8,038 -
It REEEBIREERA A I REEEBIRGE R A A - 254
IFRRFHEREEEERAE ARRERFIBHEREEEFRAR

(IEREFHEA) ([HEREFEEE]) - 90
EREFHEE IERRAEE — (12,184)
ERRABERBER AR jﬁ%mﬁé\ﬂ&*ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ - 92
BEERBCETEZAGRAT EEFBELETELANARA (99,580) (108,580)
i&%i&ﬁﬂﬁi%&ﬁ%ﬁA%mi i?ﬁi&iw&%&é%ﬁo%ﬁ%

(ERER) (ERER) (79,442) (79,545)
EBER EEER (18,010) =
LEREBEREZHERA LEREBEREZHRNBRA (2,000) —
China UCF Group PR RS B (395) (831)
RNEGLBRBAREZRABRAR KNELBBESRELA

B /NG BRAFILRSRAF] - (6,725)
FINEEREXERMERBRAR FILBREXCRER

3 o/NE | BRARIE RS AE (331) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45. FEANLTR 5 (&

(Continued)

Key management personnel remuneration FEEBEAGHNME
Key management personnel represents directors of the FEEBABEARAESEEBRARAES
Company and five highest paid individuals other than directors IZRANERFAL FEEEAR (ER
of the Company. The remuneration of the key management BARRABES) 2HMMT :

personnel which comprises the directors of the Company only
was as follows:

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
i —ZE-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARET T
Short-term benefit 72 BAE A 8,836 12,453
Post-employment benefits BBz 27 195 89
Share-based payment expenses AR m Sz 6,381 2,178
15,412 14,720
The remuneration of directors of the Company and key ARARIEEREEZITHAE ZE &
executives is determined by the remuneration committee ZESRBERARREMSBEERE -
having regard to the performance of individual and market
trends.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZZ—HF+-B=+—HILEFE

46. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Convertible
Bond is settled through an issue of the 2015 Convertible Bond.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
purchased office equipments of approximately RMB2,217,000
under finance leases as disclosed in note 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the capital injection
of RMB4,000,000 to /&%~ 1T from non-controlling interests
was settled through current accounts with them.

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of
the Company on 4 November 2010, the Company has
adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Scheme”) whereby three executive directors of the Group
were granted the rights to subscribe for shares of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO
Scheme is 64,000,000 shares which were granted on 4
November 2010 with subscription price of HK$0.3125
per share.

The options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme have
vesting period ranging from six to eighteen months
commencing from 4 November 2010, being the grant
date of the options and the options are exercisable
for a period of 5 years. The Company has no legal or
contractual obligation to repurchase or settle the options
in cash.

No options under the Pre-IPO Scheme were outstanding
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &HZE —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B #EFHE ()

(b) Share Option Scheme (b) EE Bz #E 5t &

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written
resolution of the shareholders on 4 November 2010. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years, commencing on 19 November 2010.

The maximum number of shares that may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options which then has been
granted and have yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. Unless approved
by the shareholders, no option shall be granted to any
person which if exercised in full would result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options already granted or to be granted to
such person (including exercised and outstanding share
options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such new
grant.

Share options granted to the directors of the Company,
chief executive or substantial shareholders or any of
their respective associates is subject to the approval
of the Independent Non Executive Directors (“INEDs”).
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an INED or any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, is subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company in a general meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=

BRI

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determined by
the Board, but shall not be less than whichever is the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer, and (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s share.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within a period
as specified in the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The Board
may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restrictions
before the option can be exercised.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant.
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

niﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

B R WAk MR

—AF+ZA=+t—-HLFE

47. B H#EFHE ()
(b) EBRHEE (@)

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
BHAH BEH fTEHs fTiEfE
Before After
adjustment adjustment
KA RAEE
(Note)
(B3
4 April 2011 4 April 2011 to 4 January 2012 to HK$1.206 HK$1.005
3 January 2012 3 April 2016
—Z——FMAMmA —T——4FMAMNAZE “Z-—5—-AWNAZE 1,206 7T 1.005% 7T
—Z-——f—-HR=H —Z-R"F¥MA=H
27 September 2011 27 September 2011 to 27 March 2012 to HK$0.567 HK$0.4725
26 March 2012 26 September 2016
“E2——FAAZtLH “ZT——FhAZTtRZE “Z-—f=A=ttRA%E 0.56778 7T 0.4725% 7T
—E——F=R=15H “E-RFNAZTAH
N/A 27 September 2012 to HK$0.567 HK$0.4725
26 September 2016
TEA Sy By o o = 0.56778 7T 0.4725% T
“E-RFNAZTAH
12 July 2013 12 July 2013 to 12 April 2014 to N/A HK$0.74
11 April 2014 11 July 2018
“Z-=ftA+=H “T-=ft+tA+t=RH%E “Z-MFMA+=AZE @A 0.74% T
“Z-NEMA+—A —Z-)\FtA+—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B H#EFHE ()

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) EBRHEE (@)

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
FHAH BEH T8 TEE
Before After
adjustment adjustment
(Note)
(Bt7E)
11 December 2014 11 December 2014 to 11 December 2015 to N/A HK$1.814
10 December 2015 10 December 2024
“T-ME¥+=A+—H “Z-MF¥+-At+—-HZ Z-hE+-A+-HZ NER 18147 T
ZE-RE+ZA+H _;_@$+ A+H
11 December 2014 to 11 December 2016 to N/A HK$1.814
10 December 2016 10 December 2024
“Z-MF¥+-At+—-HZ Z-R"ET-At-BZ NER 18147 T
—Z-RE+ZATH _7_@$+ At+AH
11 December 2014 to 11 December 2017 to N/A HK$1.814
10 December 2017 10 December 2024
“Z-MF¥+-At+—-HZ Z—+E+-A+-HBZ NER 18147 T
“Z—tE+ZA+H _7_@$+ At+AH
11 December 2014 to 11 December 2018 to N/A HK$1.814
10 December 2018 10 December 2024
“Z-mF+-A+-HZ Z-\F+=ZA+—-HE NER 1.814% 7T
—Z-\E+ZA+H _;_@$+ At+AH
8 June 2015 8 June 2015 to 8 June 2016 to N/A HK$2.13
7 June 2016 7 June 2025
—ZT-RF¥A~ANR “T-AE~ANAE “E-"¥~ANBZE NER 213%7T
T—"FALtH —T-REARRAtA
8 June 2015 to 8 June 2017 to N/A HK$2.13
7 June 2017 7 June 2025
“ZT-R¥AANBZE “T—+tERANRE NER 213%7T
e N R =] “Z-REARARtR
8 June 2015 to 8 June 2018 to N/A HK$2.13
7 June 2018 7 June 2025
“ZT-R¥AANBZE “T-\EXANRE NER 213%7T
—Z-N\EXARtA “Z-REARARtR
8 June 2015 to 8 June 2019 to N/A HK$2.13
7 June 2019 7 June 2025
“ZT-R¥AANBZE “T-NERANRE NER 213%7T
“Z-NERRtR “Z-REARARtR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &ZE —BF+-A=+—HLEFE
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. BT E (@)
(b) BEESSE (@)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
FHAH BEY fTEH8 fTiEE
Before After
adjustment adjustment
KRR RRBE
(Note)
(Bt7E)
11 December 2015 11 December 2015 to 11 December 2016 to N/A HK$3.37
10 December 2016 10 December 2025
“Z-RE+-At+-A Z-RET-A+—HZE “Z-RE+ZA+-RZE NER 3.37TATT
—Z-RE+ZATH “Z-RE+ZATHE
11 December 2015 to 11 December 2017 to N/A HK$3.37
10 December 2017 10 December 2025
—Z-AF+-A+-RE Z—+E+-A+-HZ NER 3.37TATT
—Z—tE+ZA+H ,7,£¢+ At+A
11 December 2015 to 11 December 2018 to N/A HK$3.37
10 December 2018 10 December 2025
—Z-AF+-A+-RE Z-\E+-A+-HBZ NER 3.37TATT
—Z-\E+ZA+H ,7,£¢+ At+A
Note: liFsa

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in case of rights or bonus issue or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital. Following the bonus issue which
completed on 30 May 2012, the exercise price and the number
of the share options outstanding were adjusted accordingly.

#’o

ﬁﬁﬁxtgszt 7] ?Jt HXYZIHX%TTYZK
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

—AFE+=ZA=+—HLFE

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by employees (including

Directors) and business associates during the year:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

47. B #EFHE ()
(b) Bz & (&)

TREBERFAEES (BREF) X
BRHMFAEZARRBERE 228

BE_F—HE+_"_HA=+—HLEE

Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised asat
as at during during during during 31 December
1 January 2015 the year the year the year the year 2015
7 %- ﬁﬁ
ZE-If +ZA
—f—H Sqr=[
Date of Grant FHAM R ITHE REREZH RERXH REREH RERTTE ERITHE
Directors and employees EERES
4 April 2011 —Z——FEAMNA 36,000 - (36,000) - - -
12 July 2013 “Z-=EtA{+H 14,954,000 - (464,000) - (14,490,000) -
Directors E=
11 December 2014 “E-mE+-A+-A 23,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 22,000,000
11 December 2015 “Z-RF+-fA+-H - 20,920,000 - - - 20,920,000
Employees &8
11 December 2014 “Z-MET-A+—H 39,300,000 - (6,600,000) - - 32,700,000
8 June 2015 —Z-1§5~ANR - 36,550,000 (2,500,000) - - 34,050,000
11 December 2015 “Z-RF+-fA+-H - 18,000,000 - - - 18,000,000
Consultant 45
11 December 2014 “Z-MET-A+—H 131,500,000 - - - - 131,500,000
11 December 2015 “Z-RE+-A+-A - 54,000,000 - - - 54,000,000
208,790,000 129,470,000 (10,600,000) - (14,490,000) 313,170,000
Exercisable at the end of year ~ RERA T 46,550,000
Weighted average METHTREE
exercise price HK$1.7369i8 T HK$3.0199% 7T HK$1.8379i% T - HK$0.74%E7T  HKS231ET
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B #EFHE (a)
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) EBRHEE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZ—NF+_A=1+—"HIEFE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised asat
1 January during during during during 31 December
2014 the year the year the year the year 2014
i T
—Z-mEF T=A
~F—H =+-A
Date of Grant R B WATE REARE RERRR RERSE RERTE W AT
Directors and employees EER{EE
4 April 2011 —T——FMAMA 4,284,000 - (288,000) - (3,960,000 36,000
12 July 2013 “Z-=F+A+ZH 35,420,000 - (710,000) - (19,756,000) 14,954,000
Directors S
11 December 2014 —E-WE+-A+—H - 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
Employees #8
11 December 2014 —E-WUE+-A+—H - 39,300,000 = = - 39,300,000
Consultant R
11 December 2014 “T-mE+=ZA+—H - 131,500,000 - - - 131,500,000
Business associates ESitt
4 April 2011 “Z——FmAEA 39,840,000 - - - (39,840,000) -
27 September 2011 “Z——ENA-F++H 14,000,000 - - ~ (14,000,000) -
93,544,000 193,800,000 (998,000 - (77,556,000) 208,790,000
Exercisable at the end of year RERA1TE 14,990,000
Weighted average MEFHTERE
exercise price HK$0.8250 7L  HK$1.8140/8 7 HK$1.00507% T - HK$0.8414/ 7T HK$1.7369% 7T
129,470,000 share options were granted during the year REBEZEZT—HAF+_A=+—HIE
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 193,800,000). FEAK ﬁ129 470,000 fE Rz 7 (=

T —[U4F : 193,800,00017 ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=

BRI EE

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

RO

The fair values of share options granted were calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

—HE+ZA=t—HItEE
47. BB HESTE| (@)
(b) %H?UIE%EIJ (&)

REBE-ZE-—RAFR-ZT—NF+=
)EJ:+—EIJJ:¢EW EREEREZ
NFHEDLERBEHIR - FRELHETE
BEAAE -BAZEA ZBIENT

Inputs into the model BN ZE 2R
11 December 2014 8 June 2015 11 December 2015
—E-mE ZE-4f ZE-4f
+ZHR+—-H ~B/I\H +ZRA+-H
Exercise price 11608 HK$1.81478 T HK$2.137& 1T HK$3.37/# 1T
Expected volatility BHRE 41.71%-42.35% 44.56%-49.47% 48.48%-50.96%
Expected life TRER A 2-5 years‘E 2-5 years‘E 2-4 years
Expected dividend yield R B K 0.676% 0.219% 0.287%
Risk-free rate e e g P 0.43%-1.237% 0.479%-1.314% 0.404%-0.895%

Expected volatility of the options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme was determined by using the historical volatility
of the share price of comparable companies and the
Company respectively. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately RMB43,999,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB4,790,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 &ZE —BF+-A=+—HLEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. EEA KR NB ZHBERAEKTZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #l
OF THE COMPANY

RBERMRARB 2 BN RIAT -

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 December

m+=ZA=+—8H
2015 2014
—_E—4fF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Non-current asset EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE - =
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables ~ FE{TBR 7 &
H 8 W kIR 521 10,228
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B BB A 7] ?A’IE 2,384,963 1,008,527
Amounts due from joint ventures JEUR & &1 ¥R 8,629 33
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRE 83,396 83,576
2,477,509 1,102,364
Current liabilities nEBaR
Accruals fEET & A 6,313 2,883
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NG E ] 105,306 62,292
Amount due to a related company e —E
EF NGBz 395 =
Corporate bonds UNEIL=E 173,719 =
285,733 65,175
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,191,776 1,037,189
Total assets less current liabilities #2 % & ik 8 & & 2,191,776 1,037,189
Non-current liability EREBEE
Corporate bonds NEfESH 60,044 203,818
Convertible bond AR B 5 234,098 =
294,142 203,818
Net assets EEFE 1,897,634 833,371
Capital and reserves BRRHE
Share Capital [N 321,642 267,736
Reserves {1 1,575,992 565,635
Total equity WE AR R 1,897,634 833,371
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFEE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BN R ZHFRAFZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # o)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@) RMIBARZE
As at 31 December
R+-_RA=+—H
2015 2014
—g-5f —T-mF
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRE - AR RMB55 RMB55
AR #5575 AR BE5TT
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company R-ZF-AFR-_F-—WMF+_-A
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: :+_ SRRV ﬂTWﬁZIKWE ALl
ZEEWT
Issued and
Place and date of fully paid
incorporation/ Class of share capital/ Proportion ownership
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations  shares held registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
BEITR
AWML/ B/ HRBA/
WBAREH EXWERAS Fir 5 R 3 8 5 FMER ANABENAEEERILY TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# GFE:
2015 2014 2015 2014

Z%-1f “T-MmEF Z%-1f “ET-QF

Ever Step BVI Ordinary shares USD1/USD50,000 100% 100% N/A N/A Investment holding
7 December 2009

KB EBRAHE LR 1%7T,/50,000% T TER TER  RARK
ZETAFTZALH

Media Eagle Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKD100/HKD100 60% 60% N/A N/A" Investment holding

(‘Media Eagle”) 26 September 2012

AHRERRAR ([85)) &k gl 1007%7T,/10078 7 TER TER  RERK
“Z-ZFAAZTAE

High Elite Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKD3,000,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Financial consultancy

(*High Elite”) 23 February 2011 HKD3,000,000 services

ERERERAR ([FH]) &k LR 30000008/  FEA TER HBHARS
—Z—%-fA-+=H 3,000,000 7T

Vigo Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKD1/HKD10,000 N/A N/A 100% 100%  Money lending
2 September 2008 business

Es &k TR 1ETT/10000AT  FER TER HEX%
—“ZZ\$NAZH

Jovial Lead Limited (“Jovial Lead”) BVI Ordinary shares USD1/USD50,000 N/A N/A 100% 100%  Investment holding
10 June 2011

fFERAR ([aF]) EBRAHE LR 1EL/500005T  FEE TER RAER
ZZ——55A1H
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. EEA KR NB ZHBERAEKTZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £ ca)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

t’:‘MtJ%/AE? Ztﬁ’é (48)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company RZE—RAFRZFT—WMF+=A
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: E-t—— = N/N ﬂhﬁZIxﬁﬁ% /NI
(Continued) ZHBWT: (&)
Issued and
Place and date of fully paid
incorporation/ Class of share capital/ Proportion ownership
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations  shares held registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
2ETR
ML/ B/ BB/
WEAREE EEMERAY Fris iR 5 A& KRB ENAFEERLY TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B# GE3
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZF-1% “Z-MF ZF-1f “TF
China Runking (Note (i) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKD234,000,000/ N/A N/A Nil Nil Investment holding
3 June 2011 HKD234,000,000 (Note (iv))
FEES (HEW) i EAR 234,000,000% 7,/ TER Sl £ T REBR
—Z——%xA=H 234,000,000/ T GED))
BIRMERER (H§)BRAR The PRC Registered capital USD3,600,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Financial consultancy
(Note (i) 5 May 1998 USD3,600,000 services and
entrusted loans
business
RISMEER (L) ERAR HE HER 3,600,000% 75,/ TER TR B A RS &
(GBI —“AN\ERERRR 3,600,000% 7T ZRAERER
L5 3R3(Notes () & i) The PRC Registered capital RMB40,000,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Pawn loans busingss
11 June 2003 RMB40,000,000
LR (M Ra)) H MR AR #40,000,0007,/ TER Sl HEEEREH
ZER=ERAT-H AR %40,000,0007
RECEERHEN (ER) The PRC Registered capital USD500,000/ N/A N/A Nil Nl Financial consultancy
BRAR (EBRE) 6 December 2011 USD500,000 (Note ()  services
(Note (i)
RECEERHN (ER) P MR 500,005,/ TER Sl 3 2 BBAARE
BRAR ((EERE]) —T——%+-ARA 500,000% 7T GED))
( Mtt}‘(ii))
EEMMIHEEE EER The PRC Registered capital USD30,000,000/ N/A N/A Nil Nl Secured financing
BERAR (‘2EHE) Note (i) 18 October 2011 1USD30,000,000 (Note (v)  services and
microfinance
services
BEMMINERREER P MR 30,000,000% 7,/ TER TR 3 T HERRE
ARAR ([EEBR]) ZE——E+A1N\H 30,000,000% 7% (HzEw)  BRERIE
( Mtt}‘(ii)) HERB
RERERNA (L8 BRAR The PRC Registered capital RMB2,300,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Financial consultancy
(Note (i) 15 September 2011 RMB2,300,000 services
RERERA (LE)ERAR B AR AR#2,300,00078,/ TER TEA SRS
(BirsEG) “E——FNAt+AHA AR 2,300,000
FERERN (L8 BRAR The PRC Registered capital RMB2,300,000/ N/A N/A 70% 70%  Financial consultancy
(“E/8 5E") (Note (i) 19 July 2011 RMB2,300,000 services
=ERERH (LG ERAR HE Hf AR AR#2,300,0007,/ TER TR B A RS
(TLBZE]) (Ba) “Z——5+ATNA AR 2,300,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFEE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BN R ZHFRAFZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £l
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@ ® WE PRIZ] fé (&)
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company RZE—RAFRZZFT—WMF+=A
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: E‘i—— = N/N ﬂhﬁZIxM\TEA Gl
(Continued) ZHBWT: (&)
Issued and
Place and date of fully paid
incorporation/ Class of share capital/ Proportion ownership
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations  shares held registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
2ETR
ML/ B/ HRBA/
WEAR &R EENERAS A5 2 41 2 AMER KARHANRFEEDILY TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE R

2015 2014 2015 2014
Z5-1f “E-MF Z%-1f “EF

HEREEBEAERAR The PRC Registered capital RMB258,500,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Investment property
(Note (i) 15 November 2012 RMB300,000,000 holding
LEREBBHAERAA PE HMER AR #258,500,00070/ TER TR REMERE
(FzEG)) “E-—£+-AtEH AR 300,000,000
AEEHEA (L8 BRAR The PRC Registered capital RMB500,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Financial consultancy
(Note (i) 10 November 2011 RMB500,000 services
AEEK®A (L8 ERAR i HFER AR#500,0007,/ TER TR SR
(FEE) —S——%1+-A+A AR H500,0007
HEREEBEAERAR The PRC Registered capital RMBG60,000,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Entrusted loan
(Note (i) 19 November 2012 RMB60,000,000 financing services
HERGEBANERAR B HMER AR 60,000,007,/ TER TER ZREARERB
(HzEG)) ZE-—E+-AtNH AR 60,000,007
LARERBBAERAR The PRC Registered capital RMB500,000/ N/A N/A 70% 70%  Financial consultancy
(EBEE) (Notefi) 15 November 2012 RMB500,000 services
BRERREABRARA i HFER AR#500,0007,/ TER TR SR
(TLE%ER]) (Kim) —S--ft+-At3EA AR H500,0007C
UCF Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKD10,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Investment holding
23 December 2011 HKD10,000
b i Ep il 10,000% 7,/ TER TER REER
“Z——54+-fA=1+=H 10,0007
AR (Note (i) The PRC Registered capital RMB40,000,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Microfinance
20 October 2010 RMB40,000,000 services
B 3E3HGE)) i HFER AR%40,000,0007T,/ TER TR NEEF R
“Z-TF+AZTA AR #%40,000,0007
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. EEA KR NB ZHBERAEKTZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £ ca)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Q)KWEQEZﬁéﬁ)
—RER-E—NE+=A

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company n=

as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

E‘t'—EI /N ﬂhﬁZIxﬁﬁ%A A

(Continued) ZHBMT: (&)
Issued and
Place and date of fully paid
incorporation/ Class of share capital/ Proportion ownership
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations  shares held registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
2ETR
ML/ B/ HRBA/
WEAR &R EENERAS A5 2 41 2 AMER KARHANRFEEDILY TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE R
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z%-31f —T-MEF Z%-1f —B-MF
AEABERREARNERAA The PRC Registered capital RMB630,120/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Note (i) 1 August 2012 RMB630,120
ABAEERREZABRAA i HMER AR®630,120/  FHERA TER REER
(GE) “Z-—%)\f-H AR630,1207
F82 1 (Notes (i) & (ii) The PRC Registered capital RMB10,000,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Investment holding
12 July 2007 RMB10,000,000
FEXH (R i HFER AR¥10000000/  FEA TR RERR
—“3Z+5tA+ZA AR 10,000,007
HEEREBEAERAANote () ThePRC Registered capital RMB100,000/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  Financial consuitancy
26 November 2012 RMB100,000 services
HEERRBEABRAR (H:)) +E HMER ARE100000/  FER TEA B AR
ZE-—E+-A-tKH AR 100,000
888217 (Note () & (v) The PRC Registered capital RMB17,250,000/ N/A N/A 1% 80%  P2P loan service
29 November 2013 RMB17,250,000
LRz (HEORY) i AR AR¥A7250000m/  FEA TER PoPE R
ZZ-=F+-AZtAR ARE¥47,250,007
REEEEESHITRE The PRC Registered capital RMB9,922,500/ N/A N/A 100% 100%  P2P loan service
BR A (Notefi) 14 March 2014 RMB12,500,000
REREE BRI R tﬂ AR ARH9.92500,/  FEM TR P2PE R
ABRAR (k) “Z-ME=A WA AR 12,500,000
HIBERELABRAR The PRC Registered capital RMB10,000,000/ N/A N/A 51% 51%  Financial consultancy
(TR E) (Note ) 24 Qctober 2014 RMB10,000,000 services
HIBEREEAERAT i AR AR¥10000000,/  FEA TER B ARS
(THIEE]) (k) “E-META=TMA AB#10,000,0007
It [BE (Notes () & (i) The PRC Registered capital RMBS50,000,000/ N/A N/A 100% N/A P2P loan service
23 May 2012 RMB50,000,000
SRR (KR i) # FMEAR AR%50,000,0007,/ THEB TEA TEfE  PPENRE
ZE-ZFRA-T=AH AR 50,000,007
T8R4 (Note () The PRC Registered capital RMB21,000,000/ N/A N/A 51% N/A 2P loan service
4 June 2013 RMB21,000,000
AR (HzE() i AR AR 21,000,007,/ &R TER TER  PPEFMRH
—2-=%,AmA AR 21,000,007
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFEE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic
companies.

(ii) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly
foreign-owned enterprises.

(iii) No equity interests were held by the Company. The
Company has control over the subsidiaries through the
structured contracts.

(iv)  During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
disposed of its entire equity interests in China Runking
and its subsidiaries and the interests in those subsidiaries
were reduced from 60% to nil.

(V) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
disposed of its 66.25% equity interest in /&%~ 77 and
the remaining interests in _£/88% 217 was reclassified as
available-for-sale investments.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
subsidiaries of the Company listed in the above table
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result in
particular of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities issued

subsisting at the end of both years or any time during
both years.
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48. ERAABRRAZHMBRARZE

(a) RMB AR ZKRE (@)

B i :

) HEEBHARPERIHNER
ale

) HEERSARFERINNEEL
o¥-

(i) ARBWESHRRAER $‘T}£
BEBESOERIER

vy RBE-Z-HWF+-_A=+—HLt
FER AEECHEERTERE
REKBAR 2B RAERIAR
E%Z%MTJ% Az ez He0% R =

NH

v REE-Z-—RF+-_A=+—HIt
FE AERHEER BB 2ITZ
66.25% % © 1 L8k 21T 2 SR T
BENOBRAIHLEERE -

RRAREEFRA  ERAY 2 AR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
Composition of the Group

Information about the composition of the Group other
than the principal subsidiaries disclose above at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

e BRI A

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

48. ERAARRAZHMBRARZE

2 ca)

(a) RMBAR ZRE (@)
KEEFEK

RBERR AEEBK (TEELX
BEZIEMBAGR) ZEHMMT:

Places of incorporation Number of
Principal activities and operation wholly-owned subsidiaries
FEXH oM AN L R B M B 2EMBAREE
2015 2014
—_E—hfF —E—F
Investment holding Hong Kong 22 12
REER o
BVI 21 14
RERUHES
The PRC 6 6
H
Financial consultancy services The PRC 5 4
B 15 55 S AR 7S #
P2P loan services The PRC 2 -
P2PE AR 75 a3
56 36
Places of incorporation Number of
Principal activities and operation non-wholly owned subsidiaries
FEEH M AN L R S M B F2EMBLARIHE
2015 2014
—_E-afF — Ty
Investment holding Hong Kong 3 S
REZEKR BB
Financial consultancy services The PRC 2 -
B 75 56 S AR 755 H
P2P loan services The PRC 2 =
P2PE H AR %5 §
7 3

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests to the Group are

disclosed below.

BAKBHRAEE IR ES 2R
BEMBARZHIBRER T
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

—AFE+=ZA=+—HLFE

48. FAAR QB ZHMBRAERZE
# (a)

(a) RMB AR ZKRE (@)
GEEXIEREZZIEETE
BB ] 2 S
THRBRAEEESSAFERIER
ZHREMB AT T

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

The table shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Places of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests and
establishment/ voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries operations non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
MM FERESHAHEAE PREFEREZN
W B 2 ) & 78 B/ g ¥ e B R R iwF (B18) BitEERER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z5-1f —T-NE ZF-1f —TNF ZF-H1f —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR¥ETR ARETR
EEHA (Note () The PRC - - - 4,065 - -
BEEA (M) HE
+HEEE The PRC 30% 30% 2,949 (1,882 4,300 1,351
HEER HE
HERE The PRC 30% 30% 7 1,318 232 3,248
HREE HE
EEFEE (Note () The PRC - - - 2,831 - -
BEFRE (M) HE
China Runking (Note (i) Hong Kong - - - (1,834) - -
HREES (FE) B
/iﬁ%Zn (Note (ii) The PRC - 20% (943) (2,094) - 557
21T (B E) HE
Excel Synergy Limited (“Excel Synergy”) Hong Kong 30% 30% (1) 4,213 2,249 2,165
Excel Synergy Limited ([Excel Synergy ]) &7
MIFE The PRC 49% 49% (1,767) 2,406 5,539 7,306
MIRE HE
TR The PRC 49% - (766) N/A 10,066 N/A
LR HE A TR
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with non- controlling interests (5,044) (959) 1,990 (994)
BEFERERNERFEAMER
Total (5,565) 8,064 24,376 13,633
@t
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= ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &HZE —BFE+-A=t+—HLEFE
48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. ERAARRAZHMBRARZE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@ RMBARZK/E (@)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEXHEBEREGZZIHZE
that have material non-controlling interests KB L ZF1IE (%)
(Continued)

Notes: Bt 5
() EEHB and EE FE are wholly owned subsidiaries of 0] EEHBREERBATREEZE
China Runking, altogether were disposed by the Group on BB AR WHASER=_Z—N
18 December 2014. Details are set out in note 44. F+ZA+/\B—HEE FRERN
B Ead o
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has iy REEZE—AHF+ZA=+—H1
disposed of its 66.25% equity interest in /8% ~ 1T and FE - AEEHERER BB 1TZ
the remaining interests in the subsidiary was reclassified 66.25% 5 - MR ZMB AR 28T
as available-for-sale investments. BonENOEAHEERSE -
Summarised financial information in respect of each of ERREEREERER ASES
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling MEBAR B ERBEHINMT -
interests is set out below. The summarised financial TXZ2HBEERBEE BN EBAEBE
information below represents amounts before intragroup SHAT 2 &R ©
eliminations.
EEFHE BEEHE
As at
31 December
2014
R-E—ME
+=A=+-8
RMB’000
ARBFT
Current assets MBEE N/A 73 A
Non-current assets ERENEE N/A 73 A
Current liabilities and total liabilities nEBBEKEERESTE N/A 73
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 782 &% A A FE (5 #E 25 N/A 38 FR
Non-controlling interests IR E = N/A 73 A
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e B TS R AR P R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BN R ZHHERAFZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMBAR ZE (&)
E B B # (Continued) BEERHE (%)
1 January
2014 to
18 December
2014
—TF
—A—H=E
—F—mF
+=A+NH
RMB’000
ARBTT
Revenue WA 49,297
Expenses S (39,136)
Profit and total comprehensive income for 4 & % FI| K & [ YL A 4258
the year 10,161
Profit and total comprehensive income AKRARHEE AEE RN RE2EBALEE
attributable to owners of the Company 6,096
Profit and total comprehensive income FEEREREGRFIRE2ERALE
attributable to the non-controlling
interests 4,065
10,161
Net cash inflow from operating activities L EES 2 HERAFE 69,823
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEB2H e FE (2,409
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEES R ML FRE (46,952)
Net cash inflow REMAFRE 20,462
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

ra B R AR Y R

48. ERAARRAZHMBRARZE

= cam)

(@) RMBAAZRE (@)

a2 LEEE
As at 31 December
w+ZH=+—H
2015 2014
—E—-1f —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETIT
Current assets MEEE 16,310 6,469
Non-current assets ERENEE 509 516
Current liabilities and total liabilities REN & & & & E4E % (2,485) (2,482)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA Rl #EA A JEIGHEES
the Company 10,034 3,152
Non-controlling interests R 4,300 1,351
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BERAKXRNRZMBFERIAKZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMIB AR Z®/E (@)
- 75 3% B (Continued) Lz (£&)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
ZE—RF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR T T

Revenue A 9,830 1,753
Expenses 53 = (8,027)
Profit/(loss) and total FERA/ (BB R

comprehensive income/ 2EKA (FAX) B8

(expense) for the year 9,830 (6,274)
Profit/(loss) and total KRR HE AL

comprehensive income/ wmAl (R &

(expense) attributable to owners  ZEUW A (Fisx ) 4258

of the Company 6,881 (4,392)
Profit/(loss) and total ey

comprehensive income/ wmAl (R &

(expense) attributable to the 2EBA (FAX) B85

non-controlling interests 2,949 (1,882)

9,830 (6,274)

Dividends paid to non-controlling & - 3F 122 B # 28 A% 2.

interests = (3,221)
Net cash outflow from operating #& & E8) 2 IR & H R 58

activities (6,088) (1,235)
Net cash inflow from investing WEEB 2HERAFE

activities 9,830 2
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REE 2

financing activities Be (Rb) /MAFE (3,869) 666
Net cash outflow Bemb #58 (127) (567)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

ra B IS R AR MY R

48. ERAARRAZHMBRARZE

= cam)

(@) RMBAAZIRE (@)

LHER LHER
As at 31 December
w+ZH=+—H
2015 2014
—ZE—AfE —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current assets and total assets BB ENMEELE 4,743 11,332
Current liabilities and total liabilites BB E N B B4 (3,969) (505)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA Rl #EA A FEIGHEES
the Company 542 7,579
Non-controlling interests eI iE = 232 3,248
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
I 8 Z & (Continued)

= cam)

(@) RMBAR ZHE (&)
LHEEE (#)

48. ERABRRAZHMBRARZE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
ZE-AE —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBEFIT
Revenue WA 36 4,524
Expenses =53 (12) (132)
Profit and total comprehensive FEORH M EERA LR
income for the year 24 4,392
Profit and total comprehensive KRRHEE A& &
income attributable to owners of 2 A 4258
the Company 17 3,074
Profit and total comprehensive FE 122 PR e 2 FE A s ) S
income attributable to the non- & E YA 4258
controlling interests 7 1,318
24 4,392
Dividends paid to non-controling 2 1~ 3F1Z i i 2k = f% &
interests (3,023) -
Net cash inflow from operating ~ &&EE) 2R & T AFE
activities 20 4,043
Net cash inflow from investing HEFES 2BHERANFRE
activities - 1
Net cash outflow from financing ~ @& EE) 2 IR & 7 L F 58
activities - (4,219)
Net cash inflow (outflow) ReRmA CRL) F58 20 (175)
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ra B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE ‘

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. FRAANRZMBMRAKZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION = cam)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMIBARZ®/E (&)
BEERE EERE
As at
31 December
2014
RIE—ME
+=ZHA=+—H
RMB’000
AERETIT
Current assets MENEE N/A 7~ i A
Non-current assets EREEE N/A 7~ i A
Current liabilities and total liabilities mEBENBERRE N/A 73 F
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 Fl#E A A FE(H & N/A 138 A
Non-controlling interests IR N/A 7~
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wm

CRErE: T s

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

48.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

48. ERAARRAZMBRARZE

= cam)

(@) RMBAAZRE (@)

E F B (Continued) EERE (#)
1 January
2014 to
18 December
2014
—EF—OF
—A—H=E
—T-F
+=A+NH
RMB’000
ARET T
Revenue L ON 24,332
Expenses M (17,254)
Profit and total comprehensive income for 4 & % FI| K & [ YL A 4258
the year 7,078
Profit and total comprehensive income AKRARHEE AEE RN RE2EBALEE
attributable to owners of the Company 4,247
Profit and total comprehensive income FEEREREGRFIRE2ERALE
attributable to the non-controlling
interests 2,831
7,078
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 215 F IEFE A% 2 A% B (5,933)
Net cash inflow from operating activities REZHZHERAFHE 8,116
Net cash inflow from investing activities WEEB2H e RAFE 13,989
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEEB R ML FRE (11,832)
Net cash inflow e R AFRE 10,273
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ra B IS R AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE i

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. FRAANRZMBMRAKZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION = cam)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMIBRARZ®/E (@)
China Runking o B &
As at
31 December
2014
R-ZE—ME
+=ZRAR=+—H
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Current assets and total assets MEBEEMEERE N/A 7~ i A
Current liabilities and total liabilities nEaEkaEES N/A 7~ A
Equity attributable to owners of RAa A ARG
the Company N/A 3 A
Non-controlling interests IR = N/A 73 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BN R ZHHFRAFZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@ RMIBARZ®/E (@)
China Runking (Continued) HE]E £ (%)
1 January
2014 to
18 December
2014
—TF
—A—H=®
—F—mF
+=A+NH
RMB’000
AR T T
Revenue A -
Expenses X (4,585)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for & EE51E & 2 S 4258
the year (4,585)
Loss and total comprehensive expense ARARHEEAEGESEMEZART R
attributable to owners of the Company (2,751)
Loss and total comprehensive expense R EEENEER A B
attributable to the non-controlling
interests (1,834)
(4,585)
Net cash inflow from operating activities wEEES 2 HERAFE 2,322
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEB2H e FE (8,418)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEES RS MAFRE 11,899
Net cash inflow REMAFRE 5,803
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ra B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE S

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BN R ZHHFRAZZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMIBARZ®/E (&)
FiE#EZIT LiGHEZT
As at 31 December
W+=ZRA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current assets MENEE N/A i A 76,043
Non-current assets EMBEE N/A i A 2,243
Current liabilities and total liabilites REI B & & B B4 %58 N/A 7 A (75,500)
Equity attributable to owners of AN Rl #EA A JEIGHEES
the Company N/A A& B 2,229
Non-controlling interests R N/A TiE A 557
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-HA=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. BN R ZHHERAFZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMIB AR Z®/E (@)
5 2£ Z 1T (Continued) LEEZIT (&)
1 January 6 May 2014 to
2015 to 31 December
3 June 2015 2014
ZE—RF —E—HE
—A—HZ AARNEE
—E—%fF —T—WF
+=A=+-A +-A=1-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR T T
Revenue A 4,183 8,131
Expenses 53 (8,898) (18,603)
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREERZRE
expense for the year (4,715) (10,472)

Loss and total comprehensive KARIHEE AELEE R
expense attributable to owners 2 E [ X A58

of the Company (3,772) (8,378)
Loss and total comprehensive RS EGEER

expense attributable to the FHEHAEE

non-controlling interests (943) (2,094)

(4,715) (10,472)

Net cash outflow from operating £ & & BN TS < 3 & 7 L F 88

activities (4,259) (25,230)
Net cash outflow from investing & & /EENFTS 2R &R L F5E

activities (122) (2,809)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BEEBME2Ee ORHd)

financing activities MAERR (1,036) 42,754
Net cash (outflow) inflow B"e b)) mAEHE (5,417) 14,715
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ra B IS R AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE S

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. FRAANRZMBMRAKZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@) RMIBRARZ®/E (@)
Excel Synergy Excel Synergy
As at 31 December
®+-A=+-8
2015 2014
—E-4fF —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
Current assets mEEE 5,251 5,232
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,300 2,300
Current liabilities and total liabilities & & &% & E4#£ %8 (55) (314)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA Rl #EA A JEIGHEES
the Company 5,247 5,053
Non-controlling interests IR 2,249 2,165
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. FRAANRZMBMRAKZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION # (@)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@ RMIBARZ®/E (@)
Excel Synergy (Continued) Excel Synergy (#)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
ZE—RF —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR T T
Revenue WA - 15,437
Expenses 53 (&) (1,393)
Profit and total comprehensive FEORH M EERA LR
income for the year (3) 14,044
Profit and total comprehensive KRRHEE A& &
income attributable to owners of 2 A 4258
the Company (2) 9,831
Profit and total comprehensive FE 122 PR e 2 FE A s ) S
income attributable to the FHEUW AL
non-controlling interests (1) 4,213
3) 14,044
Dividends paid to non-controlling = - F JE# S 4 25 2 A%
interests = (2,450
Net cash (outflow) inflow from gEES2Ee ORd)
operating activities MAFRE (265) 3,569
Net cash (outflow) inflow from wEES2He Ond)
investing activities MAFEE (19) 10,714
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BEESHZHEESRA
financing activities (i) F5E 3 (14,391)
Net cash outflow W R (281) (108)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

ra B R AR Y R

48. ERAARRAZHMBRARZE

= cam)

(@) RMBAAZRE (@)

HIEE HIEE
As at 31 December
mR+ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E—4fF —E—HE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETIT
Current assets MEEE 17,586 16,776
Non-current assets ERENEE 109 =
Current liabilities and total liabilities i) & & K & & 425 (6,390) (1,866)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA Rl #EA A JEIGHEES

the Company 5,766 7,604
Non-controlling interests JEIE R iE = 5,539 7,306
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MF

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZZ=Z

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CRErE: T s

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

15

—AF+ZA=+T—-HLFE

48. FAAR QB ZHMBRAERZE
# ca)

(@) RMBAR ZHE (&)

AT B & (Continued) HWIEE (&)
1 January 24 October
2015 to 2014 to
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—_E—-afF —T-F
—A—HZE +TAZtTHmEBE=E
—E-AfF —ZE—mF
+-A=+—H +=-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR T T
Revenue WA 4,157 7,190
Expenses 53 (7,764) (2,280)
(Loss) profit and total FE (BB RN R
comprehensive income e ON L
for the year (3,607) 4,910
(Loss) profit and total KAEIHEE AR (BE)
comprehensive (expenses) wAREE (FAX) WA BE
income attributable to owners of
the Company (1,840) 2,504
(Loss) profit and total IR E R FE(L (B8 & &%
comprehensive (expenses) 2H (AX) WAL
income attributable to the
non-controlling interests (1,767) 2,406
(3,607) 4,910
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEFHZHESRA ORd)
operating activities R 304 (9,568)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from ‘EFB2ES ORd)
investing activities MAFEE (130) 2
Net cash inflow from financing BEEESCHERAFE
activities - 10,000
Net cash inflow REMANFRE 174 434
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=ZE—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

ra B IS R AR MY R

48. ERAARRAZHMBRARZE

= cam)

(@) RMBAAZIRE (@)

AL A AL A
As at 31 December
m+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-4fF —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current assets MBNEE 20,683 N/A 7~ i
Non-current assets ERENEE 20 N/A 138 A
Current liabilities and mEBEERBERTE
total liabilities (159) N/A i@ A
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA R #E A A E(G
the Company 10,478 N/A 3 A
Non-controlling interests IR 10,066 N/A 738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE=Z—HF+=-A=+—HLEEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. AL LN R ZHMBRRAEFZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £ o)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (@ RMIBARZ®/E (@)
AT @ 4 (Continued) HLE4F (%)
27 May 2015 1 January 2014
to 31 December to 31 December
2015 2014
—E-4fF —Z=—mn
AAZ=++tHE F—H—B=
—E—IF —E—F
+=A=+-B +=-A=+-~H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T ARET T
Revenue A 1,307 N/A i A
Expenses 3 (2,869) N/A 3@

Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREERZRE
expenses for the year (1,562) N/A i@ A

Loss and total comprehensive KARIHEE AEMLEER
expenses attributable to owners 2 E [ A58

of the Company (796) N/A i
Loss and total comprehensive IR R (LB 1B

expenses attributable to the FHEA B

non-controlling interests (766) N/A “I~ i

(1,562) N/A 75

Net cash inflow from operating KRR LIRS M AERE

activities 11,996 N/A i@ A
Net cash outflow from investing % & &8 2 IR & H R 58

activities (9,043) N/A “I~ i B
Net cash inflow from financing BEEES CBHERAFE

activities 739 N/A i@ A
Net cash inflow RERAFEE 3,692 N/A & B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 7t 7% R 7= M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z —BF+-A=+t—HLEFE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 48. EEA KR NB ZHMBERAEKTZE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £ ca)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) AR ZHEE

(b) Reserves of the Company

Share-based
Share  Accumulated Exchange payment
premium losses reserve reserve Total
MR 1D 2
R B 25 EE B 5% G HIERFE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARET:R
At 1 January 2014 \=Z-mE—A—B 556,369 (68,939) (10959) 8,698 485,169
Loss for the year FEER = (42,249 = = (42,249
Other comprehensive expenses Hi2EAX - - (7,642) - (7,642)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year EE 2 &% - (42,249) (7,642) - (49,891)
Issue of shares under placing (Note 40(a)) 1R A & 317D
(BizF40(@)) 111,230 - - - 111,230
Issue of shares upon exercise of RITEERIERZ TG
share options (Note 40(b)) (KizE40(0)) 51411 = = (6,459) 44,952
Recognition of equity-settled share based  #&24% 2 & & LA B
payments F R - - - 4,790 4,790
Dividend recognised as distribution BRADKZERE (30,615) = = = (30,615)
Lapsed of share options BIRELH - 225 - (225) =
At 31 Decermber 2014 “T-WmEt-A=t—A 683395 (110963  (18601) 6804 565,635
Equity
Share-based component
Share  Accumulated Exchange payment  of convertible
premium losses reserve reserve bond Total
MERX mRRES
B th i (8 6 BifitE NG EHHs @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT  AR®Tx  ARETT AREFR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2015 W-ZE-h%—A—H 688,395 (110,963) (18,601) 6,804 - 565,635
Loss for the year FERE - (68,069) - - - (68,069)
Other comprehensive expenses £ 2EH Y - - 37,804 - - 37,804
Total comprehensive expenses ~ FEZHMX AR
for the year - (68,069) 37,894 - - (30,175)
Issue of shares under placing REEEZTRN
(Note 40(c)) (Bi7E40(0)) 992,525 - - - - 992,525
Share issue expenses e (14,774) - - - - (14,774)
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ ATHEEERIERZ TR
share options (Note 40(d)) (PizE40(d)) 10,604 - - (3,304) - 7,300
Recognition of equity-settled share R IZIE 54 B IARR (7
based payments TSR - - - 43,999 - 43,999
Recognition of equity component of FEFAR] R E% 2
convertible bond Enin - - - - 23,206 23,206
Dividend recognised as distrioution #3247 1R 2 B & (11,724) - - - - (11,724)
Lapsed of share options BRELN - 199 - (199) - -
At 31 December 2015 R=F-RF+-A=1-H 1,665,026 (178,833) 19,293 47,300 23,206 1,575,992
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

BB MEE

48. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

49.

(c)

(d)

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries/
joint ventures

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Amount due to a related company

The amount is due to a company owned by Mr. Zhang
Zhenxin, a major shareholder of the Company, which is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group has
entered into the following significant transactions:

(a)

Acquisition of 51% equity interest

in Spring Reliance Limited (R &
Ry Al) (the “Target”) (the “Target B
Acquisition”)

On 29 January 2016, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Target and its existing shareholder in
relation to the acquisition of a 51% interest in the Target
which owns &I JRAK T B AR Q7 (Shenzhen
Qiyuan Tianxia Technology Company Limited*) (“Qiyuan
Tianxia”). Pursuant to the agreement, (i) the Group
conditionally agreed to acquire 43.5% and subscribe for
7.5% of the enlarged equity interests in the Target upon
completion of the acquisition of the Target and all its
subsidiaries (including Qiyuan Tianxia) at considerations
of RMB174,000,000 for the acquisition of shares and
RMB30,000,000 for the subscription of shares; and (ii)
the consideration amounting to RMB174,000,000 shall
be settled by the payment of RMB55,000,000 in cash
and by the issue of 51,150,640 consideration Shares.

The transaction has not yet been completed to date.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s

announcements dated 6 January 2016 and 1 February
2016.
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48. ﬁJ{E?JZM}ﬂ ZHMBRRAERZE
o)

49.

(c)

(d)

Y (M) MBAR &%
T ERIE
ZEHHAMEN - % BRAN

B

ﬁx
il

i+ — B B E 22 R =R

FEf — B A A A E BR R RIRH %
EHE 2 ARREAEER 28 RA
RERR R

RERHEEH

5

(a)

RBEHRE AEBEFILTIEER

WEERERAR ([BER
7 1) 251%k#E ([ BERE
BitEEEIR])

T—RNE—HA=-+hB KT&EH
ARRHEBEERREFWEEE Z
@T(ﬁ%ﬁiﬂiﬂltﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ
RNE([BRAT]) ) 251% 5] 3L
— o RIBEZ G ((AREBE
HHRIER TR KEEZEA R REM
EHBA T(@%L}?%T)@zuﬁzﬁﬁa
1= BB RIS AE 2 43.5% K2 2 R B8
H75% e WHERHZRE ﬁU\E
#174,000,0007T * M R 5 2 KB
A AR #30,000,0007T : iR EAR
#5174,000,0007C#5 A X IR & AR EE
55,000,0007T & 2 1751,150,6408% X
BBz HALER-

Z#HE %ZE"$ AE#HAsZ
— /\fﬁ )E]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #ZE

49. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(b) Supplemental agreement to the sale

and purchase agreement in relation to
acquisition of 35% equity interest in
Genesis Business

On 24 February 2016, a supplementary agreement was
entered into between the Company and the relevant
parties to amend and supplement certain terms on the
sale and purchase agreement for the Genesis Business
Acquisition as disclosed in note 27, mainly for the
following:

a) The Genesis Business Acquisition is no longer for
total of 35% equity interests in Genesis Business.
Instead, the Group has conditionally agreed
to purchase 100% equity interests in Genesis
Business which have an indirect interests of 35%
in FBRAIEEERMARE AR QA (Shanghai
Jifu Xinxi Jishu Fuwu Co., Ltd.*) (‘OPCQO”) through
structured contracts, without voting control and
consolidation of OPCO and its subsidiaries. The
Group’s indirect interest in OPCP upon completion
of the acquisition under such structured contracts
will be 35%.

b)  The supplemental agreement also cancels the put
option granted to the Group for the vendors, being
beneficial owners of the entire issued share capital
of Genesis Business and independent third parties,
to sell all or part of their shareholding in Genesis
Business, exercisable from the period of 1 January
2017 to 30 June 2017.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 1 November 2015, 26 November
2015 and 24 February 2016 respectively. Transfer of
10% interests in Genesis Business had been completed
on 24 February 2015. Acquisition of the remaining 25%
interests in Genesis Business is not completed up to the
date of this report.

ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ

—RE+-A=t-—ALEE
49, S EHEEIE (@)

n\/-_l_\

(b) FREAULIERIE Z35%ARH# <
EEHmEZHR

RZE—ARFE-A=1+WA AQFHE

BRARTH RIS 7 i sk DAME 7T I A8

A RABKEEE  EBRE LA
THEFR o AN EE27 IR R - T B2 A M

TR e

TARAA:

a) BIBKBEETESIRA LEIE
Z35%M% 1 - i A R B B A 1G4
AEBEERE Z100% s - Big
ﬂ—tﬁ:Iﬁ%ﬁﬁaLA &l R B B
NAZREE SR E %R
REBERT BREBEE] ’JEA
EBAEEERNREERA
(FgLATJ)ﬂPtzﬁﬁ%%F‘ﬂx%
o R ERKEE  AEERIE
ERAEBESHRNEENRZHE
EHEREH35% o

by HEZEFEE (AlEZ 2%
TRAZERBEAARBYE=
) HERENAIE 2 280k E
Dl (ITEHE T —tF—
A—BRE-Z—+&FX A=+

Bib) - W BRITBUER TAS
I 30 HE

B S ZFBEHERA QR A B
AE—ZFT—RF+—HA—HB —F—1
F+—A-t+RNABRER-_ZE—XRE_A
ZHHEBZAERN -EEEE Z210%
BHENR T —RAF_-_A=-+WAR
B o BIEATRE BHEILE - MR EAUKE
Bl 2 82 T 25% e as
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n‘/j_\

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ=

BB MEE

49. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING

*

321

PERIOD (Continued)

(c) Subscription of a convertible bond

issued by China Fortune

On 18 March 2016, a 12% coupon convertible bond (the
“2016 Convertible Bond”) was issued by China Fortune
to Ever Step with principal amount of approximately
HK$40,385,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB33,685,000) for settlement of the 2015 Convertible
Bond as set out in note 23(b). The 2016 Convertible
Bond bears 12% interest per annum with maturity on
17 March 2017. The Group can exercise the conversion
option in whole or in part on the maturity date. The
conversion price is HK$0.13 per share (subject to
adjustments). China Fortune may redeem the 2016
Convertible Bond in whole or in part at anytime from the
date of issue up to the maturity date. Unless previously
redeemed or converted, China Fortune shall redeem the
2016 Convertible Bond at 100% of the principal amount
and accrued interests of the 2016 Convertible Bond at
maturity date.

For identification purpose only

CREDIT CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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49. REHHEEE @)

*

(c)

ERr il

REHPREERBITZAHR
BRES

RZZE—RE=A+N\B =R
A 7k & 2% 77 78 & %8 47 340,385,000/
ﬁ(*ﬁ%#iﬁ/\ﬁmso%oooﬂz
12%ZEMRES ([ZF—XF7T
BRES]) AER M#fizs( VTE 2 =
E-—AFBRRES ZT—~FA
B EHFEFFR12% B R =F
—tF=A+EHBE - AEEARE
BT 2o S - HBIRER
FHR013%B T (7] T %) cHE1TH
HEREER A RS R pER
EOE2M B T —NFaRRE
FHoBRIESLATE WE [ kit - B AIF
Bl o AN BRI T —~Fak
IR EH A& %8 2 100% & fE 5+ FI| B B )
ZE—RNEFEABRES -



A summary of the Group’s results for the last five financial years
and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2015,
2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2015,
2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011, is set out below. The amounts set out
in this financial summary are prepared as if the current structure of
the Group had been in existence throughout the years presented.

Financial Summary

B

TEREIAEEBEREATREEEERAEE
RZE—RAF ZT—WOF - —ZFT—=F _%F
—— R E——F+_A=+—HBHWEEKSE
BEHE NRBEEBEREE_T—HF =%
—NFE —EBE—=F T _FKR_FT——F
TZA=ZT—BLFELEZWBRE - LI
BE 2 P ERE T AN SR B3R B R I A P 2 3
FEALEFEMRR -

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Zg-1f —T-WF ZT-=Ff T ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETE ARETT AR%TR ARETx
RESULTS ey
Turnover ES 429,590 374,068 269,728 302,422 258,701
Net interest income FEMAFE 44,938 83,261 108,454 112,100 111,612
Financial consultancy service income SR ARBERA 37,650 66,597 123,452 170,895 141,995
Online third party payment service income BEE=AZRRBKA 128,148 60,665 = = =
Peer-to-peer loan service income POPE IR MA 112,546 24,822 = = =
Gain on transfer of rights on interests BERME N E R SR 2 W
on loan receivables 4,778 46,304 - - -
328,060 281,649 231,906 282,995 258,507
Other income He g A 24,427 18,810 20,492 17,537 6,241
Other gains and losses Hiwlies kB 7,586 - = = =
Handling charges of online third party BEE=ASRRBzFER
payment service (28,911) (10,154 - - -
Administrative and other operating expenses TERREMEEHRY (200,887) (189,776) (113,213) (68,548) (54,606)
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BELENBLRZER - = (1,525) - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA Rz Wz 42,091 6,068 - = 12,823
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HESERECER - (56) = = =
Change in fair value of investment property RENMEZATERE) (1,000) 10,239 75,677 = =
Change in fair value of derivative and PTAETANRAHBRESR
embedded derivative components of ARBREBERZAEITETA
convertible bond and exchangeable bond Bz A FEEE (7,877) 394 (420) (2,788) (364)
Change in fair value of contingent ERIAREZATES
consideration receivable - (8,452) (468) - -
Share-based payment expenses PABR 5 & B X (43,999) (4,790) (5,464) (2,888) (18,913)
Share of results of associates ERBEDREE 6,024 672) (1,960) (1,015) =
Share of results of joint ventures ElEEabEEE (6,230) (1,945) 1,508 449 =
Loss on early redemption of corporate bonds 12 R I A BB 2 EiE - - - (2,466) -
Profit before tax B %t B i3 1 119,284 101,315 206,533 223,276 198,688
Income tax Fri5 %t (39,243) (35,057) (51,768) (59,002) (53,417)
Profit for the year FERH 80,041 66,258 154,765 164,274 145,271
Attributable to: s
Owners of the Company N/NGIE DN 85,606 58,194 141,247 149,534 142,833
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
Total assets BEE 4,871,701 2,671,727 2,311,551 1,321,040 1,024,609
Total liabilties BeE (2,239,115) (1,252,299  (1,017,126) (564,000) (367,089)
Net assets EEFE 2,632,586 1,419,428 1,294,425 757,031 657,520
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Summary of Investment Property

REVZHE

Particulars of investment property held by the Group as at 31 R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—H AEEFfREFHE2

December 2015 is as follows: REWMEFBWT
Group
Property Use Interest Category of the lease
ES A& AEBEER HEER
Nos. 518-686 Commercial 100% Medium term lease

Sichuan North Road,

Hongkou District,

Shanghai

The PRC

G [GES 100% hHIHE
ladis

47 A&

913k B

518-6865
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